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And, whereas, the Central Govemment in exercise of
the powers conferred by sub-section (1) of Section 4 of the
said Act referred the said notification to the said Tribunal
on the 2nd March, 2012 for the purpose of adjudicating
whether or not there was sufficient cause for declaring the
said association as unlawful;

And, whereas, the satd Tribunal in exercise of the
powers conferred by sub-section (3) of Section ¢4 of the
said Act, made an order on the 1.t August, 2012, confirming
the declaration made in the notification number §.0. 224 (E),
dated the 3rd February, 2012,

Now, therefore, in pursuance of sub-section (4) of
Section 4 of the said Act, the Central Government hereby
publishes the following order of the said Tribunul,
namely -

UNLAWFUL ACTIVITIES (PREVENTION)
TRIBUNAL, NEW DELHI

Date of decision - August 01, 2012
In the matter of :

Gazetie Notification No. 8.0, 224(E) dated 3rd !'ubruary.
2012 declaring Students Islamic Movement of India 03
Unlawful Associntion under Ssction 3(1) of the Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Acl, 1967.

CORAM :
HON'BLE MR. JUSTICE V. K. SHALI
Present :

Mr. A. S, Chandhiok, Additional Solicitor General
with Mr. Sunjay Katyal, Central Govt. Senlor Counsel,
Mr. Ravinder Agarwal, Mr. Sachin Dutta, Central
Gowt. Standing Counsels and Dr. Slmil;nder Shatma,
Central Giovt, Pleader,

MrV.K. Shurma, Director, Mr. M.P. Singh, Linder
Secretary and Mr.Manoj Kumar Singh, Investigator
trom Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India.

Mr. Ashok Aggarwal, Mr. Mobin Akhtar and Ms,
Sridevi Panniker, Advocates for Mr. Bumam Ahmed
Siddiqui & Mr. Misbah-Ul-Islam, former members of
SiMI.

ORDER

I, Inesercise of powers conferred by sub-section (1) of
Section 3 of the Unlawtal Activitics (Prevention) Att, 1967
(Act No. 37 of 1967) (hereinafter referred to ag the *Act)
and vide Notification No, .00, 224(E) dated Jrd Fu'bmry.
2012, the Guvernment of India declared Students [alamic
Movement ol India [for short ‘-.!MI | ay "Unlawful
Association’

2 The Government of India came to the conclusion
that SIMI was an Unlawful Association. inter alia, on the
grounds that SIMI 15 indulging in activities which are
prejudictal to the integrily and security of the country; that
SIMI has been mdulging in unlawful and violent activities.
including involvement in high intensity bomb blast which
occurred on | 3th February, 2010 at German Bakery, North

on Jni July, 2011, in which one | )
planning, preparing and coordinati ist
activities, which are agains eivi et

and also harmful 16 commni"lh
SIMI membery wer arrekbed By the p :
in India and Inrge nmhn-'onmmmﬁniﬁm illegel
documents etc. were seizad from these siembers and varlous
criminal cases have been rogistered agalnst them. Thesc
activisis alao indulged in robbery of gold etc. for the
purpoae of purchasing arms and strengthening the banned
orgarization SIML.

3.  Exercising the powers conlerrcd by sub-section (1)
of Section 5 of the Act, Ministry of Home Affairs,
Govermment of India, vide Notification No. $.0, 362(E) dated
Isf March, 2012 constituted this Tribunal for the purpose
of adjudicating as to whether there were sufficient grounds
for declaring the SIMI as an Unlawful Association under
the Act and a reference was made to this Tribunal under
Section 4 of the Act. The reference was received by this
Tribunal on 5th March, 2012. J

4, Along with the aforesaid Notification, the Central
Government has fumished a background note on SIMI
stating the various activities of the organization before
imposition of the first ban in the year 2001, till the imposition
of this ban in the year 2012, As per the background note,
the objcctivel of SIMI are as under :

(0] Qming of huiman life on the basis of Quran;
(il) - Prapagation of Istam;
- “Fekad" (ratigious war) for the cause of Islam; and

{Iv)" Desttuctlon of Notlonalism and establishment of
tslamic Rule or Caliphate.

5. The background note states the following activities

of SIMI after February, 2010 and before imposition of sixth

ban in February, 2012 as the grounds for continuation of

the bam i~

(a) Regrouping under the garb of various banners;

(b) Radicalizing, brainwashing the minds and
indoctrination of Muslim youth by Jehadi propaganda
and through provocative tagreers (lectures/
sm'c_hch). CD;, etc, ;
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(¢)

their plans, & ate mn ed
wndivicdale,

outfits in Dbk sl sbroud, ak

6 1he ko sote fuithe states that SIMI i
been active through various Blonteover organizationg in

; iﬁuﬂ#

s 1nn

fmwmﬁwmmmmw '

e P e P |
e e P e S g B

AT T WL



[ i1—@vg 3(ii) ]

YR ¥ ATIF_: IR 3

different States; prominent amongst which is the-Wahadat-
e-Islami#WeL ) in States of Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu, Uttar
Pradesh, Kerala, Delhi and Rajasthan. The said organization
provides a platform to ex-SIMI activists to expand their
militant reach amongst Muslim youth under the guise of
spreading Islamic ideology. It is further stated that to avoid
legal scrutiny and publicity of its activities, SIMI fried to
carry oat jis activities under the garb of cover organizations
in several States of the country like, in Kerala, SIMI is
carrying out its activities under the banner of "Minority
Rights Watch” (MRW); in Madhya Pradesh, an organization

named “Nagori Lashkar’ was floated by pro-SIMI elements -

of Nagori community; in Karnataka, it established an
organization.called *Ansarullah’; in Uttar Pradesh, it has
established ‘Muslim Muttahida Mihad’ etc. and all these
organizations were used by ex-5IMI activists to counter
the alleged threats/campaign against Islam, It is further
stated that SIMI has been making constant efforts to
establish links with terrorist outfits operating in fammu
and Kashmir and abroad, including Jaish-e-Mohammad
(JeM) and Lashkar- e-Toiba (LeT), to expand its network
and to carry out violent actions, It is further stated that
SIMI activists continug to circulate subversive and
pravocative material since February, 2010, including CD<.
cassettes, leaflets, books and magazines, which were
circulated ‘in various States; generally containing
mflammatory jehadi speeches, revenge for Babri Masjid
demolition, and the so-called conspiracy of Zionist forces,
‘Jehad’ and ‘Khilafat’. The background note further
mentioned various other illegal activities of SIMI and the
inputs received from various States about the activities of
SIMI.

7. The Central Government in their Gazette Notification
dated 3rd February, 2012 has summarized the cases
involving SIMI, alleging that its activists were indulging in
activities which are prejudicial to the integrity and
security of the country. The cases have been summarized as
under :-—

(a) On 13th February, 2010 a high intensity bomb btast
occurred at German Bakery, North Main Read,
Koregaon Park, Pune, in which seventesn persons
{male and female) died and fifty-six others sustained
injuries of different magnitude. The samples collected
from the spot were sent for examination to the State
Forensic Science Laboratory (FSL) and for
Investigation to CBl, New Deihi. The Forensic
Science Laboratory (FSL) has opined that “Traces
of Cyclonite (RDX), “Ammonium Nitrate ions along
with Petroleum Hydrocarbon oil are detected. RDX
is used as High explosive™. This case revealed that
the arrested accused Mirza Himayat Inayat Baig alias
Ahmed Baig Inayat Mirza alias Yusufhad conspired
with wanted accused Mohasin Choudhary, Ahmed
Siddipappa alias Yasin Bhatkal, Iqgbal Bhatkal, and
Riyaz Bhatkal to prepare and explode the bomb at
German Bakery, Pune on 13th February, 2010. The

(b)

]

(d)

(&)

above persons by unlawful means had commitied
this offence of the bomb blasi for promoting
insurgency. The Anti Terrorist Squad (ATS), Mumbai,
Maharashtra registered a Case Crime No. 6/2010
{Bund Garden Police Station Cr. No. 83/2010) under
Sections 302, 307, 326, 325,324, 427, 120B of Indian
Penal Code (IPC) read with Sections 3, 4, 5 of the
Explosive Substances Act read with Sections 16, 18,
21 of the Unlawfui Activities (Prevention) Act; 1967.
The accused persons are active members of SIMI;

Case Crime No. 21/2040, at ATS Mumbai P8 under
Sections 10, 13, 15, 18, [8(z) and 18(b) ofthe Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 read with Sections
120B, 465,467, 468 read with Section 419,420 of TPC
read with Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 of the Explosive
Substances Act, 1908 was registered. Twa SIMI
activists were arrested. The accused were planning,
preparing and coerdinating terrorist activities against
civilian and secirity establishments. To accomplish
the pgiven task they received RBDX, detonators, cic.
but before they could strike they were apprehended;
On 2Znd Auguast, ZG1 1, one accused person was
arrested by ATS, Thane Unit. The accused was found
with Fake Indian surrency note: of ninety-seven
thousand five hundrea ruces. He wags sent illegally
to Pakistan in the year 2000 by Indian Mujahiddin
member Riyaz B -tkal. The accused had taken
tervorist training 1z Pai istan a , well as Khandhar in
Afghanistan. Another accused wes arvested and was
found in possession of thirty thousand rupees fake
[ndian currency notes, The A1S, Munbai,
Maharashtra has registered Case Crime No. 31/201
under Section 489A, 489B, 489C of 1PC read with
Section 15, 17 of the Unlawful Activities (Prevention)
Act, 1967 (amended in 2008). Both accused persons
are members of banned SIMI organization:

Case Crime No. 274/201 1 under Section 420,468, 1208
of LRC. of Abid Road PS and Crime No. 312/2011
under Section 120B, 121A, 125, 126 of .P.C. and
Section 10,13 read with Section 3 of the Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967, was registered. On¢
accused, Syed Afaque Igbal alias Danish Igbal, a
member of SIMI, resident of Ranchi, Jharkhand who
is an accused in Case Crime No. 203/2008 of
Maninagar PS, Ahmedabad (Gujarat) was arrested.
He revealed that he resided at different places in
Hyderabad since 2008. To avoid arrest in different
cases under trial including Ahmedabad serial bamb
biasts, he obtained SIM cards under fictitious names;

On 24th November, 2010, Muneer Deshmukh, former
All India Secretary of SIMI was arrested by Madhya
Pradesh Police for his involvement in seven cases in
Madhya Pradesh, all pertaining to SIM! activities.
Case Crime No. 245/2011, at PS Narayangudda,
Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, has been resistered
under Section 177.4120f LP.C.;
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Case Crime No. 87/2010, at PS Hussainialam,
Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, has been registered
under Sections 302, 120B, 122, 123, 124A read with
Section 34 of LP.C., Section 25(1))(A) and 27 of the
ArmsAct, 1959, Section 16, 18 and 20 ofthe Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 for opening fire by
accused on the police personnel on picket duty,
On 15th May, 2010, Case Crime No. 37/2010, at PS
Suntikoppa, Kodagu district (Karnataka), has been
registered under Section 143, 147, 148, 120B, 121,
1Z1(A), 153(A), 201, 149 of L.P.C., Sections 10, 11, 13,
16, 18, 18(A)B} of the Unlawful Activities
(Prevention) Act, 1967 and Sections 3 and 5 of the
Explosive Substances Act, 1908;

In 2 raid conducted at ‘Other Books’, Kozhikode,
police seized a computer hard disk containing
materials which are harmful to communal harmony.
The owner of the book shop is an ex-SIMI activist,
A Cade Crime No. 424/2010, at Town S, Kozhikode,
Kerala has been registered under Section 102 of
Crimina) Procedure Code (Cr.P.C.y and aceused hns
been arrested;

In a raid conducted at Nanma Books, Kozhikode,
police scizel articles which are harmtul to communal
harmony. One accused hus been arrestedd and a Case
Crime No. 448/2010 registered at Town PS8,
Kozhikode, Kerala under Section 124A, 153Aof LEC,
Case Crime No. 1597201 1, at Kollengode Police Siation,
Palakkad District, Kerala has been reglstered under
Section 151 of 1.LP.C. for conducting a study ¢lass at
ldukkappara Mosque, Muthalamada within
Kollengode Police Station limits. Twenty-ine prrsons
had attended the class. On enquiry; it was revealed
that out of twenty-one persons, twenty belonged to
Coimbatore and one belonged to Chennai, Their
purpese of study/cla: s in the mosque was said to be
attending religious classes regarding how to pray
and how to perform Niskara, etec. Among the twenty-
one persons, some former activists of SIMI were also
involved. Alf the twenty-one persons were arrested
und enlarged on bail;

Case Crime Mo, 35/201 1, at PS GRP, Ratlam, Madhya
Pradesh, has been registered under Section 307 read
with 34 of | P.C.and Section 10, 13, 15 ofthe Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967, Two accused were
arrested for firing on ATS Police Party on 3rd July,
2011, in which one Inspector died. The accused are
members of SIMI organization;

Case Urime No. 319/2011, at PS Kotwali, Khandwa,
Madhya Pradesh, has been registered under Section
153Aof 1.P.C. read with Section 3, 10, 13, 16, 18,20 of
the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 and
Section 285, 27 of Arms Act, 1959. Twelve accused
have been arrested and five pistols, two revolvers,
sixtecn bullets, four motor cycles, SIMI literature and
CD'% have been recovered and seized by the State
Palice. All the accused are members of banned

(m) Eleven accused SIM] members have bezn ggrested

(n)

(0)

()

{q)

()

for planning unlawful activities between June-July,
2011 in case Crime Mo, 14/2009 and 164/2009 at
Kotwali, Khandwa, Madhya Pradesh under various
Sections of the Indian Penal Code, the Amms Act,
1959 and the Unlawful Activities (Frevention) Act,
1967. The Police recovered and seized two pistols.
one pistol magazine with three bullets and one
motorcycle from the accused;

Case Critne No, 2247201 1, a1 PS Station Road, Ratfam,
Madhya Pradesh, has been registered under Section
307 of 1.P.C., Sections 25, 27 of the Arins Act, 1959
and Sections 10, 13, 16, 19 ofthe Unlawful Activities
(Prevention) Act, 1967, Three accused have been
arrested. All the accused are members of SIMI. Police
recovered and seized a Revolver, Blank Cartridge and
SIMI literature from them;

Case Crime No. 2907201 |, at PS Manak Chowk, Ratlarn,
Mudhya Pradesh, haa been registered under Section
133A ul 1 ?«ﬁ« mdwi}h Smtion; !0, |3 119 oflhe

1959 and the Unlawful Activimza
1967. Police recovered and ue
documents and Ih&fatﬂ L8

397 of |, PE.
Sections 3, 10, 4
{Prevention) Acl, 19§
arrested and one hundmag:
eighty gram Gold from Bk
gram Gold from Kolkat#
seized. The accused are m
robbery for purchasing ar
SIMI organization;

Seventeen accused were Al
1687201 | at PS Itarasi, Hoshang
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vgrious Secctions of the Arms Act, 1959, the Indian
Penal Code and the Unlawful Activities(Prevention)
Act, 1967. Accused are members of banped SIMI
organization and doing robbery to collect money for
strengthening the organization, purchasing arms,
making new members as well as for taking bail of
Safdar Nagori and his supporters;

Six SIMI activists have been convicted in case Crime
No. 1-16/2003, dated the |1th December, 2003,
registered under Sections 1208, 121(1). 122 of LP.C.
read with Sections 3(3), 4, 20, 21(2)(b), 22(3)(A), (B)
of the Prevention of Terrorism Act, 2002 read with
Sections 25(1)(a) and (&) and 29 of the Arms Act,
1959, at PS Detection of Crime Branch, Ahmedabad
City, Gujarat. These aceused persons were arrested
for attempting to take revenge for post Godhara riots
in Gujarat;

Nine SIM] activists have been sentenced to two years
imprisonment and a fine of five hundred rupees has
been imposed on each under Section 10 read with
Section 3 ofthe Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act,
1967; and sentence of three years imprisonment and
a fie of five hundred rupees has been imposed on
each under Section 13 of the Unlawful Activities
(Prevention) Act, 1967, in case Crime No. 104/2008,
registered under Sections 10, 11, 13 of the Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 at PS-Chachaura,
Guna, Madhya Pradesh;

One SIMI activist, Md. Yunus had been sentenced
to two years imprisonment and a fine of twenty-five
thousand rupees has been imposed in case Crime
No. 135/2008, registered under Section 153A of the
Indian Penal Code and Sections 3, 10, 13 of the
Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 at PS-
Sadar Bazar, Indore, Madhya Pradesh;

Five SIMI activists have been sentenced to three
years imprisonment and fine of one thousand five
hundred rupees has been imposed on each under
Section 124A of 1.P.C; sentence of two years
imprisonment and a fine of one thousand rupees has
been imposed on each under Section 153Aof LP.C;
sentence of one year imprisonment and a fine of five
hundred rupees has been imposed on each under
Section 10 of the Unlawful Activities (Prevention)
Act, 1967; and sentence of five years imprisonment
and a fine of two thousand five hundred rupees has
been imposed on each under Section 13 of the
Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 in case
Crime No. 62/2008 of PS-Unhel, District-Ujjain,
Madhya Pradesh;

One SIMI activist, Muneer Deshmukh had been
sentenced to three years imprisonment and a fine of
five hundred rupees has been imposed in case Crime
No. 626/2001, registered under Sections 153B, 295A
of .P.C. read with Sections 10, 11, 13 of the Unlawful

Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 at PS-Habibganj,
Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh;

(x}  Six SIMI activists including Muneer Deshraukh have
been sentenced to three years imprisonment and a
fine of five hundred rupees has been imposed on
each, in case Crime No. 663/2000, registered under
Sections 153A, 153B of LP.C. at PS Shahjehanabad,
Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh. The prosecution had
contended that the accused have pasted posters in
Shahjehanabad locality of Bhopal on 22nd October,
2000 with the intention to create communal
disturbance;

(y) Three SIMI activists were sentenced to three years
rigorous imprisonment by the Court of First Class
ludicial Magistrate, District and Sessions Court,
Indore on 30th Auvgust, 2011 in case Crime No.
5/2009 of PS-ATS/STF, Indore, Madhya Pradesh,
registered under Sections 147, 149, [53A, 1538 of
I.P.C. read with Sections 3, 10, 13 of the Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967;

(z)  On 31st October, 2011, JMFC Court convicted two
SIMI activists and sentenced them to two years
imprisonment and fine of five hundred rupees has
been imposed on each for destructive activities to
disturb communal harmony in Gohalpur area in 1998
in case Crime No. 637/1998 registered under Section
I153A of L.P.C. at PS-Gohalpur, Jabalpur, Madhya
Pradesh.

8.  Onthe afore-noted grounds, the Central Government
formed an opinion that the activities of SIMI, for fulfilling
its objectives, are unlawful, detrimental to and disruptive
of the territorial integrity of India, promote enmity between
different communities and seriously threaten the security
of the State. The Central Government formed the opinion
that if the ‘unlawful activities” of the SIMI are not curbed
and controlled immediately, it will take the opportunity to:

(i) continue its subversive activities and re-organize its
activists who are still absconding;

(ii) disrupt the secular fabric of the country by polluting
the minds of the people by creating communal
disharmony;

(iii) propagate anti-national sentiments;

(iv) escalate secessionism by supporting militancy; and

(v) undertake activities which are prejudicial to the
integrity and security of the country.

Thus, in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section
(1) of Section 3 of the Act, the Central Government declared
SIMI as an ‘unlawful association® with immediate effect,
within the meaning of Section 2(p) of the Act for carrying
‘unlawful activity’ within the meaning of Section 2(0) of

- the Act. This was followed by a Notification under Section

4 of the Act, constituting the Unlawful Activities
(Prevention) Tribunal, which was received on Sth March,
2012. TheTribunal listed the reference for preliminary
hearing on 6th March, 2012.

9. On6th March, 2012, on consideration of the material
placed on record by the Cefnl:ral Government, the Tribunal
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issued notice under sub-section (2) of Section 4 of the Act '

to SIMI and some other activists of the organization to
Show Cause as {o why it be not declared an ‘unlawful
asspciation’ on the cause being shown by Union of India.
The notice was directed to be served in the following
manner:

1. By affixing a copy of the notification to some
conspicuons part of the office(s), if any, of the
Association;

1. By serving a copy of the notiﬁcatioﬁ, wherever
possible, on the principal office-bearers, if any, of
the Association;

111, The notice be also served by registered post/speed
post/courier;
IV. By proclaiming by beat of drums or by means of
¢ loudspeakers, the contents of the notification in the
area in which the activities of the Association are
ordinarily carried on;

V. By making an announcement over the radio from the
local or nearest broadcasting station of the All India
Radio;

V1. By pasting the notification on the Notice Board of
the office of the Deputy Commissioners at the
Headguarters of each of the Districts in the States,
where the activities of the Association are
undértaken; and

VIL. By publication in two National Newspapers in English
and in two vernacular newspapers of the respective
States in which the activities of SIMI are ordinarily
carried on,

10.  Pursuant to the directions given by the Tribunal, the
States of Andhra Pradesh, Delhi, Gujarat, Jharkhand,
Karnataka, Kerala, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashira.
Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand, West Bengal. Tamil
Nadu and Chhattisgarh filed their respective affidavii= of
service, putting un record the factum of service of notice.

1. On lithApril, 2012, Mr. Ashok Aggarwal along with
Mr 8. M. Khan; Mr. Mobin Akhtar and Ms, Sridevi Panikker,
Advocates, entered appearance on behalf of two erstwhile
members of the banned organization SIMIL, namely
Mr. Humam Ahmed Siddiqui, former President of SIMI
(UP zone): and Mr. Misbah-Ul-lslam, former member of
SIMI (West Bengal unit). It was stated by the {earned
counsel that Mr. | lumam Ahmed Siddiqui was served with
a copy of the notice whereas Mr. Misbah-UL-1slam got the
knowledge of these proceedings through the public notice.
It was turther submitted that since the organization has
been banned since 2001, it has not been in existence
thereafler and lhere are no office bearers or members of the
organization.

12. . The appearance on behalf of the two erstwhile
members of SIMI was objected to by Mr. A. S. Chandhiok
learned Additional Selicitor General on the ground that
Mr. Humam Ahmed Siddiqui and Mr. Misbah-Ul-Islam in
their individual capacities are not entitled to be represented
in these proccedings since it is only the association, its

office bearers or members who can object to the ban on the
association. The question of appearadzs of
Mr. Humam Abhmed Siddiqui and Mr. Misbah-Ul-lslam was
taken up on 16th April, 2012°and after hearing the learned
counsel for Mr. Humam Ahmed Siddiqui and Mr. Misbah-
Ul-Islam and the leamed Additional Solicitor General, this
Tribunal, having regard to the facts of the case and the
observations made in the previous report, permitted
Mr. Humam Ahmed Siddigui and Mr. Misbah-UL-Islam to
join and participate in the proceedings although it was
observed that the question of their locus will be decided in
the final report after hearing the parties. Pending the final
adjudication, they were also granied permission by the
Tribunal to cross-exemine the witnesses preduced by the
Central Government and to lead their evidence opposing
the ban.

13, On 18.5.2012, they filed their reply/statement of
objections/written statement under Scetion 4(2) of the Act.
It may, howsever, be periinent (0 note, at this stage, that the
said reply/statement of objections/written statement was
neither signad nor verifiad, 50 as to meet the basic legal
requirements for it (o be taken on record, although it was
suppuorted by tha affidavits of the applicants.

4.  However, de-hors, this technical deficiency and
legality of the said reply/statemant of objections/writien
statomenty, [t is, intar alis, swted In the preliminary
submissions that. ﬂ'Ml Tt hevera eriminal organization,
none of its aims ssd’ m a8 stated In its constitution,
are unlawfll orillogal, It ir ¢laimed that as a lawful
and law ahidlng assosiation of peraom, SIMI ceased to
L w the Central Government
that merely because
AR organization or
g been involved in
_ .' Pe organization or
association does. not beorme mn:td‘,ur suspected. It is
further clattned that the material relied upon by the Central
Government to Justify the ban on SINT undet Section 3(1)
of the Act, comprises of alleged confeasions/disclosure
statements by persons arrested in conngction with various
offences in several States. i ia suls njtted that such
statements cannot be takep & ‘svidenca’ In any sense of
the expression, belng mtrely stitements made to or recorded

by poflce officors uridir Sectlon 161/162 of the Code of

Crimlml me
Cl“ anly

stavesd that such statements
100 44 per Section 145 of
gimed thir Notification

/e any relevant

mnlent cause” and

that uranmis of s téo powers under
Section 3 of the At fapsniedly to invoke

the said powers.

5. ltia ﬁmharmfiwd fimsts narrated in the
K ; g, The ellegations in
the backgmund ROtE Are afmf # i ull of imaginary
names and places and devird’ giftie details. in the

absence of these details, notifi ﬁf ':-M“pﬁruccedings to
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the respondents is neither effective nor adequate. It isalso
stated that the notice issued by the Tribunal does not fulfil
the requirements of Section 4(2) of the Act as there is no
‘disclosure of the basis of the action’, as mandated by
Section 4(2) of the Act, and as explained by the Supreme
Court in Jamaat-e-Islami Hind Vs. Union of India, (1995) 1
SCC 428 case. It is submitted that the said notice does not
constitute ‘effective notice of the basis on which the
declaration is made’ and a reasonable opportunity to show
cause against the same, as required by virtue of the said
judgment ts not given. ILis, thus, elaimed that in the absence
of such disclosure the impugned Notification is bad in law
and is liable to be quashed, inter-alia, for violating the
fundamental right of the answering respondents’ under
Article 19{1){c), not being a reasonable restriction

permissible under Article 194} of the Constitution of India. -

16. It is alse claimed in the reply that the background
note makes allegations against a large number of Muslim
organizations and that none of these allegations are
substantiated in any manner. In these circumstances, the
only reasonable inference is that these allegations indicate
the bias of the Central Government against the Muslim
community. [t is also claimed that one such organization,
namely, Khair-e-Ummat Trust, which has been calied a front
organization of SIMI. has publicly protested against these
allegations and that this fact was even reported in the Press,
wherein the said Trust denied having any relationship with
SIML. '
17.  Another objection raised by the applicants/
intervenors is with regard to the absence of valid and
justifiable ground in the impugned Notification/
background note. It is claimed that the background note is
{ull of unnecessary and scandalized averments that can
serve no purpose. other than to embarrass the applicants/
intervenors. [t is submitted that the background note
contains allegations, averments and insinuations pertaining
10 the period prior to 5.2.2010 and thys offends the
principles ol res judicata and constructive res judicata,
apart from being, against the canons of judicial propriety.
It Iy clsimed that such a repetition of allegations, averments
and insinuaiions amounts to inviting this Hon'ble Tribunal
to sit in judgmentreview over the findings of the earlier
Fribunal.

18 - ¥ is further claimed that the allegations in the
buckground note are mala-fide and have been resorted to
for two purpuses, viz. (i) to prejudice this Tribunal against
SIMI and {ii) to target other.organizations, unconnected to
SiIML, from taking up any issues or causes that the
Government considgrs inconvenient. It is stated that there
is no material in the background note that would bring
S(MI within the mischief of Sections 2(0) and (p) of the
Act. The ban, it is claimed, is intended to insinuate an aura
of suspicion around the cssential practices of Islam as if
ihe practices themselves constitute uniawful activities and/
or that every person who performs these practices is guiity
of criminal conducrt until proven innocent. It is submitted
that such conduct violates the letter and spirit of the
comstitutionally guarameed Fundamental Rights.

19.  Itisclaimed that the activities of SIMI were alwa
open and lawful. There was not even an iota of secrecy
unlawful nature in its activities, There was no occasion
about 25 years of SIMI's existence where any violence
even strife or disturbance had occurred in any part of 1l
country as a result of any of its activities. It underio
several programmes, such as scholarship to the neec
students; career guidance to the students for admission
higher courses and several other social events. It is claim

“that SIMI, while it was in existence, never challenged 1l

territorial integrity of the country, nor did it state anythit
which would incite communal violence in the country. Tl
most outstanding contribution of SIMI has been in tl
field of'social services and in the field of relief work durii
natural and manmade calamities. It has served all class
of people. itrespective of caste or creed. SIMI has full fai
in [ndian judiciary and is a law abiding and lawf
association, It is claimed that from 1977 10 2001, SIMI has
distinguished record of oulslﬁ'nding serviees to a
communities in the context of a secular India, the object
which it unswervingly believes.

20, In the parawise reply, the answering appligant
interveners have denied the allegations against them :
given in the background note. It is also denied that SIMI
active in Andhra Pradesh, Gujarat. Kamataka, Keral
Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Rajasthan, Tamil Nad
Uttar Pradesh, West Bengal or-Bethi-lt is'also denied th
SIMI has undertaken any activity in the States of Assar
Bihar, Jharkhand or Uttarakhand.

21.  The answering applicants/interveners have als
denied, the allegations as false and fabricated, that SIM
has managed to keep itself alive through clandestir
activities or that SIMI regrouped its cadres and revivg
the organization through front organizations, clandestir
mecetings or through circulation of leaflets, posters «
magazines. Itis ¢laimed that these allegations are completel
devoid of any material particulars that would enable (k
applicants/interveners to answer the same. No details hay
been provided of the alleged clandestine activities or ho:
SIMI regrouped its cadres or revived the organizatior
which were the .ront organizations. foated to keep th
SIMI organization alive.

22. The contents of paragraph 34 are also labelled &
malicious and are denied. It is denied that during the perioc
since 5-2-2010, the activists/sympathizers of SIM
undertook any activities. It is claimed that no activitic
have been undertaken by or on behalf of SIMI since th
impaosition of first ban in September, 2001. It is furthe
specifically denied that the alleged SIMI activists o
sympathizers tried to regroup and/or were radicalizing an
brainwashing and/or instigating Muslims on account o
Ram Janam Bhoomi/Babri Masjid verdict delivered by th
Lucknow Bench of the Allahabad High Court and/o
furthering the objectives of SIMI. The applicants
intervenors have also denied the assertions of SIM
operating through the front organizations 5o as to continu
to work for the fulfilment of the objcets of SIMI.
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23. s, therefore, prayed that in the interest of justice,
the reference and the Notification of Central Government
dated 3-2-2012 declaring SIMI as an *unlawful association’
be cancelled.

24. Learned counsel representing Mr. Humam Ahmed
Siddiqui and Mr. Misban-Ul-Islam also filed various
interlocutory applications seeking, inter-alia, a direction to
hold the proceedings of the Tribunal at Delhi; supply of
legible, typed and English translated copy of all documents
relied upon by the Central Government; to confine the
proceedings of the Tribunal to the material forwarded to it
under Rule 5 of the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Rules,
1968 along with notification dated 3rd February, 2012; to
supply a complete list of witnesses along with documents
sought to be relied upon or proved by the Central
Government at least 15 days in advance of the date on
which the said witnesses are to be examined; and also
objecting to the manner in which, privilege is being claimed
by the Central Gevernment in respect of documents
submitted to the Tribunal in sealed cover and non-
disclosure of the contents of the sealed envelope to them.
The said interlocutory applications were heard“and
disposed of by the Tribunal from time to time.

25.  The Central Government, in their background note
claimed that the activities of the banned organization are
still continuing and the inputs were stated to have been
received from the following State Governments/Union
Territory Administration regarding the activities of SIMIL:
()  Andhra Pradesh,

(i) Madhya Pradesh,

(i) Maharashtra,

(iv) Gujarat,

(v) Delhi,

{vi) Kamataka,

(vii) Kerala,

(viii) Rajasthan,

(ix)  Tamil Nadu,

x)  Utar Pradesh,

(xi) West Benpal,

(xif) Assam,

(xiii) Bihar,

(xiv) Chhattisgarh,

{xv) Utiarakhand, and

(xvi) Jharkhand

26.  Apari from 30 new cases, the Union of India also
placed reliance on (i) certain old cases which, even though
cited & considered by the previous Tribunals, have
witnessed certain developments and progress afier the
report of the previous Tribunal, and (ii) cases which have
carlier been cited and considered by the previous Tribunals
wherein there is no progress in their status. 1t is stated that
the relevance of the old cases in these proceedings is to

show the continuity of unlawful activities by the banned
organization and its members in different parts of (he
country. P

27.  With a view to invite public representation in support
of or against the ban on SIMI, this Tribunal held its sittings,
apart from Delhi, at Trivandrum in Kerala; Udaipur in
Rajasthan; Kolkata in West Bengal; Bangalore in Kamataka;
Aurangabad and Mumbai in Maharashtra; Jabalpur and
Indore in Madhya Pradesh; Hyderubad in Andhra Pradesh;
Ahmedabad in Gujarat; and Madurai in Tamil Nadu, for the
purposes of recording of evidence on behalf of the
respective States and/or from members of the public. The
witnesses deposing before the Tribunal were cross-
examined by the leamed counselrepresenting Mr. Humam
Ahmed Siddiqui and Mr. MisbaffUl-Islam.

28. Before adverting to the appreciation of evidence
brought on record before the Tribunal, it would be
appropriate to deal with' some of the Jegal submissions
advanced by the parties on the issug of togus of Mr. Humam
Ahmcd Sigdiqui and Mr. MisbaRsUl-Islam to be represented
in these proceedings: the relevapey and the extent of
admissibility of the confesgional siatements or even
admissions purported to be mede by the accused persons
recorded before the police officers or while in police custody
and the claims of Privilege by the Union of India in respect
of secret documents. Each of thase submissions are dealt
with separately as under:~-

N Locus-Staadi of Humam Ahmed Siddigni and
Misbah-Uk-lalam ;

One of the main Issues raised by the leamed ASG.
Mr.Chandhiok, is with regaed to the locus of the applicants/
intervenors, Misbah-Ul-fslam and 11.A. Siddigui 1o
participate in these proceedings and their right to cross-
exumine the witheases produced by the UOL In this regard,
the learned ASG has referred to the definition of the terms
‘unlawful activity' as given in Section 2(o0) of the Act and
*unlawful association’ as given in Scction 2(p) of the Act.
The said definitions are reproduced for convenience of
reference:

“2(0) “Unlawfi activity”, in relation to an individual

or associalion, means any action taken by such

individual or association (whether by committing an
actor by words, either spoken or written, or by signs
or by visible representation or otherwise).—-

()  which is intended. or supports any claim, 1o
hiing sbout, on any ground whatsoever, the
cemion of a part of the territory of India or the

Kocussion of » pait of the reritory of India

- i Use Linon, or which incites any individual

roup of individuals to bring about such

“hocaaion; or

() whieh-disehims, guestions. disrupts or is
intended 10 dlsrupt the sovereignty and
territerial integrity of tndbs: or

gii)  whith cawsen o5 b5 inended to cause
disafTection agabsst b,
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2 (p) “unlawful association” means any

” association,—

" () which has for its object any unlawful activity,
or which encourages or aids persons to
undertake any unlawful activity, or of which
the members undertake such activity; or

(i)  which has for its object any activity which is
punishable under Section 153A or Section 153B
of the indian Penal Code (45 of 1860), or which
encourages; or aids persons to undertake any
such activity, or of which the members
undertake any such activity:

Provided that nothing contained in sub-clause
(ii) shall apply to the State of Jammu and Kashm ir.”

29 The learned ASG also referred to Section 4 of the
Uniawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967, which provides
for publicalion and service or notice on such association
and in such manner as the Central Government may think
fit. The learned ASG also referred to Section 4(2) of the Act;
especially emphasizing the word “skall call upon the
association affected by notice in writing to show cause”;
and the words “after calling for such further information as
it may consider necessary from the Central Government or
from any office bearer or member of the association’, used
in Section 4(3) of the Act to submit that it can only be an
‘office bearer’ or ‘a member of the association’ or the
association itself, which can claim the right to be
represented in the proceedings before the Tribunal
constituted in terms of Section 4 of the Act. It is contended
by the learned ASG that individuals, who may have had an
association with the banned organization earfier and have
since ceased to be associated or ¢laim to have detached
themselves from the association, cannot be permitted to
be represented in these proceedings as is being sought to
be contended by Mr. Aggarwal on behalf of Humam Ahmed
Siddiqui and Misbah- Ul-Islam. It was also contended that
alternatively, if one sees the reply filed by these two
applicants and the line of cross-examination conducted by
thet, it will leave no manner of doubt that they are actively
representing the bannod organization itself:

30. The learned ASG also argued thar the same
applicants/intervenors had appeared before the previous
Tribunal also, wherein on the plea of locus of these
applicants/intervenors, the Hon'ble Tribunal had treated
the objections/reply and cross-examination by the
applicants/intervenors as ohjections and cross-examination
for and on behalf of SIMI. Reference in this regard can be
made to para 92 of the notification dated 12-8-2010.

31.  Mr. Ashok Agparwal, the learned counsel for the
applicants/intervenors, on the other hand, submitted that
the provisions of the Act expressly permit not only an
office bearer or the member of the association but any
person, who may claim to be ‘aggrieved’ by an order
banning the organization to seek representation before the
Tribunal. It was submitted that Misbah-LI-Islam and H.A.
Siddiqui are entitled, not only on the basis of their being

members of the organization prior to the first ban il
September, 2001 but also on account of their being member
of the Muslim community and thus being ‘person
aggrieved’ by the notification banning SIMI, are entitle
to challenge the continuation of the ban in thes
proceedings and to cross-examine the witnesses bein
praduced by the Central Government in support of th
notification.

32.  Mr. Aggarwal, leamned counsel, in support of hi
contention that applicants/intervenors, H.A.Siddiqui anc
Misbah-Ul-Islam, would fall within the definition o
‘aggrieved person’ to seek participation in the proceeding
before this Tribunal, relied upon the judement in the cast
titled Prafulla Samantra Vs. Ministry of Environment &
Forest & Ors., 159 (2009) DLT 604.

33.  The learned ASG while replying 1o this submissior
of Mr. Aggarwal contended that so far as the applicatior
for revocation of ban on the organization and the
representation by any ‘person aggrieved’, as contemplatec
in Section 6(2) ofthe Act, is concerned. it refers to the pos
upholding of the ban by the Tribunal. In this regard he ha:
drawn the attention of the Tribunal to the language o
Section 6(2) of the Act.

34.  Iuis argued by the learned ASG that their objectior
to the locus of the applicants stems from their denial of the
alleged anti-national and secessionist activities attributable
to the Association and its members. 1t is submitted that th
applicants/intervenors must accept continuity of the
organization and its activities to claim the right to participat
in these proceedings. Referring 10 Section 41 of the A¢t
learned ASG argued that the existence of an Associatior
does not come to an end merely on the issue of :
Notification under Section 3(1) of the Act. The Associatior
is deemed to continue to exist so long as any actua
continuation for the purposes of such associatior
continues between any members thereof. It is argued tha

'SIMI has continued to indulge in anti-national activitics

as is evidenced by the large number of cases registerec
against its members especially even afier the last bar
imposed on it and therefore, the applicants/intervenor:
must identily themselves as members of a continuing
organization to claim the right 10 appear in these
proceedings and cross- examine the witnesses and 1o further
lead any evidence, which they might want. to oppose the
notification issued under Section 3(1) of the Act.

35. The learned counsel for the applicants/ intervenors.
on the other hand, has submitted that Misbah- Ul-Islamr
and H.A. Siddiqui are seeking participation in thesc
proceedings as independent ‘aggrieved persons® and they
acquire this right from the explicit provisions of the Aci
and the principle of natural justice. (1 is further comended
by him that the proceedings before the T'ribunal are public
proceedings and even the procedure adopted by the
Tribunal invites public representation in support of ot
against the imposition of ban on the organization. It was
contended that the continued ban affects the fundamental
right of the petitioners to form an association under Article



L -

THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY

[ParT [1—Sec. 3(i)]

19(1XC) of the Constitution. He, thus, contends that the
applicants'/ intervenors’ right to be represented in these
proceedings must be upheld.

FINDING:

36. | have carefully considered the submissions made
by the respective sides. Section 3 of the Act clearly lays
down that the Central Government on forming an opinion
that any association is or has become an unlawful
association has the discretion lo notify in the Official
Gazette, declaring such an associatton to be unlawful. Once
this exercise is done, it has the option to submit the said
Naotilication to the Tribunal constituted by it under Section
4(1) withi a period of thirty days for the purpose of
adjudication as 1o the correctness of its notification which,
in legal jargon, is called “sufficient cause” for banning the
organization and it is only on the approval by the said
Tribunal that the notification will have the effect. However,
1he Central Government also has the optien lo give
immediate effect to the notification by invoking the proviso
to Section 3(3) of the Act. Under Section 4(2) of the Act,
the Tribunal, on receipt of a reference, is required to call
upen the association by notice in writing to *show cause’
within a period of thirty days from the date of service of
such notice as to why the association should not be declared
untawful, Section 4(3) of the Act lays down that after
considering the cause shown by such association or the
office-bearers or members thereef, the Tribunal shall hold
an inquiry io the manner specified in Section 9 of the Act
and after calling for such further information as it may
consider necessary from the Central Govérnment ot from
any office bearer or member of the association, it shall
decide whether or not there is sufficient cause for declaring
an association to be unlawful.

37. A plain reading of the aforesaid section would show
that it is only the association, the office-bearers or the
members of the association who have the ‘locus’ 10 show
cause in response to the notice issued by the Tribunal,

38. The contention of Mr, Ashok Aggarwal that the
words ‘ofTice bearers’ or ‘the members” would also include
the ex-office bearers or the members thereof of the
association which is sought to be banned or which has
been banned is not at all plausible and convincing. This is
onvaccount of the fact that the foremost rule of interpretation
of a statute is the literal rule’. The literal rule of interpretation
is that if the legislature, in its wisdom, has passed n
legislation, it should be read in the way it has been passed
witheut adding or subtracting from the said statute or &
provision thereol. Thus, a provision or a section must be
interpreted literally in the first instance. If the litéral
interprefation leads to any ambiguity or any absurdity, only
then the applicability of the other rules of interpretation
would arise. In the instant case, in case Sections 4(2) and
4(3) of the Act are read literally, they do not admit of any
zmbiguity or absurdity. Therefore, there is no occasion to
follow any rule other than literal interpretation so as to
assume that the word ‘office-bearers' or ‘the members
thereof” includes the ex office-bearers or the ex-members.

By doing this, the Tribunal would not only be doing
violence to the Statute but would be adding &amething
which was perhaps not intended by the legistatire.

39. A perusal of Section 6 of the Act shows that the use
of the term ‘any person aggrieved’ is in the context of post
confirmation of the notification by the Tribunal. The said
Section 6 reads as-under:—

“6. Period of operation and cancellation of
notification.

(1)  Subject to the provisions of sub-section (2), a
notification issued under Section 3 shall, if the
declaration made therein is confirmed by the
Tribunai by an order made under Section 4,
remain in force for a period of two years from
the date on which the notification becomes
effective.

(2) MNotwithstanding anything contained in
sub-section (1), the Central Government may,
either on its own motion or on the application
of any person aggrieved, at any time, cancel
the notification issued under Section 3,
whether or not the deciaration made therein
has been conflrmed by the Tribunal.”

The jurisdiction under the aforesaid section to cancel
the notification is vested in the Central Government and.
not with the Tribunal. Therefore, the word *any person
aggrieved' as used in Section 8 of the Act would not be
controlling the interpretation of Section 4(3) se as to read
the word *office bearer® or ‘the members thereof”, to include
ex-office bearers or the ex- members.

40. So far as the judgment in Prafulla Samantra (supra),

cited by the learned counsel for the applicants/intervenors
is concerned, it is of no assistance 1o them. The judgment
is distinguishable on facts, in as much as it was considering
the right of a private person to challenge an action of the
Government in Public Interest Litigation in a writ petition,
as compared to the case in hand, wherc a reference has
been made (o the statutory tribunal lor determination of
the sufficiency of material 1o issue the notification banning
SIML.

41,  Accordingly, this contention of Mr. Aggarwal does
not have any merit. Therefore, the two individuals
represented by Mr. Aggarwal in their individual capacity,
in my vlew, do not have any right to appear, participate and
cross-exaiming the witnasses.

41 The aforexsid discussion, however, should not be
intwrpreted 1o mean that the Tribunal does not bave the
powet (o pernit any member of the public to participate in
the proceedings (0 case It deems that it may help the
Tribunal In deciding the question referred 1o itas to whether
thé validity of the notifieation should be upheld or not.
This reasoning stemy fom (ha fect that the proceedings of
the Tribunal in tervhis of sub-setion (7) of Section 5 of the
Act are judiciat procesdings for deciding the list between
the panies after racoyding of svldence, which requires
appreciation of avidence. 1 hae the powers of the Civil
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Court under Sections 6 & 9 of the Act. It issues public
notices #iting objections from the association and its
office bearers and members to show cause as to why the
ban be not continued, Therefore, in such circumstances it
may permit desirous members to participate in the
proceedings.
43. 1t would be appropriate at this stage to refer to Section
4| of the Act reparding continuance of an Association.
The said Section reads as under :—
“41. Continuance of association - An association
shall not be deemed to have ceased to exist by reason
only of any formal act of its dissolution or change of
name but shall be deemed to continue so long as any
actual combination for the purposes of such
association continues between any members
thereof ™
44, A perusal of the aforesaid section shows that an
association shall not be deemed to have ceased 1o exist
only by a formal act of its dissolution or change of name
but shall be deemed to continue so long as any actual
combination for the purposes of such association
continues between any members thereof. On the basis of
the aforesaid submissions, Mr. Chandhiok has contended
that although SIMI as an organization has been banned in
September, 2001 as having been declared unlawful
nssociation but still on ground it has been functioning
surreptitiously through various frontal organizations for
which evidence has been brought on record by the UOL.
43, The language of the provisions of the Act is drafted

in such & manner that the Tribunal is required to see only

the ‘sufficiency of the cause’ for the Central Government
10 declare the association to be unlawful and conversely,
the onus is put on the association, either as a body of
persons or as office-bearers or even as members, to show
cause as 1o why it should not be declared as unlawful.
Being former office-bearers of the association, they were
permitted to cross-examine the witnesses and participate
in the proceedings but if one examines the tone and the
tgnor of the objections/reply filed by them and the entire
thread of croms-examination conducted for and on behalf
of these two applicants/intervenors, it would clearly show
that they were not cross-examining the witnesses in their
individual capacities but, in effect, they are representing
~the benned organization itself. As a matter of fact, it is
suITogade ropresentation by them on behalf of the banned
otganization SIMI.
46, | find considerable merit in thc submission of the
learned A S that the applicants/intervenors as individuals
cannot be permitted to participate in the proceedings and
cross examine the witnesses produced by the Central
Govemment, but since this is a surrogate representation
by them for the banned organization SIMI, they are allowed
to participaté in the proceedings as members of a
*continuing organization’
{Ii Confessional Statements before Police Authorities
Another argument advanced by the learned counsel
Mr: Agparwal is that the primary evidence led before the

Tribunal by the UQI is the confessional statements recordsd
by the police officers while the accused persons were in
their custody. [n this regard he has referred to the testimony
of PW-2, PW-6, PW-17, PW-27, PW-28, PW-29, PW-30,
PW-31, PW-33, PW-35, PW-38, PW-40 & PW-4|. 11 s
contended by the leamed counsel that such evidence is
not admissible and is liable to be rejected by the Tribunal
in view of Sections 25 & 26 of the Indian Evidence Act,
1872,

47, It is contended by the learmed counsel that the term
*‘as far as practicable” in Rule (3) of the Unlawful Activities
{Prevention) Rules, 1968 must be read {0 mean siricl
adherence to the provisions of the Evidence Act and, thus,
no sanctity can be attached to the confessional statements

recorded by the police officers and that their statements be

not entertained and relied upon by the Tribunal.

48. Elaborating this argument further, it was contended
by him that the major component of cvidence which has
been produced by the Union of India is the statcments/
confessions of the various accused persons recorded by
the police ofticers or while the accused were in police
custody and these confessions or so calted disclosure
statements have allegedly lead to various recoveries. It is
contended that all these recoveries shown from the accused
persons or at their behest are planted and fake recoveries.
Further, merely because some recoveries have been effected
from some accused persons does not establish the
complicity of the organization SIMI. Another argument
which was advanced was regarding -the statements
recorded under Section 161 Cr.R.C. It was contended that
these statements are also inadmissible in evidence and
they, at best, could be used for the purpose of the
contradiction under Section 145 of the Evidence Act.

49.  Sections 25 & 26 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872,
read as under :—

*235. Confessions 10 police officer not to be proved -
No confession made to a policce officer, shall be
proved as against a person accused of any offence.

26. Confession by accused while in custody of police
not to be proved against him - No confession made
by any person whilst he is in the custody.of a police-
officer, unless it be made in the immediate presence
of a Magistrate, shall be proved as against such
person.™
50. Leamed counsel referred to the decision of the Apex
Court in Khatri & Ors. (IV) Vs. State of Bihar & Ors., (1981)
2 SCC 493 10 contend that statements recorded before the
police authorities can be considered in evidence under
Section 162 of the Evidence Act only if they are otherwise
relevant under the provisions of the Indian Evidence Act
and since Sections 25 & 26 of the Indian Evidence Act
render such statements inadmissible, the Tribunal should
not entertain such statements while assessing the
‘sufficiency of cause’ shown by the Central Government.
Learmed counsel referred to the following observations of
the Apex Court in Khatri's case:=



12 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY

[Parr [1-Sec. 3(ii)]

“It is obvious, therefore, that even a statement made
before a police officer during investigation can be
produced and used in evidence in a writ petition
under Article 32 provided it is relevant under the
Indian Evidence Act and Section 162 cannot be urged
as a bar against its production or use. The reports
" submitted by Shri L. V. Singh setting forth the result
of his investigation cannot, in the circumstances, be
shut out from being produced and considered in
evidence under Section 162, even ifthey referto any
statements made before him and his associates during
investigation, provided they are otherwise relevant
under some provision of the Indian Evidence Act.”

51. " Learned counsel for the applicants/intervenors next
submitted that the so-called confessional statements being
relied upon by the Central Government for issuing the
notification under Section 3(1) of the Act are carved by a
threat of injury 1o the maker of the statement since the
maker of the statement is at the mercy of the police officers.
it is argued that confession carved by any inducement,
threat or promise, proceeding from a person in authority is
liable to be excluded from evidence and that the Tribunal
while weighing the evidence should discard such
statements. .eamed counsel, in support of his arguments,
referred to the following observations made by the Apex
Court in State (NCT of Delhi) Vs. Navjot Sandhu, (2005) 11
SCC600:—
“...onnnn T it appears to the count that the making of
the confession was caused by any inducement, threat
or promise proceeding from a person in authority,
the confession is liable to be excluded from evidence.
The expression “appears™ connotes that the court
need not go to the extent of holding that the threat,
etc. has in fact been provided. If the facts and
circumstances emerging from the evidence adduced
make it reasonably probable that the confession
could be the result of threat. inducement or pressure,
the court will refrain from acting on such confession,
even if it be a confession made to a Magistrate or a
person other than a police officer. Confessions
leading to discovery of a fact which is dealt with
under Section 27 is an exception to the rule of
exclusion of confession made by an accused in the
custody of police officer. Consideration of a provided
confession affecting the person making it as well as
the co-accused is provided for by Section 30. Briefly
and broadly, this is the scheme of the law of evidence
vis-a-vis confessions, The allied provision which
needs to be noticed at this juncture is Section |62
Cr.P.C, It prohibits the use of any statement made by
any person to a police officer in the course of
investigation for any purpose at any enquiry or trial
in respeet of any offence under investigation.............. 4
52.  Learned counsel also argued that the statements
made before the police authorities do not inspire confidence
and suffer from the vice of threat and coercion and thus
inadmissible under Section 24 of the Evidence Acl. Such

statements are, in most cases, retracted by the accused
persons in court, which shows that they are not ‘voluntary’
in character. In support of the submissions, leamed counsel
referred to the observations of the Apex Court in Tahsildar
Singh Vs, State of U.P, AIR 1959 SC 1012:
“It is, therefore, seen that the object of the legislature
throughout has been to exclude the statement of a
witness made before the, police during the
investigation from being made use of at the tria) for
any purpose, and the amendments made from time to
time were only intended to make clear the said object
and 1o dispel the cloud cast on such intention.”
53. Leamed counsel Mr. Aggarwal contends that in view
of'the clear mandate of the law and the pronouncements of
the Apex Court, the confessional statements made by the
accused persons in particular cases, which are sought to
be relied upon by the Union of India are not admissible in
the present proceedings before the Tribunal for
adjudicating the reference.
54. Inreply, leamed ASG al the outsel, referred to-Rulc
3(1) of the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Rules, 1968, to
submit that the rules of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 are
not applicable stricto senso to the proccedings before this
Tribunal and not more than ‘as far as practicable’. It is
submitted that the term ‘as far as practicable’ implies that
the provisions of the statute do not apply ta the
proceedings in their entirety and must be interpreted
loosely to examine the ‘sufficiency of cause’ for issue of
the notification under Section 3(1) of the Act. [n support of
the submissions, leamed ASG relied on the judgment of
the High Court of Bombay in Keshrimal Jivji Shah & Anr,
Vs. Bank of Maharashtra & Ors., (2004) 122 Camp. Cases
83} (Bombay), wherein the Division Bench has observed
as under:- -
“Wherever legislature uses words such as ‘as far as
possible’, ‘as far as practicable’ etc. the intent ts not
to apply the provisions in their entircty.”
in this regard, leamed ASG has also referred to the
decision in Abdul Majid Haji Mahomed Vs. P. R. Nayak,
AlR 1951 Bombay 440, wherein the Division Bench of the
Bombay High Court in Para 27 of the judgment has observed
that “‘as far as practicable” can only mean and must be
construed to mean in to the extent that it is practicable®,
55.  l.carned ASG also referred to Section 2 of the Act 1o
contend thut the words ‘so far as may be” used in the said
Section de-fetter the Tribunal from the provisions of the
Civil Procedure Code and the Evidence Actand empower it
to evolve its own procedure to assess the ‘sufficiency of
cause’, These provisions, it is argued, allow the Tribunal
ta modify, change and regulate its own procedure, keeping
in view the practical requirements. nced and necessity.
Learned ASG referring to Section 18 of the Indian Evidence
Act, argued that statements whether confessional or made
under Section 161 Cr.P.C. before the police authorities by
members of the SIMI organization are admissions made on
behalfof SIMI and are, therefore, admissible in view of the
express language of Section 18
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56. It is #urther argued by the learned ASG that the
appreciation of evidence by the Tribunal in a reference
under the Act is not a ‘trial’ against the accused persons
and the evidence led by the Central Government in these
proceedings cannot form the basis in the trial proceedings.
Therefore, the appreciation of evidence by the Tribunal
being collative in nature and in view of the express provision
of Section 18 ofthe Indian Evidence Act, 1872, this Tribunal
can certainly examine and form its opinion to answer the
relerence on the basis, inter-alia, of confessional
statements made by the accused persons before the police
authoritics while being in police custody.
FINDING :
ST The aforesaid arguments raise an issue as to what
kind of cvidence can possibly be admissible in respect of a
Banned srpasization, which 15 continuing to mdulge in a
surreptitious manncr in anti-national activities and how far
the strict rules of evidence can be read in this arena by the
Pribunal 10 arrive at its opinion and te answer the reference.
[t alse entails examination of the question of quantum of
provl which the Tribunal is required to see for the purpose:
ol answering the reference as to whether there is
"sulficiency of cause’ for continuation of ban. In this regard
auflice it would be to here mention that this question is no
more res inlegra. B has been settled by the Supreme Court
that the inquiry before the Tribunal is only an “inquiry’ and
nol  triw), therefore the guantum of proof which will be
raquired i» only of preponderance of probability and not
boyond reasonable doubt and secondly the evidence
which may be taken into consideration by the Tribunal is
nof only the legal evidence but the other material also,
which may be produced before the Tribunal. Reliance in
thus rogard can be placed on Jamaat-e-Islami Hind’s case
tsupin)
S8 1 have carefully considered the submissions made
by the learned counsel and have gone through the
judgments | have also gone through the previous
Nautifications, especially the Nolification dated 12-2-2010
tasped by (he Contral Government, upholding the ban fora
pertod of two yeurs on the basis of the reference of the
Notification No, 5:0. 544(E) dated 5th March, 2010 1ssued
by the Government of [ndia, declaring S1MI as an Unlawful
Awsocintion. 1t may be pertinent here to mention that once
{he Gurette Notification on the basis of the repart of HMJ
Sanjiv Khanna is issued, the said Notification has become
# public document in pursuance to Section 74 of the Indian
Lvidence Act, 1872, which can be proved by resort to
Section 78, Sections 74 and 78 read as under:—
“74. Public documents —The following documents
are public documents:—
(1) documents forming the acts, or records of the
acts—
(iy of the sovereign authority,
(i) ofofficial bodies and tribunals, and
() ofpublic officers, legislative, judicial and
executive, of any part of India or of the
Commonwealth, or ofa foreign country;

(2) public records kept in any State of private
documents.

78. Proof of other official documents.—The following
public documents may be proved as follows:—

(1) Acts, orders or notifications of (the Central
Government) in any of its departments, (or of
the Crown Representative) or of any, State
Govemment or any department of any State
Government—by the records of the
departments, certified by the head of those
depantments respectively,

Or by any document purporting to be printed
by order of any such Government (or, as the
case may be, of the Crown Representative)™.

59. A perusal of the aforesaid Sections would show that
ongce a notification is issued and # is proved as established,
this being a public document, the Tribunal, the Court or
any other judicial body is entitled to take judicial notice of
the said notification. Further, this notification has been
proved by Ms. Rashmi Goel, Joint Secretary (HR), Ministry
of Home Affairs. This Tribunal has taken judicial notice of
the Notification dated 12-8-2010 issued by the Central
Government, and it is noticed that the submissions, urged
by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal before this Tribunal with regard
to the relevancy and admissibility of the evidence in the
context of confessions recorded by the police officers,
hearsay evidence and the recoveries purported to have
been effected in pursuance to Section 27 of the Indian
Evidence Act, 1872, are almost a re-run of the submissions
which were urged before the previous Tribunal. Hon'ble
Mr. Justice Sanjiv Khanna had passed a detailed order
dealing with each of these submissiens as well as the
judgments cited by the learned counsel. These are
contained in paras 33 1o 72 of the Notification dated
12-8-2010. Nothing new has been urged by the: learned
counsel. Therefore, [ do not find myself, in any manner,
being persuaded, so as to differ with the reasoning which
has been arrived at by the said Tribunal. Suffice it would
be here to mention that the fallacy with regard o the
submissions made by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal can be
illustrated by one simple point. Mr. Ashok Aggarwal has
put too much of premium on the submission that a
confession which is made by an accused to a police officer
ar, for that matter, while in police custody, is not admissible.

60. It is correct that Sections 25 & 26 of the Indian
Evidence Act, 1872 lay down that the confessions made in
certain contingencies are not admissible, but the bar is
very clearly against the use of such confessions against
the accused persons making such confessions during the
course of its trial. A reading of the said two sections in
conjunction with Section 18 makes such statements good
enough as a material for reliance purposes of this Tribunal
to assess the sufficiency of the cause. Even the case law
cited by learned counsel for the applicants/intervenors,
clearly recognizes this distinction between use of such
statements against the accused persons and their use in
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collateral proceedings. In the case of Khatri & Ors. {supra),
the Apex Court has categorically held that statements before
police officers during investigation cannot be shut out
from being considered in evidence under Section 162,
provided they are otherwise relevant under some provisions
of the Indian Evidence Act. As observed earlier, this
Tribunal is not réStricted in its power to adopt its own
procedure, so s to assess ‘sufficiency of cause’ by
weighing of the evidence brought before it by a fair
procedure. .

61.  Accordingly, | am of the considered opinion that the
judgments which have been relied upon by Mr. Ashok
Aggarwal, detailed hereinabove, are not applicable to the
facts of the present case. In addition to this, there is another
point of distinciion on the basis of which the judgments,
which have been:relied upon by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal, can
be ignored as not applicable to the facts of the present
case. This reasoning is that although the judgments, which
have been rslied ipon by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal, lay down
cerfain poinis of law in the context of the facts reported
therein but the Supreme Court has umpteen times laid down
that while laying down the law in a particular case, the
applicability of the said law to the case in hand should not
be done in a mathematical manner, like as is done in the
case cf theorems. In such contingencies, the facts of the
reported judgment must be correlated to the facts of the
case in hand. The judgments, which have been relied upon
by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal; are essentially dealing with the
admissibility of confessions, the admissions, the
stalements made by the accused persons while in police
custody, in the context of the criminal trial, while in the
instant case, there is no such requirement and what has to
be determined by the Tribunal is as to whether there is
sufficiency of material to confirm the ben or not. Reliance
in this regard can be piaced on Haryana Financial
Corporation Vs. Jagdamba Oil Mills, 2002 (3) SCC 496 and
Sushil Suri Vs. CBI & Anr, AIR2011 SC 1713.

Accordingly, the piea of the applicants/intervenors
to disregard evidence brought on record by way of
confessional statements orstatement made to police officer
under Section 161 Cr.P.C. is rejected.

(i) Claim of Privilege by Uniow of ludia (L.A. No. 13/
2012)

Another contention raised by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
learned counsel representing the applicants/|otervenors,
is that the Central Government cannot claim any privilege
with respect 1o the evidence adduced before the Tribunal
by way of documents placed in a sealed envelope. It is
submitted that either the contents of the sealed documents
be disclosed to the applicants/intervenors or the Tribunal
should disregard all such evidence produced before the
Tribunal during its sittings in different States and by the
Central Government at Delhi. In this behalf, the applicants/
intervenors have also filed 1A No.12/2012, ebjecting to the
manner in which the privilege is claimed by the Central
Government and seeking directions that the Central
finvarnment must file affidavits. clearly stating the nature

of each of the documents on which privilege is claimed as
also the grounds for secking non-disclosure -of such
information to the applicants/intervenors. The learned
counsel claims that such withholding of information placed
before the Tribunal from the applicants/intervenors amounts
to violation of the principles of natural justice and also
their right to challenge all such material to oppose the
notification issued under Section 3(1) of the Act. It is argued
that the alibi of public interest to withhold disclosure of
information to the applicants/intervenors amounts to
jeopardizing their right to effectively participate and contest
the proceedings on behalf of the applicants/intervenors.
Referring to the decision of the Supreme Court in Jamaat-¢-
Istami Hind (supra), it is submitted that the affected
association or those who represent it before the Tribunal,
are entitled to a copy of the entire material, based on which
the Central Government is purported to have formed its
opinion to ban the said organization, cxcept 1o the extent it
intends to claim privilege, in order 1o give the affected
party a praper opportunity to show cause against the same.
Reliance is also placed on the decision of the Apex Court in
Sudhir Kumar Vs. State of Punjab, AIR 196] SC 495 10
submit that each claim of privilege must be founded upon
an affidavit, clearly stating the nature of the documents
and the grounds for seeking non-disclosure. It is submitted
that the claim of privilege cannol cven be considercd,
much less granted, unless the prescribed procedure is
followed.

62.  Itisargued by the learned counscl that any privilege,
which is to be claimed by the Union of India, has to be
done in accordance with the provisions of Section 123 of
the Indian Evidence Act, 1872, In other words, it was
contended that the mode of claiming the privilege is
prescribed in Section 123 of the Evidence Act, 1872 itself.
This plea was raised by the leamed counsel in the context
of the fact that at a number of places where the Tribunal
had gong for the purpose of recording of evidence, the
witnesses or the high officials of the stale concemned had
handed over sealed envelopes for the purpose of perusal

-by the Tribunal to satisfy itself regarding the *sufficiency

of cause’ for the continuation of the ban.

63. It will be pertinent here to reproduce Section 123 of
the Indian Evidence Act, 1872, which reads as under:

“123. Evidence #s to affairs of State.—No one shall
be permitted to give any evidence derived from
unpublished official records relating to any affairs of
Siate, excopt with the permission of the officer at the
boad of the department concerned. who shali give or
withhold uch permission as he thinks fit”

The learmed counsel also sought to rely on Scction
162 of the Indish Evidence Act, 1872 to support his
argument for disciosure of all documents.

64.  On the strength of the aforesaid statutory provisions
of the Evidente Act, Mr. Aggarwal has referred to paragraph
15 &17 of judgmsent of the Apex Court in R.K. Jain Vs.
Union of Indin & Ores., ATR 1993 SC 1769 to contend that
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before any privilege is claimed by the UOI, not only there
has, 1o be an application, but there has to be an affidavit by
the liead of the Department, stating therein that the
disclosure of the contents of the document or the document
itself to the opposite side would not be in public interest.
l.earned counsel laid emphasis on the following
observations of the Supreme Court: —

i 1t is now settled law that the initial claim for
public interest immunity to produce unpublished
official records for short *State documents’ should
be made through an affidavit generally by the
Minister concerned, in his absence by the Secretary
of the department or head of the department. It the
latter case the court require an affidavit of the
Minister himself to be filed. The affidavit should
indicate that the documents in question have been
carclully read und considered and the deponent has
been satsfied, supported by reasons or grounds
valid and germane, as to why it is apprehended that
public interest would be injured by disclosure of the
document summoned or called for............"

65, Since in the instant case, it was contended that
neither the application nor the affidavit of the Head of the
Department has been filed, therefore, no privilege can be
granted or can be claimed by the UO! in respect of the
documents which are given at different hearings in a sealed
cover, Mr. Aggarwal also referred to 8. P. Gupta Vs. Union
of India & Ors., AIR 1982 SC 149 to make a similar
submission,

06 As against this, Mr. Chandhiok, the learned ASG,
has contended that neither an application nor an affidavit
is required to be filed for claiming privilege. It was
contended that proviso to Section 3(2) makes it amply clear
that the Central Government is empowered not to disclose
any (act which it considers to be against public interest to
disclgse, meaning thereby, that if the Central Government
i of the opinion that the disclosure of any fact to the
banned organization or to any of its members, or for that
malter to the public in general will be against public interest,
it cen withhold its disclosure. The language of the section
is couched, it was contended, in such a manner which
does nol entertain any doubt that any application or any
affidavit by uny competent authority is required to be filed
1o ¢labm privilege.

67. It was also observed that this information could not
and ought not to be disclosed to the respondents because
apart from the source of information being leaked it would
also jeopardize the life and property of certain witnesses or
individuals: So far as Section 162 of the Evidence Act is
concerned, it was contended that the same does not apply
10 the facts of the case at all.

68. | have carefully considered the submissions made
by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal as well as Mr. A.S. Chandhiok.

6. Section 5{6) of the Act gives the powers lo the
Tribunal for the purpose of making an inquiry under this
Act in order to answer the reference made to the Tribunal

under Section 4 of the Act. Sub-section (6) of Section 5
reads as under:—-

“5. Tribunal—

(6) The Tribunal shall, far the purpose of making an
inguiry under this Act, have the same powers as are
vested in a civil court under the Code of Civil
Procedure, 1908 (5 of 1908) while trying a suit, in
respect of the following matters, namely:—

(a) the summoning and enforcing the attendance
of any witness and examining him on oath;
(b) the discovery and production of any document
or other material object producible as evidence:
(c) the reception of evidence on affidavits;

(d) the requisitioning of any public record from
any court or office;

(e) the issuing of any commission for the
examination of witnesses.”

Rule 3(2) of the Uniawful Activities (Prevention]
Rules, 1968 lays down as under :-—

*3. Tribunal and District Judge to follow rules of
evidence,—

[(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in the
Indian Evidence Act, 1872 (1 of 1872), where any
books of account or other documents have beer
produced before the Tribunal or the Court of the
-District Judge by the Central Government anid such
books of account or other documents are claimed by
that Government to be of a confidential nature then
the Tribunal or the Court of the District Judge, as the
case may be, shall not,—

(@) make such books of account or othe
documents a part of the records of thy
proceedings before it; or

(b) allow inspection of, or grant a copy of, the
whole of or any extract from, such books o
account or other documents by or to am
person other than a party to the proceeding
before i.]"

70. A perusal of the aforesaid Section and Rule clearh
shows that although the principles of the Indian Evidenc:
Act, 1872 are made applicable for admissibility an
relevancy of evidence produced before the Tribuna
adjudicating the reference under the Act, but the same an
not applicable in stricto senso. What is to'be followed an
the broad principles of evidence which are conforming t
the principles of natural justice and fair play.

71.  Thus, there isa certain amount of laxity and departur
made under the Act for the reason that the provisions o
the Act are extraordinary and preventive in nature. Th
preamble of the Act clearly states that the Act has bee
passed by way of a special enactment for effectiv.
prevention of certain unlawful activities of individuals an:
associations as well as dealing with terrorist activities an
for the matters connected therewith. The statement o
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objects and reasons underlines the purpose of the
enactment empowering Parliament to impose, by law,
reasonable restrictions in the interest of the sovereignty
and integrity of India, on the freedom of speech and
expression: right to assemble peacefully and without arms;
and right to form association. In addition to this, if these
two provisions are seen in the proper perspective; it will
give an impression that the provisions of the Act, which
are passed at a later point of time, are laying down its own
procedure for the purpose of taking evidence in order to
determine the sufficiency of grounds for upholding the
ban. It is in this context that the power has also been given
to the Union of India to withhold the information or matertal
from the aggrieved party. Although it has to be given to
the Tribunal te show and determine the objectivity of its
decision. This procedure does not call for any affidavit by
the Head of the Department, This provision is also at
variance with Section 123 ofthe Evidence Act.

72, Misscitled law of interpretation that where the special
Act is passed and prescribed as special procedure under
the said Act itself, then that procedure has to necessarily
supersede the general provision of law or the general act if
it deals in the same field. Reliance in this regard can be
placed on the Latin maxim gencralia speciglibus non
derogant.

73. 1t would be pertinent-at this stage to notice the
observations made by the Supreme Court in Jamaat-e-Islami
Hind (Supra) on the issue of non-disclosure of information
by the Central Governmesit in public interest. In para 20 of
the judgment, the Apex Court has observed as under:—

W The requirement of natural justice in a case of

this kind must be tailored to safeguard public interest

which must always outweigh every lesser interest.

Thus, subject to the non-disclosure of information

which the Central Government considers to be against

the public interest to disclose all information and
evidence relied on by the Central Government to
support the declaration made by it of an association
to be unlawful, has to be disclosed to the association
to enable it to show cause against the same. Subject
to the requirement of public interest which must
undoubtedly outweigh the interest of the association
and its members, the ordinary rules of ¢vidence and
requirenient of natural justice must be followed by
the Tribunal in making the adjudication under the

Act,”

‘Thus. it may be noticed that principles of natural
justice must remain subservient to public interest, so facay
disclosure of secret and confidential information is
concerned.

74. In the light of the aforesaid discussion, | hold that
neither any application for seeking privilege nor any
affidavit of the Head of the Department is required te be
filed by the Union of India for grant of the privilege by the
Tribunal. The judgments which have been relied upon by
the leamed counsel Mr. Aggarwal are distinguishable on

facts and do not lay down that sensitive information cannot
be withheld from the parties to a lis. So far as Section 162 of
the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 is concerned, that is not
applicable to the facts of the case, as it deals with altogether
a different situation.

SEALED ENVELOPES:

75, During the course of proceedings of the Tribunal, 8
s¢aled envelopes were submitted at Kerala, Udaipur,
Kolkata, Mumbai, Jabalpur, Ahmedabad, Hyderabad and
Indore. Apart from these, PW-42, Ms. Rashmi Goel,
appeared as a witness on behalf of the Union of India and
handed over 9 sealed envelopes. I have perused the
contents of all these sealed envelopes, except for the sealed
envelope which has been given at Ahmedabad, which
contains the documents only in Gujarati, without any
English translation, could not be perused by the Tribunal.
The Tribunal also did not consider itto be necessary to get
the documents translated on account of paucity of time.

76.  After perusing the information which has been
furnished in the form of CDs, VCDs, audio CD, pamphlets,
book, magazine and literature, [ am further satisfied that
the information, which has been fumished to this Tribunal
in the sealed envelopes, is sensitive information which
cannot be disclosed to the applicants, as it will derail not
only the investigations of the cases, which are going on,
but will also disclose to them the various sources of
information and may even threaten the life and liberty or
even property of such witnesses who have furnished the
said information. Apart from this, these pieces of
information, if perused by any reasonable law knowing
person; he would be left with no manner of doubt in his
mind that the organization in question has been banned in
September, 2001 but inreality, its ex-office bearers, activists
and sympathisers are trying all their efforts to regroup,
recruit and indogtrinate the techno savvy young persons
with impressionable age to indulge in illegal and unlawful
activity within the definition of Section 2(o) and 2(p) of the
Act,

Accordingly, the application 1.A. 12/20i2 of the
applicants, Mr. Humam Ahmed Siddiqui and Mr. Misbah-
Ul- Islam, seeking directions that the Central Government
must file affidavits, clearly stating the nature of each of the
documents on which privilege is claimed as also the
grounds for seeking non-disclosure of such information to
the spplicants/intervenors, is rejected.

Indivikiual Actions cannot be attributed to the Association
siready Bunned

71 Another yrgument advanced by leamed counse| for
the applicanta/interveners is that the incidents relied upon
by the Central Governinent in support of the Notification
banning SIMI are at best individual incidents of crime and
hnve no relntion whatsoever with the banned organization,
It is further urgued that the ban on the organization is in
violation of thelr right 1o form association as enshrined in
Articles 19¢1 )¢} of the Constitution of India. He has
submitted tha the individual cases ot erime are being tried
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In courts of competent jurisdiction and sich cases hive
no relaldon whatsoever with the organization.

M The aforesawd argument ol the learmned coumsel wiil
peed 10 be tested on three counts, viz., (1) whether the
incidentsienmes are of such nature which are capable of
being committed without support froun the organization of
which they claim 1o be menzbers: {11 whether the maidents
crimes are ssodated in nature or are a part of a larger web
heing created, which is aimed at causing lerror and
destabilization of the State; and (i) whether the association
hag at the firstavailable opportunity delineated itselt from
such incidents by publicly disassociating itselt’ from the
incidentsicrimes,

79 Learned ASG in this connection has ance again
referted 1o the definition of ‘unlawful activity” as contained
i Scction o) of the unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act,
1967, which provides that an unlaw ful activity, i relation
o an individual or o association, means any action taken
by such individoal or association which is intended or
supports any ¢laim te bring about on any ground
whatsgever the cession or the secession of & part of the
territory ol India from the Union or which incites any
individual or group of individuals to bring aboul such
cession or sceession: or which disclaims, questions,
diseupts or is intended to disrupt the sovercignty and
lervitorial integrity of India, or which cases or is intended
Lo cause disaffection against India. |.earned counse] argued
thit on a mere literal interpretation of the definition of the
term wnlivwfutactivity’. the argument advanced by learned
enunsed for the applicants/inierveners must fail, -

81 Ttis submitied that the aloresaid definition does not
ey any distinetion between ar Association and its
members and hoth are equally responsible for the acts of
crime and anti-national getivity committed by the members.
B iy submitted that an Association is nothing but a group
of people with common objectives and. as such, the acts of
the miembers, committed in pursuance of thelr commeon
ohjectives, represent the acts ol the Association and no
e else s tunther argued that the Association cannot
be permitied o adopl the convenient alibi of disassociating
fisell trom any member who s cauzht m an act covered
witkin the delimiion ol unlawlul activity,
,.m; A Hierd reading of the: deliniton of “unlawiul activity”
i the Unlaw ) Activities { Prevention) Act, 1967 coupled
with the examinstion ol the evidence which has been
Braught on record and the documents made available to
the fribunal under sealed cover tead 1o the conclusion
that these incidents are carried owt surreptitiously, as a
pant of i larger well-planned congpiracy, to eainy out terror
related activities in the name ot Jehad by members of the
araanization even though their outward claim may be that
the organization has ceased to exist afler September, 2001
aniel there are no activities carried owt by their cadres which
can be atributed to the organization. IFurthermore, these
ticulents brought on record during the examination of
withesses cannot be termed as isolated incidents of crime.
'here ave proved interlinks and linkages between the

dilferent incidents, whick establsh the coomanniiity o
purpuse of each o the incidents i e foed § Ao
the specilfied objucts of the Associaton. Furilorn tothing
has been browght on record to show that the Association
has at any paine of lime o at any stagye msds aty eitor 1o
disown itselt from such acis

Thus, vn all the three counts, the srpguwant advaniead
by thie learned gounsel for the applicants/nnervenors mus!
fail and is accordinglv rejected
PROCEEDING T{O THE EVIDENCE BROUGH T OX
RECORD

82. A briefanalysis of the evidence recorded in cach of
the States is as under :

(D) AtTrivandrum in Kerals ;

At Trivandrum. the Central Government, in suppor

ol the Notification banning SIMI, exanimned the [ollowing

WItNesSes

()  Mr Lhari Dorjee Lhatoo. Superintendent of Police.
National Investigation Agency. New Delhi (PW-1);

(i) Mr. Sajid Farid Shapoa, 1PS. superintendont of
Police, Manonal Investigaton Ageney. New Delhi
(PW-2y;

(i}  Mr GV, Ramana, Deputy Superintendent ol Pofice.
NIA. Ficld Office, Hyderabad (PW-3%

(v} Mr. Sasidharan Chalil, Additional Sub-inspector m
Town Police Station at Kozhikode ( PW-4),

(v)  Mr Aananthakrishaan, IGP(Inemal Securty ). Special
Rranch, CID Hgrs. Gevt. of Kerala (FW-3).

83(a). PW-1. Mr. Lhari Derjee Lhatoo, Supenntendent of
Palice, National Tevestigation Agency, New Delhi,
has filed two affidavils exhibited as I'x 'W-1/A and
PW-1/B. Along with his affidavit (Lx. PW-1'A). he
kas filed a certitied copy of the FIR No. 13972006 and
its Lnglish ranslation (exhibit PW- ba1) Tle has
stated that the gaid FIR was reuistered by PS
Binanipuran:, Diste Ermakulam. Kerala usdey Sechions
120085, 124(A) IPC and Scctions HY& 13 of Lindawiul
Adtivities (Prevention) Act against five SIMI
activists, who are accused of eonducting a Seeret
seditious mecting at the Tappy Auditorium,
Binanipuram PS Limits, Ernakealam I8, which was
attended by |3 other persans, who werealso arrested
by a foint Investigation team. The jnvestigation of
the FIR was subsequently transforred to Nationa!
Investigation Agency (NIA). which re-registered the
said FIR as FIR No. 372010 on 21-1-2010{Ex. PW-111)

(b)  The NiA lurther investigated the matter and filud the
charge sheet on 30-12-2010 (Fx. PW-12). This has
been wrongly stated by the witness in his affidavi
as 30-12-2012. During the course of investigation by
the NiA. the witness got the statement of Rasheed
@ Rasheed Moulavi recorded under Section 164
Cr.P.C. The statement of Rasheed @ Rasheed
Moukavi recorded under Section 164 of Cr.PC [Ix
PW-1/3 {colly)] has been placed on record, In by
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{c)

(d)

examination-in-chief, he has stated that Rasheed was
originally the complainant but when the investigation
of the case was transferred from one [0 to another of
the state police itself, he was made an accused and
after the investigations were transferred to NIA, he
tumed as an approver. In his statement, he has stated
that in 2006 during the period when the FIR in
question was registered, he was acquainted with one
Nizamuddin of Panaykulam who used to visit
masques for prayer. He used to lend CDs and Islamic
religious books from the mosque library. One week
before 15-8-2006, Nizamudeen told him that a meeting
was poing to be organized at Happy Auditorium in
Panaykulam on 15-8-2006 and in the said meeting,
the role of Indian Maslims in the freedom struggle
was being discussed. The aforesaid meeting was
attended by Nizamudeen, Abdul Rasik, P.A. Shaduly,
Sharmini (@ Shammas and Ansar who were sitting in
the Dias. There were 13 persons, including him, who
were sitting in the audience. Afier reciting Quran by
Ansar, Abdul Rasik took a class on history of
Kashmur. Abdul Rasik said that Kashmiri Muslims
were conducting Jehad and that they were being
shot dead by Indian scldiers. The Government of
India had also been torturing Muslims with black
laws, like TADA and NSA, He also asked the
gathering to fight against these atrocities under the
leadership of SIMI. He is also alleged to have stated
that these activities cannot be eradicated. They were
also in possession of certain books and pamphlets,
which, on a visit by Police to the area in question,
were hidden by each one of them. This statement
was recorded on 4-4-2010.

Statements of Ubaid, S/0 Abdul Rashid, Shihab S/o
Ibrahim, Mohd. Sherref, S/0 Abdul Kader, Shabeer
S/e Abdul Khader have also becn recorded under
Section 161 Cr.P.C. by the police officials, wherein it
is reflected that the activities of SIMI are being carried
out by the persons belonging to Muslim community
living tn Kerala, either under the banner of SIMI
surreptitiously or under the name of Students Islamic
Organization (SIO), a student’s wing of Jamaat-o-
Islami 1ind (11H). The statements of other accused
filed by PW-l are exhibited as Ex. PW-V4 1o PW- [/15.
Certified copies of the publications of the banned
organization are exhibited as Ex. PW-1/16 and the
certified copy of the list of leaders/imembers/workers
of the organization are exhibited as Ex. PW-1/17.

In his cross examination by Mr. Mobin Akhtar,
Advocale representing H.A, Siddiqui and Misbah-
Ul-Islam, PW-l admitted that Rashid @ Rashid Maulvi
was made an accused on 31-12-2008, on which date
he was arrcsted by the previous investigating afficer.

(&)

(4}

He further stated that he had not filed the entire
documents in this Tribunal forming part of tke charge
sheet but volunteered that the documents which
were considered re levant were filed by him. He also
admitted that in FIR No. 3/2010, which is registered

by NIA, there is no mention that the accused persons *

were making speeches against the Government of
india. He further. admitted in his cross-examination
that no other statements of the accused have been
recorded under Section 164 Cr.P.C. except that of
Rashid Maulvi. He further stated that at the time of
se¢arch and raid, various written material by way of
pamphlets and literature etc. were recovered
belonging to the organization concerned.

A perusal of the testimony of this witness PW-1
highlights 2-3 important facts as his testimony is not
demolished on that score by the cross-examination,
The fact, which has come out from the testimony of
this witness, is that though FIR No. 3/10 (Ex. PW-1/1)
pertained to an incident of the year 2006, the
investigations, were carried out by the NIA after
transfer of the investigation in question to them,
which revealed the deep-rooted hurt of young
disgruntled Muslim youth in harbouring a grudge Lo
carry out a struggle and help spreading hatred among
different communities and create communal
disharmony among the members of various
communities in the name of a particular religion. It is
also reflected that they wanted to support the so-
called freedom struggle by carrying out similar
extremist activities in the State of Jammu & Kashmir
which they were terming as ‘Jehad’, It also sliowed
that most of these persons, who were involved in
the said FIR, were either very young or middie aged
persons, who seemed to be well educated.

This clearly shows that even after the investigation
ofthe case was transferred to the NIA, the activities
of the banned organization SIMI were stilt being
carried on by spreading seditious material by way of
pamphlets, books and distributing CDs ete. 11 may
be pertinent here to mention that the witness has
also testified with regard to the seizure of various
incriminating CDs, pamphliets and books which
showed that the Muslim youths in Kashmir were
conducting freedom struggle by way of Jehad against
that alleged foreible annexation of that part to the
tndinn Union, In this regard. in one of the CDs, it is .
auributed that Pt. Nehru had refused to send 1he
lndian Army on uccount of raid by nomadic tribes
the Instanee of Pakistsn Army for a period of 44 days,
as (hwre was no @ngexation by them and Kashmir
used to be an independent princely State. This kind
ol thinking un the part of 1he accused persons is
nothing but the byproduct of their perverted mind.

e

ch
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Bi4). PW-2, Mr. Sajid Farid Shapoo™ Superintendent of
Police®, National Investigation Agency, New Delhi,
han filed bis affidavit exhibited as Ex. PW-2/A. Along.
with his affidavit, he has filed a certified copy of the
FIR No. 356/2008 and its English translation (exhibit
PW-2/1). He has stated that the S.1. of Police Station
Edakkad arrested Abdul Jaleel on the basis of reliable
information pertaining to some illegal activities and
FIR 356/2008 was registered against him under
Sections 3 and 13(2) of Unlawful Activities
(Prevention) Act, which were subsequently altered
into Section 3 read with Sections 13(2), 16, 18, 19,38,
39 and 40 of the Unlawful Activities (Prevention)
Act, 1967 and Sections 120(B), 121, 121(A), 124(A),
465,471 and 34 of TPC. The said case was investigated
by u Joint [nvestigation team headed by 8h. T.K.

- Vinod Kumar, then DIG, State of Kerala and during
the course of investigation 23 persons were arraigned
as accused out of which 4 had been killed in an
encounter with security forces while attending a
¢amp for training in Kashmir. On the basis of
investigation in FIR 356/2008, two charge sheets were
filed by the Kerala police in the competent court of
Jurisdiction. Later on, seeing the gravity of the
offence, the investigation of the FIR was transferred
to National Investigation Agency (NIA) on
i: 34-12-2009, which re-registered the said case as FIR
“ Ko 22010 0n 21-1-2010(Ex. PW-2/2).

The NIA further investigated the matter and filed
ihe supplementary charge sheet before the Special
Court for NIA cases (Ex. PW-2/3) against 24 accused
persons, including 23 accused already charge
shiceted by the Kerala Police. During the course of
investigation, it has been revealed that one of the
wceused namely, Sarfaraz Nawaz, was a SIM] activist
and lis s1atement was recorded under Section 161 of
CeC, by PW, which is exhibited as Fx.'W- 2/4.
Ve witnons in hig affidavit has further stated that it
v furher {saent that Surfaraz Nawaz wos also
masocinted with Lashkar-e-Taiba and arranged funds
{ewining of the other accused at Jammu & Kashmir
mimd in the escape of two accused
i 4nd Sharfaras from India in October/

He hul stated that during the course of investigation
qud Interrogation of Sarfaraz, it was revealed to him
 that Safdar Nagori, after being appointed as the New
-Seerctury General, wanted o change SIMI into a full-
Hedged Jehadi group. Sarfaraz also met SIMI
members in Dubai and started taking part in their
wetivitics, Apart from taking part in the activities of
BIMI beiween 2004 and 2006, the witness also stated
" that the banned organization SIMI was recruiting

peaple from the Stalc of Kerata, indoctrinating them

g sending them for waging war against the

(d)

()

Government of India and indilging in other terrorist
acts in the State of Jammu & Kashmir. Out of these
accused persons, four had got killed in an encounter
in Srinagar while carrying out tesrorist ecrivities when
they were confronted by security forces and cases
have been registered in Police Stations, Lai Pura and
Sogaon. He has also stated that SIMI and its imembers
continued to indulze in anti-national aclivities,
prejudicial to the interest of our national integrity,
communal harmony and sovereignty by waging a
war against the Government of Tndia and; thercfore.
the kan, which is imposed by the Government on
SIML, is legally justified and is required to be upheld
it the public inletest so as 1o control its activities
in his cross examination by Mr. Mobin Akhtar,
Advocate, PW-2 admitted that he was not the first
investigating officer of FIR 2/2010 and voluntegred
that there was another investigating officer assigned
for this FIR betore him. He further admifted that the
statement of Sarfaraz Nawaz had already been
recorded earlier by the Kerala Pelice and that both
the statements, one which is recarded by Kerala
Police and the ather recorded by him are almost on
the same lines. He further admitted that the statement
of Sarfaraz Nawaz was recorded by him when he was
in judicial custody after taking permission from the
concerned Magistrate and that the statements: of
most of the accused persons have been recorded
but he denied the suggestion of the learned counsel
that these statements have not been fited purposely
as it would have exposed that Sarfare Nawaz has no
connection with SIMI. He admiued that he had not
filed the complete record of the charge sheet but
volunteered that whatever was relevant for the
purpase of the present case was {iled by him

One neticeable fact of the entire statement af this
witness is thal it has withstood successfully the lest
ofl cross- examination. Nothing has been breught on
record during cross-examination which could
discredathis testimony an the aspect ol involvement
of banned organization SIMI. which is suneptitiously
induslging in anti-national terrorist activities thraugh
its members, not only in the State of Kerala, but alsa
lending active support to such illegal activities being,
carried out by the mifitants in the State of Jammu &
Kashmir. He kas also testified that the ban against
this organization deserves to be cantinued in the
light of their activities. The testimony of this witness
assumes great impartance because he is a Mustim
and hails from the State of fammu & Kashmirand vt
he has testified against the illegal and unlawiul
activities of disgruntled persons who are misguided
and carry-on the activities of the banned organization
SIMI in the name of religion in the name of Jehad in
the State of Jammu & Kashmir,
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&Ma)  PW-3, Mr (1 V. Ramana. Deputy Superintendent of
Police. Nativnal Investigation Agency, New Delhi, has filed
his affidavit exhibited as Ex.PW-3/A. Along with his
affidavit. he has filed a certified copy of the FIR No, 257/
2008 and its I'nglish ranslation {exhibh PW-3/1). He has
stated that the said FIR was registered at PS Mundakayam.
Distt. Kottayam, Kerala under Sections 120(B), 124(A), 122,
LS3(AYTIPC. Sections 25 & 27 of Arms Act and Sections |0
& 13 of Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act based on the
complaint by Mr. R. K. Krishna Kumar, Dy Superintendent
ol Police {lnternal Securitv). Special Branch, CID.
Lamakulam, who noticed the word 'SIMU written on a rock
both in English and Malyalam near Shaikh 'arudeen Dargah
on the Kolahalmedu-Thangalpara route and on making i
conlidential enquiry, found that 30 activisis/members of
SIMI organization conducted a fraining camp at
Uhangalpara (Wagamon) in Deceniber, 2007, The
investigation of the FIR was subsequently transierred to
Nalional Investigution Agency {NIA }, which re-registered
the said case as FIR No. 42010 on 21-1-2010{Ex. PW-3/1).

(by  During the course of investigation by NIA, it has
been revealed thadl three days' sceret training camp of SIMI
was conducied in a meticulous manner with each member
eitrusted with specitic task and-responsibility. The trainees
were imparted vigorous physical training such as rock
climbing. swimming. use of fire arms, making of petrol
hombs: riding motor ¢ycles at great speed for VIP
assassinations, trekking in difficult terrain and
methodalogics for launching rerrorist strikes. The NIA
further investigaled the matter and filed the charge sheet
on [3-1-201) against 30 accused persons, out of which 29
acvused were arvested (Ex. PW-372) Along with his affidavit,
the witness hus filed the stulements of various persuns
imcivdirg the statements of ¢y Mr P K. Krigshna,
complainasnt 007 Smt Beena, a PCO bomh operaior Irom
where the accused persons in FIR hud allegedly made
telephone sulls. (111 Vinesh VK. who hid made the
arrangement of 4 Scorpio vehicle (K1 7 AP 4655) (o
transpertation of the accused persons as well as the
explosive material: (1v) Sajan K. Poulouse, an authorized
arms dealer from whom the aceused persons purchased 2
Air CGuns and 2 packets of pellets for the purpose of target
practive. (v Ragu CGeowho s an emplovee ol a Guest House
by the gae ol St tlan Tourist Flome, where the accused
persons staved afier the camp at Wagaman, (vi) Sh. PJ
Citrwasts. Sewentific Assistanee, FSL T hirnvananibapuram,
who had exanuned the material objects from the place of
oceurrence as woll as the vehele for the purpose of expen
opinten, and (vin) Sh. V. K. Bhadran. Addi. Directar, Cyber
Farensic Division. who had exammed the luptop, the Chiy
and othur conmected material objects which were setzcd at
the imgianes Of the accused persons, which contained
informaize and Jdate pertaiming to runnng of Wagaman
Fravtng cemp by the aceused porsons, Al these statements
e axbuitod as By PWEAS o PW-3715. The witiness has
aise e ed threr repoits of FSL, Thirevananthapuram
e svaniieglion of fired projeciiie and gunshol residue

4
e

from the scene and the same are exhibited as Ex. PW-3/16
10 PW-3/18. :

(c) In his cross examination by Mr. Mobin Akhtar,
Advocate, PW-2 admited that the camp at Wagaman was
held from 10th 1o 12th December, 2007 and volunteered
that on account of an inadvertent mistake ia his cross-
examination, he stated that the training camp was held from
[0th 1o 13th December. 2007, He further admitted thatasa
part of turther investigation, he had arrested four accused
persons. He ulso admitled that he had visited Wagamon,
as an myestigating officer. Wagamon is a tourist place,
surrounuded by hillocks, and is quite popular generally
visited by persons for adventure sports like Para Gliding,
Mountaineering, Rock Climbing, Trekking etc. He also
admiited that the training camp keld was approximately
5 kms. from the entrance. The site cannot be seen from the
entrance but the thoroughtare of the camp can be looked
at from the pate. He further admitted that he does not know
whether SIMI can be Ihe name ot 2 person but is aware that
there is an actress by the name of *Simi Grewal'. On being
asked by the Tribunal, he stated that mere use of word
“SIMIY incheared “Students [slamic Movement of India’. He
further admitted that FIR No. 257/2008 was registered after
about & months of the mcident. e also stated that no
separate action was taken against the owner of the vehicle,
which was involved in the incident, since he was already
made an accused for transportation of the accused persons
as well as the explosive material. The witness further stated
that his busis for stating that the accused persons are
connected with SIMI i based on the facts namely seizure
ol computer, hard disk, data, explosive and other connected
material during the course of investigation in the aforesaid
FIRs. He denied the suggestion of the learned counsel that
he did not produce the hard disk before the Tribunal as
there is nene and volunteered that the slatement of V. K.
BBhadran. Scientific Expert, along with his report, have
alrewdy been submined by him aleng with his affidavit.

86(a). 1*'W-d. Mr Sasidharan Chalil, Additional Sub-
Inspector in Town Police Station, Kozhikode, proved his
affidavit Ex. PW-4/A. Along with his affidavit, he has
annexed a copy of the FIR No. 448/2010 and its English
translation {exhibit PW-4/5). He has stated that the satd
FIR wasregistered by PS Kozhikode under Sections 120(B),
124(A ) TPC and Sections 10 & 13 of Unlawful Activities
(Prevention) Act, 1967 in respect of a raid conducted at
Nunis Books, which 1s 2 book shop of a Trust. During the
raid, cortamn books and other publications as also a Hard
sk vontannng statements questioning the secular values
ol Toidig s 4 Nation besides other matter inciting disaffection
powikpds certin teliguns and thus capable of creating
curntnunad dimbpemony were found and seized. The relevant
extineis pbhe haoks in Malayalam aleng with their English
translation hiyve been annexed along with his affidavit and
are exhibied as |y PWad2 1o PW-4/5, The witness in his
allichinst e stited thad O A Matun, an activist of 1SA
(B Stdents Assseiion ), o cover/front organization
AbSINTE pevimiinge the ook <usll namely Nanma Books as
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Manager, which is learnt to be owned by a Trust consisting
of ‘,;‘:‘rsuns who ate activists of MRW (Minority Rights
Watch), which is anuther cover organization of SIML. The
wilness has also annexed the statements of Subair, whe
was present at the time of search at Nanma Books; and
Ahdul Rahiman, who is # tenant and has further let-out the
store by the name of Nanma Baoks, along with their English
transkation, which are exhibited as Ex. PW-4/7 & 8. He has
tlso annexed a copy of FIR No. 4242010 registered by PS
Kozhikode and its English translation which are Ex.PW-4/
4. The said FIR was registered on account of a raid
conducted on a book store namely *Other Books'. The
scarch list and its English transation inrespect of FIR No.
42472010 1s exhibited as PW-4/10 and the forwarding note/
lctier 10 FSL. enclosing therewith the hard disk seized as a
consequence of FIR No. 424/2010 is Ex. PW-4/1].

{b) In his cross examination by Mr. Mobin Akhtar,
Advucate, PW-4 admitted that he was not a member ofthe
vinding party of either of the two raids conducted in
putsuance to both the FIRs. He also admitted that three
kinds of books were seized and in total 121 books were
seized by the local police and that he had read a copy of
vach book when he had taken over the investigation of the
case. He further admitted that out of the three books, which
have been seized, only one contains the word ‘SIMI’, He
further admitted that Islamic Students Association (ISA)
and Minority Rights Watch (MRW) are not banned
organizations and he was not aware of the office of the
arpanization. He also admitted that he had never registered
any case against Islamic Students Association and
Mmority Rights Watch

{¢c}  Ancxamination of the evidence of PW-4 shows that
the witness has withstood the test of cross-examination
and one thing highlighted from his testimony is that even
though the books which have been seized do not contain
miterinl pertaining to SIMI but the activities of the
urganization are being carried on with the help of frontal
organizations like Islamic Students Association and
Minority Rights Watch.

K2 I*W-5, Mr, Aananthokrishnan, (GP (Internal
Seeurity ), Special Branch, CID Headquarters, Government

. af Keraly, proved his affidavit as Ex. PW-5/A. Being the

il Oriflser, he along with his affidavit, has attached the
ety Which are exhibited as Ex. PW-5/110 PW-5/11in

i xeme scriatim as have, been exhibited in the testimony
<ol PW-A, Mr. Sasidharan Chalil. He also handed over a

weuled envelope, claiming privilege in respect of the
contents of the envelope on the ground that it contained
woeret amd confidential information. which could not be
diselosed 1o the  applicants/intervenors. (b} In his cross
oxgmination by Mr. Mobin Akhtar, Advocate, PW-5
uehimiied thas 1R Nos. 448/2010 & 424/2010 are still under
tvestigation. He further admitted that he did not make any
reference to the Government of Kerala for banning the
haoky i question ia pursuance of Sections 94 & 95 Cr.P.C.
bt vohuntecred that the material which was seized was
sylficient to cause disharmony amongst the members of

different communities. He stated that the offending books
have reference to the banned organization SIM| at number
of places. He admitted that the book *Islam and Nationalism’
does not make a reference to the word *SIMI" but in reply
ta the Tribunal’s question, he stated that it has certain
portions, which are fundamentally against the secular
features of our Constitution and thus are offending. He
also stated that in his affidavit the names of three
organizations, namely, Islamic Students Association (ISA),
Minarity Rights Watch (MRW) and Wahadat-e-1slami
(WET}) are given as the front organizanions of SIMI on the
basis of the intelligence reports. He further stated that the
objectives of these three organizations, if seen on the face
of it through their Memorandum of Associations etc., seem
to be pood but the intelligénce reports have shown that
the former active members of SIM] are trying to propagate
and implement the objectives of SIMI through these
organizations surreptitiously and in a clandestine manner.
He further stated that Mr. A. Shahnawaz, Advocate, is a
signatory and a trustee of Nanma Charitable Trust and is
known to be a member of Minorities Rights Watch. He
further stated that intelligence reports show that this
gentleman was a former member of SIMI and is spreading
seditious material through this frontal organization.

(i) At Udaipurin Rajasthan :

At Udaipur, the Central Government examined the
following witnesses in support of the Notification banning
SIMI —

(i) Mr. Satyendra Singh Ranawat, Addl.
Superintendent of Police, Bharatpur Distt. Rajastha
(PW-6); :

(ii} Mr. Rajesh Nirwan, Inspector General of Police,
C.1.D. (intelligence), Jaipur, Rajasthan (PW-7)

88(a). PW-6, Mr, Satyendra Singh Ranawat, Addl.
Superintendent of Police, Bharatpur Distt., Rajasthan, has
praved his affidavit Ex. PW-6/A., Along with his affidavit,
he has filed certified copies of FIR Nos. 130/2008,
*131/2008, 13272008, 133/2008 registered at PS Manak
Chowk, Jaipur on 13-5-2008 and FIR Nos. 117/2008,
| 1872008, | 19/2008, 120/2008 & 121/2008 registered at PS
Kotwali, Jaipur on 13-5-2008 under Sections 121, 121A;
124A, 153, 153 A, 302,307,427, 120B IPC, Sections 3,4, 5,6
of Explosive Substances Act and Sections 16A, 18 of
Unlawful Activities’ (Prevention) Act, 1967 [Ex. A-1 (colly}].
All these FIRs were registered in respect of serial bomb
blasts which took place at 8 different places in Jaipur on
13-5-2608 pursuant to which 70 people died and 186 people
were severely injured. He has also filed the certified copy
of the e-mail, which was received by various news channels
from Indian Mujahideen claiming responsibility for the serial
bomb blasts (Ex. A-2). He has also filed the certified/irue
copies of the {i) seizure memo, (ii) test identification parades
of the accused, (iit) charge sheet No. 187/08 along with
supplementary charge sheets, (iv) statement of witnesses,
(v) interrogation reports, (vi) forensic reports, (vii) various
bills, and (viii) sketches of suspects prepared and released
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by Rajasthan police etc. and the same are exhibited as
Ex. A-3 to Ex, A-12. In his examination-in-chief, he has stated
that Shahbaj Hussain, who purporiedly sent the mail was
identified by the owner of Cyber Cafe, wherefrom the ¢-
mail was sent and various other accused were also identified
by various witnesses in the Test Identification Parade and
their statements were also recorded under Section 161/164
of Cr. PC.

(b) In his cross examination by Mr. Mobin Akhtar,
Advocate representing H.A. Siddiqui and Misbah-Lil-Islam,
PW-6 stated that during the course of interrogation of
Shahbaj Hussain, he admitted that after the ban on SIMI,
two factions namely, Al-Hindi and Al-Arabi were created
in order to run the movement m three different languages,
which was earlier being espoused by SIMI. He also stated
that he filed the interroeation report of Shahbaj Hussain
and other accused persons as also the e-mail in order to
establish the link between SIMI and Shahbaj Hussain and
between SIMI and Indian Mujahideen. He admitted that
he had not arrested Shahbay Hussain and that he had not
recorded his interrogation report. which is annexed with
the affidavit. He also admitted that he did not make any
effort to get the statements of any witness recorded under
Section 164 Cr. P.C. as he did not teel the necessity thereol.
| le stated that during the course of interrogation of these
persons as also the inguiries and interrogation donre of
other persons at Khandwa. Ahmedabad, Mumbai.
{.ucknow, Indore and Delhi etc.. where involvement of the
persons accused in the Jaipur Bomb blasts was confirmed.
it transpired that the accused persons, including Shahbaj
Hussain. were members of SIM1L

89(a). PW-7, Mr. Rajesh Nirwan. Inspector General of
Police, CiD {Intelligence), Jaipur, Rajasthan, and the Nodat
“Officer, proved his affidavit Ex. PW-7/X-1. Along with his
alfidayit, he has filed cerified copies of FIR No. 111/2001
registered at PS Kotwali. Bikaner under Section 10 of
Unlawltul Activities (Prevention) Act, FIR Na. 022001
registered at PS Bapawarkalan. Kota Rural under Sections
100 & 13 of Unlawiul Activitics (Prevention) Acl. and FIR
No. 34172001 under Section 13 of Unlawful Activities
(Prevention} Act and Section 153A of IPC along with
certified copics ol charge sheets in respect of aforesaid
I'IR s and various other documents relating to the said FIRs,
which are exhibited as Ex. B (cotly), € (colly), & I (colly)
respectively. In his atfidavit he has stated that SIML due
to its ideology and preaching, has developed a parachial,
rigid. intolerant ond communal outlook amongst the
minority community, mainly in the youth. SIMI had
circulated pamphicts and posters with highly objectionable
and provocative langiage and text which are agsinst the
religious feelings of the majority community and their
activists are operating under the name of cover organization
Wahadat-c-1slami

(b) In his cross examination by Mr. Mobin Akhtar,
Advocate. PW-T stated that he is not aware of any
notification having been issued by the Government of
Rajasthan with regard to the literature 1o which references

have been made in the cases. He admitted that no
notification banning Wahadat-e-1slami has been issued,
He further stated that according to him no action has been
taken against the office bearers and members of Wahadat-
e-lslami as their activities are being monitored. He also
stated that he is not aware whether any case has been
registered against the office bearers ol Wahadat-e-Islami.

() At Kolkata in West Bengal:

At Kaolkata, the Central Government examined the
following wilnesses:-

()  Ms. Kim, Superintendent of Police (City), Pama. Bihar
(PW-8);

(i)  Mr. Swapan Banerjee Pumapatra, Deputy Inspector
General of Police, Intelligence Branch, Kolkata
(PW-9) .

90(a). PW-8, Ms. Kim, Superintendent of Pelice (City)
Paina, Bihar, and the Nodal Officer for the Staie of Bihar
proved her affidavit Ex. PW-8/A. Along with her affidavit,
she has filed true copy of FIR No. 279/2001 (Ex. A-2)
registered under Sections 10, L1, 12 & 13 of Unlawtul
Activities (Prevention) Act read with Section 298 of 1PC
against 16 members/active supporters of SIME for
conducting secret meetings in and around Amin Manzil.
Exhibition Road. Patna and giving provecative speeches
with intention to create communal disharmony. She his
also filed a certified copy of charge sheet No. 182/2007 (Ex.
A-4)in respect of aforesaid FIR, wherein four persons were
sent for trial for various offences. kx. A-6 is the certified
copy of the supplementary charge sheet No. 14/2008.
against three accused persons. filed in respect of the
aforesaid FIR. In her aftidavit she has stated that onc of
the arrested aceused Md. Hasib Raza @ Samim Bhai has
been lound o be involved in serious cases in other parts
of the country such as in anti national activitics in Jalgaoa,
Maharashtra and 20 bomb blast cases in Ahmedabad as
also in the consprracy for blowing the | lowrah Bridge in
February, 2002 and accordingly several cases have been
registered agaiist him in different parts of the country.

(b) In her cross examination by Ms. Sridevi Panikkar,
Advogate representing H.A. Siddigui and Misbah-Ul-1slam,
PW-8 admitted that afer the registriation of FIR No. 27%
2001, no other FIR has been registered against SIM] or any
of its alleged members in the State of Bibar. She also
admitied that the involvement of Hasib Raza in other cases.
as Stated by her, was based on the letier received from the
Deputy Commissioner {Intelligence). Gandhi Nagar, Gujarat
and that she had not personally seen any of the records
pertaining w the case ol Howrah Bridge conspiracy.
Ahmedabad blast cuse and the Jalgaon (Maharashtra) case.

Oty I"W-9, Mr. Swapan Bancejee Purnapatra, Depuiy
Inspector General ol Police, Intelligence Branch, West
Bengal, and the Nodal Officer for the State of West Bengal
has proved his affidavit Fx. PW-9/A. Along with his
atfidavit, he hos filed copies of (1) FIR No. 403/2001 and
twor charge sheets Hiled pursuant 1o the said FIR {Ex. B)

p—_—
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under Scctions 153(A) 153(B)and 120B 1PC and Sections
W/ F1/12/13 of Unlawful Activities (PreventionyAct; (i) FIR
No, 335/20601 and the charge sheet filed on the basis of
same (Ex. Dyunder, Scctions 153(A)/ | 53(B)/295(A Y298/
505/121(Ayand 120(B}1PC; (iii) FIR No, 171/2001 and the
charge sheet filed on the basis of the same (Ex. F) under
Sections 153/153(A)/153(B) and 120(B) IPC and Sections
1041 3(a)(b) of Unlawful Activitics (Prevention) Act; (iv)
FIR No, 110/2001 and the copy of the charge sheet etc.
(Ex. G)under Sections 121(AYI124(AY153(AY153(B) IPC;
(v) FIR Na. 327/2001 and the charge sheetetc. (Ex. H)under
Sections 153(1V153(B)/12H{AY124(A)IPC, and (vi) FIR No.
[11/2001 and the charge sheet etc. (Ex.I} under Sections
133(A)1533(B)124(A)/120(B) IPC and Sections’ (0/13 of
Untawful Activilies (Prevention) Act. In his affidavit he
has stated that the SIMI activists have floated newly
formed organizations under different nomenclature and their
aclivities are confined to holding secret meetings,
maintaining alleged contacts with the different
organizational intellectuals like Popular Front of India (PFT),
Social Democratic Party of [ndia (SDPI), Indian National
1 .eague (IN1.), Youth Islamic Association (Y1A), Federation
of Muslim Association (FOMA} etc 1o get the ban on the
oreanization (SIMI) withdrawn. The witness also handed
ever a scaled caver containing confidential intelligence
reports about the activities of SIMI.

(b} In his cross examination by Ms. Sridevi Panikkar,
Advocate, PW-9 stated that the aforesaid erganizations
arc not banned by the Government of India and he is not
aware if any case has been registered against them.
| lowever, he has stated that after 2001, no case has been
registered against SIMI in the State of West Bengal. He
wlso stated that he is not ayare as to whether Jamaat-e-
Islami Hind is a banned organization in India.

{1V) At Bangalore in Karnataka :

At Bangalore. the Central Government examined the
following witnesses:—

() Mr. Japadish Basalingappa Khol. Deputy
Superintendent of Police, DCRB, District Chitradurga,
kamataka (PW-10),

(it Mr. Paul S. Varma, Deputy Superintendent of Police,
Somawarpet Sub-division, Kodagu District,
Karnatiaka (PW-11);

finy  Mr. Jayanth Vasudev Shetty, Superintendent of |
Police, Karkala Sub-Division, Udupi District,
Karnataka (PW-12)
Y2(a) PW-10. Mr. Jagadish Basalingappa Khot, Deputy
Superintendent of Police, DCRB, District Chitradurga,
Kirnataka, has proved his affidavit Ex. PW-10/A. Along
with his affidavit, he has annexed a copy of the FIR No.
02008, the seizure memo and the English translation
(exhihit PW- 10/A1). The said FIR was registered in
Ginlagunnbue Police Station under Sectians 1 33(A), 153(B),
126{18). 149 1PC and Sections 11, 13, 15, 18 of Unlawful
Avtivities (Prevention) Act, 1967 against some unknown

persons suo-moto on the complaint filed by Mr. MK,

Dhamannavar. sub-inspector, who on receiving an

information, found that some of the miscreants had pasted

provocative pamphlets containing slogans and statemcer
viz. “Our Struggle For Final & Complete Suprem?, .y of
Allah” “Involves Babri Masjid Too™ s a5 (0 ¢re? . clashes
between Hindus & Muslim. The witmess Fia¢ also filed
voiuntar)' statements of various accuét‘f"’_, persons marked
5B TP RL TG D A KR owof
which only mark ‘L’ is the statemnt which has been writlen
by the witness. The said Statement is Ex.PW-10/1. The
witness has also stated that Shaan-e-Karim, one of the
accused facing triak in FIR No. 260/2008, had distributed
pamphlets in Bijapur, which were divisive. and the same is
exhibited as Fx. PW-10/G. He further stated that CDs
containing provocative slogans intending to bring
disharmony berween Hindus and Muslims were also scized
from the accused. Shaan-e-Karim. The copy of the charge
sheet filed in the aforesaid FIR was exhibited as Ex. PW-
10/N.

(by In his cross ¢xamination by Sridevi Panikkar,
Advocate representing LA Siddiqui and Misbah-Ul-Eslam,
PW-10 stared that the pamphlet Ex. PW-10/G does not bear
the word *SIMI’, however, it bears the word *1BT” on the
left hand side, which has a reference 1o Islamic Book
Treasure. In answer to the question as 1o how does he
says in his affidavit that the pamphlet is attributed to SIMI,
he stated that Shaan-e-Kaiim was collecting money from
the students of Dental Coliege where he was studying and
issuing receipts for the money received by him which had
the word “SIM” and these pamphiets were published by
him only. The witness has admitied that no statement
under Section 164 Cr.P.C. has been recorded in respect of
any of the accused persons whose statements have been
attached along with his affidavit. He also admitred that
along with his affidavit, he has not filed CESL report of the
examination of CPUs but voluntecred that the same has 1o
come from Hyderabad.

95{a). PW-I1, Mr. Paul S. Varma, Deputy Superintendent
of Police, Somawarpet Sub-division. Kodagu District,
Karnataka, has proved his affidavilt 'x. PW-1 VA Along
with his affidavit, he has filed the cerrified copy of Crime
No. 37/2012 and the Linglish translation. I'he said FFIR was
registered by P8 Shuntikoppa under Sections 153{A), 143,
147, 120(8), 121, 121¢A), 201, 149 IPC and Sections 3 & Sof’
Explosive Substances Act against | 3 accused persons suo-
meto un the complaint filed by sub-inspector. who received
an information that the accused persons have had several
meetings conspiring to create hatred amongst the public.
caysing bomb blasts in various places in the State of
Karnataka and other neighbouring States. The witness has
also annexed statements of various witnesses along with
his affidavit. The copy of the charge sheet in respect of
aforesaid FIR was annexed as Ex. R along withthe affidavit.

{(b) In his cross examination by Sridevi Panikkar,
Advocate, PW-11 stated that EX. "R" is the drafi charpe
sheet which has been submitied to the Govt. of Karnataka
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is filed in the court. He admitted that all the statements of
the witnesses, which have been annexed along with the
alfidavit, are recorded under Section 161 Cr.P.C. He also
stated that Rafeeq and Shihab, who are the witnesses in
the draft charge sheet, are made witnesses on the basis of
their statements recorded in the Madivala Crime No. 483/
2008 and that he had not recorded the statements of these
two witnesses in the Madivala case. The witness has
admitted that none of the documents annexed with his
affidavit arc fled in Court.

94a). PW-12. Mr. Jayanth Vasudev Shetty. Deputy
Superintendent of Police, Karkala sub-division, Udupi
District, Kamataka, has filed his affidavit exhibited as Ex.
PW-12/1. Along with his affidavit, he has filed a copy of
the FI R No. 242/2008 and the English translation (Exhibit
A). The sani FIR was registered by PS Ullalin under Sections
121(A), 122 I53(A), 120(B). IPC, Sections 5 & 6 of Explosive
Substances Act, 1908 and Sections !1. 13, 18 of Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act. 1967 agains, the accused
persons on the complaint filed by Mr. Venkatesh Prasanna.
police inspector. The witness has also annexed certified
copies of various scizure memos along with his affidavit.
The certified copy of the charge sheet in respect of
aforesaid FIR along with English translation is also annexed
as Exh. R. The examination of this witness was deferred at
the instance of the learned standing counsel Mr. Datta.
However, after deferring the same, his testimony has not
been completed, therefore, it cannot be read in evidence,

(V) AtAurangabadin Maharashtra:

At Aurangabad, the Central Government examined
the folfowing wilnesses :-

(i)  Mr. Rajendra Balajirao Dahale, D.C., SID. Stae Police
Headquarters, Mumbai, Mabarashtra, (PW-13):

(i Mr. Pradep Bhargav Jadhav. Police Inspector (Crime),
Vijapur Naka Police Station, Solapur, Maharashtra ©
(PW-14},

(i}  Mr. Sanjay Mohan Kamble, Pbiic&; Inspector (Crime
Branch), Navi Mumbat, Maharashtra (PW-15)

95(a) PW-I13, Mr. Rajendra Balajirao Dahale. Deputy
Commissioner, S1D. State Police Headquarters. Mumbai,
and the Noda} Oflicer has proved his affidavit Ex. PW-13/].
Along with hisalfidavit, he has annexed |2 certitied copies
of the charge sheets pertaining 10 SIMI in respect of
different FIRs registered from the year 2001 to 2002 In his
affidavil. the witness has stated that during the cotrse of
investigation it has been revealed that the members of SIMI
continued their illegal and anti-national activities even ilter
the ban. Ile further stated that though the ban has served
as a greatl deterrent, the clandestine activitics of the
arganization have not stopped.

(by In his ¢cross-examination by Mr. Ashok Apgarwal,
Advocate representing HLA. Siddiqu and Misbah-Ul-fslam.
PW-13 stated that he had not investigated any of these
cases personally but he denied the suggestion that these

cases have been kept pending deliberarcly by him or by
the prosccution.

96{a). PW-14, Mr, Pradip Bhargav Jadhav. Police Inspeetor
(Crime), Vijapur Naka Police Statian, Solapur, Maharashtra.
has proved his affidavit Ex. PW-14/1. Along with his alfidavit.
he has filed the certified copy of FIR No. 30362008, and its
Lnglish translation. The said FIR was registered by Vijapur

Naka Police Station, Solapur under Scetions 2(a). 10, 1301

Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act. 1967 against Khalid
Ahmed Muchhale on the complaint filed by Mr. S.P Bondar,
police sub-inspector. The witness in his aftidavit has staed
that the accused. Khalid Muchhale, in his statement hus
admitted that he was a member of SIMI and that on
26-3-2008 he met a senior office bearer of SIMI namely,
Safdar Nagori at Indore. A copy of the said statement is
annexed with the affidavit and Marked *X*. The witness
has aisoe annexed certified copy of the charge sheel being
RCC No. 12852011 filed in respect of the aloresaid I'I1R.
The witness has also annexed certitied copics of House
search panchnama dated 29-3-2008 and the incriminating
matetial scized therein along with the English transtation

{b) In his cross examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal.
Advocate, PW-14 stated that he was niude the investigating
officer of this case on [5-7-201 1 i.c. three months prior o
the datc of liling of the charge sheet. |te udmirted that the
FIR intespect of which the charge sheel has been filed was
on the basis of the search conducied on 29-3-2008.
However, he denied that no incriminating material wis
scized in the said search. 'The witness also denicd that

accused Khalid Muchhale has not been doing any work

for SIMI after 27-9-2001 and volunteered that Khalid
Mugchhale had gone to Balgaum along with Dr. Munsen
and he was arrested with the said doctor at Indove

¢y  Thetestimony ol the witness ¢learly estabhishes ihat
despite the ban on SIMI, clandestine activities of the
banned- organization SIMI are still continuing Vhis has
been corrpborated by the faet that one of the person by
the name of Khalid Muchhale has admitted that he has
been doing work an behall of SIMI This person has alsa
named Safdar Nagori as one of the senior members of SIMI
who is active in carrying on its activities [tmay be pertinent
here to mention that the learned ASG has submitted that
presently Satdar Nagori 18 incarcerated in connection with
the illegal activitics having been done by him tor which
varions offeaces have been registered against him.

YTa)  PWsIS, Mr. Sunjay Mohan Kamble, Molice Inspector
(Crime), Navi Mwnbai, Maharashira, has proved his
atliduvit I:x. PW=1571. Along with his alfidavit, he has liled
the centitied copy of FIR In LAC No. 1106/2006, and (he
Fryslish transtation. Phe <aid FIR was immally registered
by Glutkapar Police Statiim vnder Secions 10 & 13 ol the
Uil lal Activities { Preventiomy Avt. 1967 but subsequent s
the mvestyzation o the siwne was tansdevied to DU CHD
Uit No. VI swhorsm [ AC Na 512006 was regrstered and
alier completnm of the investigation, chiarze sheet was
Tiled by them T his examimation i chict the wimess has
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statedd thiat he was a mentberof the investigation team which
nad*rrested Nafis Aimed lamil Ahmed Ansari on
LEK-2006. 1 e funther stated that in the said IR, there were
v e accused persons. aut of which tmtially two were
miestedl and against them the charge sheet has already
been filed and the remaining three accused persons are
afsenidig. He also stated that he learnt that the third

: avcused mmely Mdc Al Alam Shaikh @ Aziz was arrested

on F0-1 12011 by P Surve and a supplementary charge

shoct i this regard was liled by P.IL Surve subsequently. tn

hes altidivit the watness has smated that during the course

ol mvestiigation ol accused No.l, Shabbir Ahmed

Musstuutlafvind aceused No 2, Nafis Ahmed jamil Ahmed.

vy revedled that they are members of banned

i, JArganaipn SIMEnd that they participated in the meetings

AR beld i the purpose of sommilting unkawiul

tvitiey  He Turther stated that through banned

irganizintion SIML with the intention of causing damage

"o public propeny and loss of Tman hife, these two accused

persems it gone w Pakistan via Dubai in May/June, 2003

and ol training tor handling arms and ammunitions and
fon preparation of bombs

thy  In hisy cross-examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-15 stated that he was a member of the (¢am
* whyeh hud arrested Nafis Ahmed Jamil Ahmed Ansari while,
fimultancously another team had arvested the other accused
Shabbir Ahmed. He further stated that he was not aware
“whether the proceedings under Sections 82 and 83 of Cr.P.C.
-were initiated against Md. Ali Alam Shaikh @ Aziz or that
Md. Ali Alam Shaikh was arrested in another case by ATS
Mumhai, whercupon his arrest was shown in the present
cihe '

(V) Al Mumbaiin Maharashira:

At Mumbali, the Central Government examined the
{llowing witnesses:— -

(i1 Mr. Suresh Digambarraa Deshpande, Asstl.
¢ ommissioner of Police, ATS, Mumbai, Maharashtra,
(PW-16);

Mr Navinchandra Datta Reddy, Superintendent of
Podice, A1S. Aurangabad. Maharashtra (PW-17);

Mt Atul Sabnis, Police Inspector. ATS, Maharashtra
(PW-18) -

%), PW-16, Mr. Suresh Digambarrae Deshpande, Asstt.
Cammissioner of Police, ATS Mumbai, Maharashtra, has
proved his affidavit Ex. PW-16/1. Along with his affidavit.
“die by Nled the certified copy of CR Ne. 31/201 | along with
 the Fuglish anslation (Ex. A-2). The said CR was registered
- with ATS Police Station, Kalachowki, Mumbai City under
Sections 120¢13), 489(B), 48%E), 34 of IPC read with Sections
G 13, 17, 18(B) of Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act,
4567 ayainst | Jlaroun Rashid Abdul Hamid Naik. The said
pugiwed way found in possession of fake Indian currency
ilos vollectively valued at Rs.97,500 knowing the same
4p b iake, order tocirculate the same as genuine. PW-16
i s attidavit s funher stated that during investigation.

3 ﬁil
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it was revealed that the accused was an aciive member of
SIMI. Further, the accused disclosed that he went 1o
Pakistan and Afghanistan to have terrorist training and
also disclosed the various unlawiul activities he had
indulged in and further disclosed the rames of two other
persons namely Asrar Ahmed Abdul | lamid Tailor @ Sagari
and Azhar Ul Islam Mohd. tbrahim Siddiqui @ Munna,
who were arrested on 12-9-201 | and 26-9-20] | respectively.
PW-16, along with his affidavit, has alse annexed the
certified copics of the statements of the aforesaid three
accused persons in vernacular as well as their English
translations [Ex. A-3 and A4 (colly)]. The Panchnama dated
18-9-201 | along with English transiation in respect of CR
No. 317201 ); the centified copies of the statements of the
wilnesses along with their English Translation; and the
cemtified copy of the charge sheet in respect 6f the aforesaid
CR are annexed with the affidavit as Ex. A-3, Ex A-6 (colly)
and L:x. A-8 respectively.

(b) In his cross-examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate representing H.A. Siddiqui and Misbah-Ul-Islam,
PW-16 stated that the case bearing CR No. 31/2011 is
pending trial and the charges have nat vet been framed
against the accused persons. He admitted that none of the
literature seized in the instant case has been published by
the arganization SIMI. He further admitted that the
statements of the accused persons were recorded when
they were in police custody.

9Xa). PW-17, Mr. Navinchandra Datta Reddy,
Superintendent of Police, ATS Aurangabad, Maharashtra,
has proved his affidavit Ex. PW-17/1. Along with his
affidavit, he has filed copy of CR No. 2/2012, and its English
translation. The said CR (FIR) was rcgistered with ATS
Kalachowki Police Station. Mumbai City under Sections
10, 13, 15 & 16 of Untawful Activitics (Prevention) Act.
1967 against Akhil Yusuf Khilji and Jafar Hussain. In his
exaimination-in-chief, the witness has stated that during
the course of investigation of the aforesaid CR (FIR), the
names of other accused persons namely Mohd. Abrar @
Munna @ [smail @ Abdui Rehman and Anwar Hussain
were disclosed and various incriminating materials have
been found against them showing their involvement in
unlawful activities. The said material has been handed over
in asealed envelope to this Tribunal, with a view to ensure
that the investigations of the case are not prejudiced, which
is raken on record,

(b} In his affidavit, the witness has staied that on the
bagis of secret information, Mohd. Abrar @ Munna @
Ismail, was arrested. He was absconding in the 2008
Ahmedabad Bomb Blast case and was an active member of
SIML. He was coming to meet his accomplices on 26-3-2012
when the ATS Aurangabad laid a trap and tried to arrest
three persons but they fired on the ATS police persons.
During retaliation, one person namely Khalil @ Azhar
Qureshi dicd while the other two were arrested.

() In his cross-examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-17 stated that he was a part of the team
involved in the encounter at Aurangabad on 26-3-2012 and
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that he had not filed any FIR with regard to the said
encounter. He admitted that he had mentioned the name of
the deceased in the encounter as Khalil @ Azhar Qureshi.
He $tated that he cannot admit or deny as to whether in the
said FIR, the name of the deceased is mentioned as Khalil
Khilji as he will have to see the said FIR. The witness has
stated that subsequent 1o the registration of the FIR, the
- cotapléte name of'the deceased as Khalil @ Azhar Qureshi
was learnt. e admiited that the investigations Lill date
have revealed that the two persons namely Mohd. Abrar
and Khatit Khilji. as well as the deceased, are the members
of the banned organization SIML The witness has further
stated that he cannet admit or deny the suggestion that
the literature which has been seized in the aforesaid FIR is
not published by $iM1 as the matter is under investigation.

(ci,! It may be pertinent to mention here that there is no
cross-examination of the witness with regard to the arrest
of Mohd. Abrar (@ Munna (@ Ismail, who was a member of
SIMI and was arrested around 26.3.20 | 2 which mecans much
after the nonfication was issued for banning the
organization on 3.2.2012.

100{a). PW-18, Mr. Atul Sabms, Police Inspector, ATS,
Maharashtra, was examined orally as the affidavit filed by
him has been withdrawn by learned counsel for Union of
India. In his examination-in-chief the witness has stated
that he is the investigating officer in respect of FIR bearing
CR No. 17/2008 dated 21.8 2008 registered with ATS Police
Station, Kalachowki, Mumbai City under Sections 10 & 13
ol the Unlawlul Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967. He further
stated that originally the FIR was registered against Firnz
Mehboob Pathan but during the interrogation, another
accused person, namely, Imtiyaz Babumiya Sheikh was also
arrested as his invoivement was feund in the case and
incriminating material in the form of book titled *Jihad-e-
Kashmir Farziyat Fajilat Aur Tarik’ was recovered from him.
In addition to this, various other incriminating articles in
the shape of Cs ete. were also recovered [rom him. He
further stated that the charge sheet in respect of the said
FIR was liled by him on 24.6.2011 against five accused
persons and afier filing of the charge sheet he had arrested
two more accused persons by the name of Shabbir
Mohiddin Gangawali and Himayat Mirza Baig. lle also
stated that e has vet to filé the supplementary charge
sheet against the two persons arrested later

(b) In his cross examination by Mr Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-I8 admitted that no recovery of material
connecled wilh the banned organization $IM1 or othérwise
has been effected from the 1wo accused persons, who have
been arresied subsequentiy Bul a book pertaining to
sl hem wh hivws that the
i1 {e
and ary s miene e et BT abn feevement of

Kashmms
(VI At-Bshatpur ie Madhya Pradesh

£ the Central Government examingd the

tollows: o dosses,

()  Mr. Mukesh Kumar Vaishya, City Superintendent of
Police, Khandwa, Distt. Khandwa, Madhya Pradesh
(PW-19);

(it} Mr. Mahendra Tarnekar, City Superintendent of
Police, Dewas, Madhya Pradesh (PW-20);

(ii) Mr. Dinesh Kaushal, City Superintendent of Police,
Rewa, Madhya Pradesh (PW-21);

(iv) Mr. Arun Kumar Mishra, Sub Divisional Officer
Police, arsi, Distt. Hoshangabad, Madhya Pradesh
(PW-22),

(v) Mr.J. K. Dixit, Deputy Superintendent of Police, ATS
Gwalior, Madhya Pradesh (PW-23);

(vi) Mr. Sohanpal Singh Chaudhary, Sub-Divisional
Officer (Police), Khacrod, Distt. Ujjain; Madhya
Pradesh (PW-24),

(vii) Mr. T.S. Baghel, City Superintendent of Police,
Mandsaur, Madhya Pradesh (PW-25);

{viii) Mr. Kiran Lashkarkar, Sub-Divisional Officer (Police),
Mundi, Distt. Khandwa, Madhya Pradesh (PW-26)

101(a). PW-19, Mr. Mukesh Kumar Vaishya, City
Superintendent of Police, Khandwa, Madhya Pradesh, has
proved his affidavit Ex. PW-19/1. Aleng with his affidavit, he
has annexed true copies of FIR Nos. 728/2009, 729/2009 &
703/2009 along with their English translation (Ex.*A’, *C’ and
‘E’ respectively). The aforesaid FIRs were registered under
Sections 302 of [PC and Sections 15/16 of Unlawful Activities
(Prevention} Act on account of the killings of three different
persons, including one constable of ATS, Khandwa namely,
Mr. Sita Ram; one advocate namely Mr. Sanjay Paul and an

officer of the bank namely, Mr. Ravi Shankar. The witness’

has alse annexed the true copies of the charge shects filed
in respect of the aforesaid three FIRs along with their English
translation [Ex_ ‘B’ ‘D" & “F’ (colly) respectively]. The witness
has stated that all the three charge sheets were filed on the
same date e, 21-12-201 1,

(b) In his cross examination by ‘Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-19 denied the suggestion that all the three
FIRs were registered in pursuance to a single incident and
volunteered that these were three separate incidents of
crime. The witness has stated that there were seven accused
persons in FIR No. 728/2009. He also stated. that efforts
were made, including conducting of raids at various places
of hiding. to arrest the three accused persons namety Sheikh
Mehboob, Zukir Hussain and Mohd. Aslam, who were
found to be suspects in FIR Nos. 728/2009 & 703/2009. He
further stated that there is only one accused namely
Ejajuddin@Riyase@ohn{@Raja@Rahul involved in FIR
No. 77972009, who is alsu involved in FIR No. 70372009, He
vilp Pelop donr acuused persans were discharoed in

PR o T st & 703 2009, He also admitied thar e
contesaannil statements ol the ascused pETSONS wre
reeorded while they sere i police custedy and volunieered
that on the bee o ol e confessional starenients. various

other evidences were collected which fortified their
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107¢). PW-20, Mr, Mahendra Tarnekar, City
Superintengient of Police, Dewas, Madhya Pradesh, has
proved his affidavit Ex. PW-20/1. Along with his affidavit,
[u: has annexed true copy of FIR No. 456/2009 along with
ity Lnghish transtation (Ex. A). The aforesaid FIR was
. registered under Section 392 of IPC for the offence of
§ robbuery ol Bank of India, Branch Vijayganj) Mandi, by 5
persons amed with pistols and other weapons.

{hy  During the course of investigation, the complicity of
-#eeused Abu Faizal, Shaikh Mehboob, Mohd. Tkrar Shaikh,
Amzid Shaikh and Zakir became clear. The Memorandum
§ ol aceused persons revealed their design fo assassinate
' thiee Judpes of Lucknow Bench of the Allahabad High
Court, whu had delivered the verdict in the Babri Masjid-
M-}wmn Bhoomi case. Further, the complicity of SIMI
'S constable Sitaram Yadav and
wld Finsnve Company was alko
f%e revealed that a significant
the amovnt looted (rom the Bank was used for
ing court proceédings for obtaining bail of Safdar
Nfifiori and other SIMI workers. The concermned advocate,
Khishid Azmi. 1o whom significant payment had béen made,
subsequently murdered. Amounts were also spent on
ntof new members, purchasing of laptop, computer
blication of Iierature/books pertaining to SIMI
on. The wilness has also- annexed true copy of
e sheet dated 24.11.201) and the relevant
ures along with its translation [Ex. B (colly)] and the
of the statements. of the accused persons {Ex. C

n his confessional statcment the accused, Abu
i}, stated that he had prepared a plan 9 do the bank
n#yfhank rabbery because the SIMI organization had
tne Ninancially very weak. For ‘the sake of strengthening
nization. he called Amjad. Zakir, Mehboob and
(o 1cwas and there all the five persons planned for
p bank robbery. He also narrated the whole incident how
tooted the aforesaid bank. In their confessional
sients. the other accused have also admitted to have
ifted the bank robbery and other illegal activities.

< In hhis cross examiation by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
vocaic, PW-20 stated that he cannot specifically state
AL whal investigations were carried out during the period
24.8.2009 10 16.6.201 1 without seeing his case diary.
wdimitted that all the five accused persens allegedly
involved in FIR No. 456/2009 became suspects afier the
Totter from AT'S Bhopal was received. He also admittéd that
pleped involvement of the accused persons in the
#fresaid I'IR is based only on the confessional statements
ﬁlﬂ\ﬂf‘lvd 10 have been made in CR NoA & 5/2011, PSATS
Bhopa! but volunteered that after receipt of information
from the AI'S Bhopal to the effect that Abu Faizal is
wirporied to have confessed his involvement in FIR No.
4 86/2009, the formal arrest of the said acoused in the
iforesnid FIR was shown and the matter was investigated

firmed the lindings imimated 1o them by ATS Bhopal.

Wehuding the interrogation of the accused person, which

The witness also admitted that no document from the
accused persons, which could show their connection with
the organization SIMI, was recovered in this case but
volunteered that from the posscssion of Amjad, some
documents relating to unlawful activities being carried out
by the banned organization SIMI were recovered by ATS
Khandwa and similar documents were also seized from
other three accused persons by ATS Bhopal. The witness
denied the suggestion that FIR No. 456/2009 is false and
fabricated and that these accused persons have no
connection with the banned organization SIML.

103(2). PW-21, Mr.Dinesh Kumar Kaushal. City
Superintendent of Police, Rewa, Madhya Pradesh, has
proved his affidavit Ex. PW-21/1. Along with his affidavit,
he has filed a true copy of charge sheet in Crime No. 4/2011
under Sections [20(B), 124(A), 153(A), 153(B), 353, 420,
467, 468, 471 of IPC, Sections 25 & 27 of Arms Act and
Sections 3, 10, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 38, 3% &40 of
Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act along with various
other documents forming part of the charge sheet [Ex.
A(colly)]. The witness in his examination-in-chief kas

stated that during the course of investigation it has been

revealed that members of Muslim community belonging to
organization SIMI were targeting the members of RSS.
Further, it was revealed from the seized electronic data from
the personat computer of Abu Faizal, an accused, that the
messages were sent to various members-of the commursity
by the members of the banned organization SIMI, spreading
hatred amongst various communities and had the potential. *

* of disfurbing the integrity and sovercignty of India. He

further stated that the three accused persons namely, Dr.
Abu Faizal, Mohd. Ikrar and Sheikh Mchboob were
absconding-and there was evidence to the effect that thiy
were earlieralso involyed in unlaw ful activities of the béll'll']_ﬂ’d
organization SIMI and that Dr. Abu Faizal and Mohd. Tkar
had conducted a training camp at Raipur on 2 1stand 22nd
May. 2011 for the purpese of galvanizing the activities of
the banned organization SIMI and recruiting mere
members. Similar camp was also conducted at Bhopal.

{b) The witness has also stated that decision was’taken
by these persons that they would loot the money from the
persons/institutions which lend money on interest us that
was un-lslamic and the looted money could be utilized for
furthering the objectives of the banned organization SIMI
and for this purpose the members of the organization had
conducted various bank dacoities. Further. the accused
persons had resorted to communication through the
medium of internet with the help of internet cafe since the
mobile phones had the potential of their getting detected
and arrested. The modus operandi which was followed by
the members was that they will not go online with the other
members; they would draft a message and give the
passwords to the members on the other side, who will'open
the file, read the message and thereafier delete the same.
With this modus operandi, the activities of the banned
organization SIMI were continued and they widened the
membership net of the organization SIMI. The witness
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further stated that the members of the banned organization
SIMI alse adopted the modus operandi of changing their
names to Hindu names and then targeting the selected
persons who were acting as hurdles in the way of
propagating the objectives of SIMI. The witness also stated
that the accused persons also got published books on
Jehad which gave 44 methods of waging Jehad and apart
from this, various other books and visual materials like
DVDs, VCDs were seized which were used for propagation
of the objectives of the banned organization SIMI and also
for the purpose of achieving Muslim rule in the country.

(¢) In his cross examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-21 admitted that the statements of the
accused persons were recorded while they were in police
custody and that he had not recorded the statements of
the accused persons under Section 164 Cr.P.C. The witness
denied the suggestion that the connection of aceused with
the activities of SIMI regarding which he had testified in
court is solely on the basis of the confessional statements
attributed 10 the accused persons. The witness also dented
the suggestion that the setzed articles like DVDs, VCDs,
pen drives or the laptop/hard disk have no material which
is relatable to the banned orgamzation SIMI and further
denied the suggestion that the e-mails which have been
intercepted and seized do not have any reference to the
activities of the organization SIMI.

(d) The testimony of the witness is very important
because he has not only taiked about recovery of books
but also visual material like DVD, VCD, which 'were
containing seditious material. from the accused persons
and has also proved the fact that although the word “SIMI’
may not have been used in any article seized but it certainly
shows that the activities of the SIMI are continuing even
as on date.

164(a). PW-22, Mr. B.P. Mishra, Sub-Divisional Officer
{Police), Itarsi, Distt. Hoshangabad, Madhya Pradesh, has
proved hisaffidavit Ex. PW-22/1. Along with his affidavit,
he has filed true copies of FIR Nos. 168/2010 and 722010
(Ex. “A & (' respectively). FIR No. 168/2010 was registered
under Sections 395 & 397 of IPC by Police Statian Itarsi,
Distt. Hoshangabad pertaining to a dacoity which had taken
place in Canara Bank, Branch Itarsi. The witness in his
examination-in-chief has stated that the aforesaid case was
originally registered as a case of robbery, however
subsequent therclo. it was solved and some persons who
were sympathizers of SIMI were suspected 1 be invelved,
Charge sheet (Fx "F) i respeet of the aforésaid FIR was
filed by the witness and six accused persons namely Mohd

[krar, Mohd, Aslam, Abu Faizal, Mohd. Ejajuddin Ahmed,
Zakir Hussain and Sheikh Mujib have been sent for facing
the trial. FIR 72/2010 was registered under Sections 379,
467 & 41| of IPC on account of theft of a motorcycle which
was allezedly used by the accused persons for the purpose
of committing the bank robbery. The charge shect in respect
ol FIR No. 72/2010 was anncxed as Ex. *H’ along with the
said affidavit.

(b} In his cross examinatian by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-22 stated that there are six accused persons

in FIR No. |68/2010, who were amested by Mr. B.S. Basunia,
sub-inspector. He admitted that the aforesaid six aceuscd
persons were already under arrest in different FIRs and
their formal arrest was shown in the FIR Nos. 168/2010 and
72/2019 only in order to complete the formalities. He further
admitted that no material pertaining to SIMI has been
recovered in the aforesaid two FIRs but voluntegred that
when Safdar Nagori, leader of SIMI and other office bearers
were arrested, they made Dr. Abu Faizal as the leader of the
banned arganization SIMI and conferred on him the title
*Amir”. Similarly, Mohd. lkrar was conferred on the title
*Ansar’. All these accused persons used 1o collect money
by legal and illegal means and were using the said moncy
for the purposes of furthering the objectives of the banned
organization SIMI. The witness also admitted that no
attempt was made to get the confessional statements of
the accused persons recorded under Section 164 of Cr.P.C.

{¢) The testimony of this wilness is important on
account ol the fact that the witness has stated that the
accused, who were basically anti-social elements. were
making the plans to loot banks ete. This witness has fortified
the fact that these fringe elements were given incentives
by conferring titles on them. He has also admitted that the
money so lpoted was used to procure the new ammanition.

105(a). PW-23. Mr. J, K. Dixit, Deputy Superintendent of
Police, ATS Gwalior, Madhya Pradesh, has proved his
affidavit Ex. PW=23/1. Alung with his affidavit, he has filed
a true-copy of charge sheet in Crime No. 5/201 [ along with
various other documents forming part of the charge sheet
[Ex. A(colly)]. The said Crime No. 5/201 | was registered
under Sections 25 & 27 of Arms Act and Sections 3, 10,
13(1) & 13(2) of Unlawful Activitics ( Prevention) Act against
lour accused persons namely Shickh Mujeeb, Mohd. Aslam,
Muohd. 11abib and Mohd. Sazid and various incriminating

material ineluding the pistol, knife. membership forms of -

SIMI, pamphlets regarding Babri Musjid. books related to
Indian Mujahiddin etc. and pen drive, one CD etc. were
seized and the said accused were arrested.

(b) In his cross examination by Mr. Ashok Agzarwal.
Advocate, PW-23 admitted that he was not a member of the
team which arrested Shiekh Mujeeb, Mohd. Aslam, Mohd.
Habib and Mohd. Sazid on 4-6-2011. He also admitted that
the slatements of the aforesaid four accused have not been
recorded by, him and that their statements were recorded
whilethey were in police custody. He further admitted that
i various agicles like CDs, pen drives and DV Ds, except in
one DVD, there is no mnention about organization SIMI
becuuse of it being the banned organization. However, n
one of the DVD's, there is a reference to the activities.of the
banned orzanization SIMI. He also admitied that the e-mails
which have been retied upon in the affidavit do not have a
relerence to the organization SIMI as it is banned but
essentially the e-mails have been exchanged for the purpose
of spreading the activities of the banned organization STMI,
The witness denied (he suggestion that the membership
farms of SIMI. whivh have been recovered, are forged and
fabricated by the police
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{«t The wilness has withstood the test of cross-
examinatith conducted by the learned counsel for the
; applicunts. Nothing has been brought on record which
eauwld persuade this Tribunal to discard his testimony. He
han 1estified regarding the DVD, CD, pen-drives etc. Only
g of the VD was having the reference to the banned
wrganizaton SIMI. Similarty, the witness has also testified
reparding recovery ef membership forms of SIMI. He has
s denied the suggestion that these forms are forged and
fabricated. There is hardly any personal interest of the
wilness 1o lorge or fabricate the documents. Same logic
would equally apply to the State apparatus. So far as the
tevovery of CD and the VCD are concerned, the absence of
 {he name ol the SIMI is immaterial because when the
_ grganization is banned and ils activities are being carried
elundestinely, it is but natural that precautions would
Auken 10 sce that the name SIMI does not get reflected

ARy manner.

{08(a). PW-24, Mr. Sohanpal Singh Chaudbary, Sub-
Hisiona! Officer (Police), Khacroad, Distt. Ujjan, Madhya
tadesh, has proved his affidavit Ex. PW-24/1. Along with
¥ affidavit, he has filed the true copy of FIR No. 112/2010
g with its English transtation (Ex. A). The said FIR was
pered at PS Birlagram. Distt. Ujjain under Sections 307,
340l IPC, Sections 25, 27 of Arms Act and various
w of'the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967
keven accused persons namely Abu Faizal, Zakir,
¥arhat, Sharafat Ali, Zubair Shah, lmran Shah and
)d Shah at the instance of Bheru Lal Tank, the
ntnant, who was shot at on the date of the incident at
1745 ., in Birlagram, Distt. Ujjain by three unknown
pns. The witness has stated that the three accused
jony were arrested on 2-6-2011, who admitted their
vement in the incident. He further stated that on the
of their interrogation, recovery of various articles
in the commission of the offence was effected. The
irge sheet filed in respect of the aforesaid FIR was
pexed with the aiTidavit as Ex. B. Truc copies of the
ts of the accused persons were also annexed with
fMdavitas Bx .

«In his cross examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
¢, PW-24 has admitied that apart from one poster,
sriicle has been seized during the course of
i I the instant case, which bears the name or
mee (o the organization STML. He stated that three of
&ocused persons namely Zakir, Abu Faizal and Farhat,
# shown 1o hve been formally arrested on production
t& as they were in judicial custody. The witness
the suggestion that the information regarding the
eément of aforesaid three accused persons was
from ATS Bhopal and volunteered that these three
pirsnhy were named by the other three accused
jersons nismcly Imran Shah, Zubair Shah and Shahzad
jah, during their intcrrogation. The witness admitted that
#1d nat make uny effort 1o get the statement of any of
Weuse persons recorded under Section 164 Cr.P.C. but
nied the suggestion that the connection between the

organization SIMI and the accused persons is purely on
the basis of the statements attributed to them and
volunteered that there are other evidences also which
connect the organization SIMI with the accused persons,

107(a). PW-25, Mr. T.8. Baghel, City Superintendent of
Police, Mandsaur, Madhya Pradesh, has proved his affidavit
Ex. PW-25/1. Along with his affidavit, he has filed the truc
copy of FIR No. 149/2010 along with its English translation
(Ex. A). The said FIR was registercd a1 PS Mandi, Distt,
Mandsaur under Section 394 of [PC and Scotions 25 & 27
of Arms Act on account of a bank robbery which tock
place on 1-6-2010 at State Bank of Indore, Branch
Pipliyamandi. In his affidavit. the witness has stated that
the accused persons were acling in furtherance of the
concerted design to indulge in bank robbery in scveral
districts of Madhya Pradesh with a vicw to fund the SIMI
organization and its activities. The true copy of charge
sheel and supplementary charge sheet in respect of
aforesaid FIR along with relevant anncxures is anncxed
with the affidavitas Ex. B (colly).

(b) In his cross-examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-25 has stated that two cassclles were seized
from Mohd. Sadiq, which had the literature pertaining o
SIMI organization. He admitted thal apart from these two
cassettes, no other literature has been scized in this case
naming the organization SIMI and that the CLs which were
recovered were actually the video CDs. The witness has
clarified that by referring to the word “cassetie’ what he
meant was VCDs and further clarificd that as a martter of
practice when he used the word ‘casscite’, he meant CDs,
be it VCDs or DVDs. He stated that lic was not aware as to
how many documents are contained in the CDs as he has
‘not seen the CDs.

(c) The witness has stated that in the police record there
was no mention about the serial number of the currency
notes which were looted. However, the description of the
cutrency notes was available to the police. e admitted
that the bank notes were identified by the officials of the
bank in the presence of the Exccutive Magistrate, Malhar
Grah and volunteered that each bank puts its own slip and
a distinct mark on the notes and it was on account of this
description that the currency notes were identified. |le
further admitted that the serial numbers of the currency
notes tooted from the bank were not received from the
bank, however, the currency notes were identified on 1he
basis of the paper slip which was put on the bundles by
the branch which was looted. In reply to a question “was
there any identification mark of the currency notes given
in the complaint on the basis of which the FIR was
registered’, the wilness has stated that the FIR talks about
the fact that the total currency notes were Rs. L00.339/-,
out of which Rs. 84,000/~ was in torn/mutilated/bad
condition which were kept in differem bundles to be sent
to Reserve Bank of India and a sum of Rs.16,339 were the
good currency notes.

(d) The testimony of this witness is very important {0
establish that the banned organization SEMI isstill carryving



300 THE GAZETTE OF INDJA: EXTRAORDINARY

{Pazr 11—Skc. 3(ii))

on its unlawful activitics. This is revedled from the
adhmission ol Lk arrested persons who had looted the bank
maney, a part of which was subsequently recovered and
duly identified by the officials ol the bank with (he help of
paper slips which are put on the bundles of notes. Absence
of identification through numbers is not possible unless
and until it is brought on record that currency notes were
fresh. It has also been testified by the witness that the
money so looted was in fact used for furthering the illegal
activities of the banned organization SIMI.

108¢a). PW-26, Mr. Kiran |.ashkarkar, Sub-Divisional Officer
{Police), Mundi, Distt. Khandwa, Madhya Pradesh, has
proved his alfidavit as well as supplementary affidavit Ex.
PW-26/1 & PW-26/2. Along with his affidavit (Ex. PW-26/
13, he has annexed the true copy of FIR No. 319/2011 along
with its Enghish translation (Ex. A). The said FIR was
registered on 14-6-2011 under Section |53(A) of [PC,
Sections 25. 27 of Arms Act and Sections 3, 10, 13 of the
Unlawful Activities (prevention) Act on account of
gathering of 10-15 members/activists of the banned
arganization SIMI i the house of Akhil Khilzi, who were
planping/conspiring to commit untoward and anti-national
acts/attacks. Ten accused persons were arrested from the
spot while five accused persons were absconding. The
charge sheet in respect of the aforesaid FIR was annexed
with the affidavit as Ex. [.

(b)  Along with the supplementary affidavit (Ex. PW-26/
2), the witness has annexed various documents consisting

of literature showing the activities of SIMI; seized during:

the course of investigation of the aforesaid case. The
witness in his examination-in-chief has stated that he had
arrested 13 accused persons whose names are given in
the: charge sheet itself and four accuséd persons were'
shown by him in the final report as absconding.

{c) 1In his cross examination by Mr. Ashok-Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-26 admitted that he was not the member of
the raiding police party but has stated that the accused
persons, at the time of their arrest, were talking aboul the
activities of the SIMI and Jehad. Membership forms of
SIMI were alsoa recovered from them and their previous
records also show their association with SIMI. The witness
has stated that he do not know as to whether Al Furkan
magazine printed and published in Pakistan has any
connection with SIMI but volunteered that it contained
objectionahle and seditious material. 1e admitted that the
magazine does not use the word SIMIL. The witness denied
the suggestion that Nawa-¢-Jihad. Afghan magazine, does
nol have any connection with the orgnization SIMI and
volunteered that it does not bear/use the word 'SIMI’,
however, it 1s connected with the organization SIMI. The
witness also admitted thal he did not make any attempt to
have the statements of the accused persons recorded under
Section 164 of Cr.P.C.

(d) This witness alse restified regarding recovery of
seditious material. The recovery of this material coupled
with the fact that at the time of their arrest the accused
persons were talking about SIMI and Jehad clearly shows

that though the organization SIMI may be banned on paper
but disgruntled, misguided, , indoctrinated youths are still
proceeding ahead with the illegal agenda of spreading
hatred amongst different communities and thus posing a
threat to the national unity and integrity.

(Vi) At Ahmedabad in Gujarat:

At Ahmedabad, the Central Government examined
the following witnesses —

(0 M™Mr. Mayur Jagmalbhai Chavda, Assistant
Commissioner of Police, Crime Branch, Ahmedabad
City, Gujarat, (PW-27); and

(i) Mr. Vajesinh Vakhatsinh Rathod, Assistant
Commissioner of Police, F-Division, Surat City,
Gujarat, (PW-28)

109(a). PW-27, Mr. Mayur Jagmalbhai Chavda, Assistant
Commissioner of Police, Crime Branch, Ahmedabad City,
Gujarat, has proved his affidavit Ex. PW-27/1. Along with
his affidavit, he has filed copies of the details of FIR of
seven cases along with English translation in respect of
which he was the investigating officer (Ex. A). In his
examination-in- chief, he has stated that FIR No. 236/2008
of Shahi Baug Police Station was registered under Segtions
120(B}, 121A, 124A, | 53A, 302, 307,463, 468:&471 of IPC,
Sections 3, 5, 6 & 7 of Explasive Subsiances Act and

Sections 10, 13 & 16 of Unlawful Activities {Prevention)

Act, 1967 and the charge sheet filed in respectof the same
‘{Ex.B) has been treated as the lead case by the Trial Count.
He further stated that more than 20 charge sheets have
been filed in respect of serial homb blasts which had taken
piace at various places in Ahmedabad, which have been
clubbed together. Around the same time, cases pertaining
to the bomb plantation, which were defused, in Surat were
also registered. Those cases. registered in, Surat have also
been transferred to the Special Court in Ahmedabad to be
tried along with the lead case FIR No. 236/2008. He also
stated that in all, there are 70 accused persons who have
been arrested till date. Out of these 70, charges agains 64
accused persons have already been framed and they are
fucing the trial. Charges against the six accused persons
have not been framed. Apart from these accused, there are
28 other suspects in the case, who are absconding or yet
to be arrested. The witness has further stated that during
interrogation of the accused persons by him, it was leant
that these accused persons were erstwhile members of the
banned organization SIMI and they had also provided
shelter to the persons who had absconded and all these 70
accused persons and some of the absconding persons are
involved in cages pertaining to offences under the Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 in other Siates also.

{b) In his cross examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-27 has stated that he does not recall how
many wilnessey are termed as star witnesses in the charge
sheets and that he will not be able to state orally the year in
which the statements of these star witnesses were recorded
under Section 164 Cr.P.C. The witness has further stated
that he has filed the copy of the charge sheet in support of
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s_! his statement (hat Indian Mujahiddin is the new name of
1 banned organization SIMI, wher¢in it has been stated

i Ihal the activities of the banned organization SIM| are being

3 vartied on under the name of Indian Mujahiddin. He stated

| that the connection between the banned organization SIM]
and the Indian Mujahiddin is also reflected in the various

B documents annexed along with the charge sheet. The

wilness has stated that he had filed the supplementary
chiarge sheet where the allegations regarding stealing of
virs and making of bombs were levelled against the accused
persuns but denicd the suggestion that he had no material
in urder to substantiate the said allegations. The witness
wlso denied the suggestion that large number of Muslim
youths were illegally detained and tortured after the blast
#ted 1hat their stutements under Section 161 CrP.C. were
werded sRor toruring them,

FW-28, Mr Vajesinh Vakhatsinh Rathod, Assistant
inmiksioncer of Police, F-Division, Surat City, Gujarat, was
amined orally. 1n his examination-in-chief, he has stated
that he has been sppointed as the investigating officer on
25-7-2011 in respect of 15 Surat bomb plantation cases and
subsequent therete he arrested five absconding accused
petsons. Qut of these five accused persons, supplementary
charge sheet has already been filed against four accused
" persons, which is pending trial in the Special Court, So far
a% the lifth accused, Mohd. Abrar, is concerned, the
pupplementary charge sheet aganst him is not yet filed as
the case is still under investigation. He further stated that
during his investigation, he learnt that some of the accused
© " persons became members of the banned organization SIMI
in 2005, 2006 or later years and that although the
orpanization has been banned officially, but surreptitiously,
it is carTying on its activities.

(b) 1n his cross examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-28 has stated that the statements of these
nceused persons were recorded while they were in police
custody. He denied the suggestion that he had no material
available with him to make a statement that these accused
persons were members of SIMI or joined the said
organization ot gny point of time. He also denied the
suggestion that he bas no proof to show that the banned
organization SIMI is functioning as on date.

“At) 8 would be travesty of truth in case the submission
of Mr. Aggarwal that there is no proofto show that banned
organization 1s not functioning, is accepted. The very fact
(hat the last report of the Tribunal upholding the ban on

that unlawful, rather criminal and illegal, activities of the
nrganization are being carried on through or under new
names like Indian Mujahideen etc.

(1X) At llyderabad in Andhra Pradesh :
Atflyderabad. the Central Gavernment examined the

lolhswime witnesses - '

I Mr. M. Nagesh™Nara Rao. Deputy Suptd. of Police.
Counter tntellizence Cell PS Hyderabad, Andlwa
Pradesh (1M W-29);

the organization was received is itself indicative of the fact -

2 Mr V. N. V. Satyanarayana, Add|. Suptd. of Police,
Eluru, W.Gi. District, Andhra Pradesh, (PW-30);

3. Mr K. R. Nagaraju, Asstt. Commissioner of Police,
Special Investigation Team, Hyderabad City, Police,
Hyderabad, (PW-31);

4, Mr. G. Guru Raghavendra, Inspector of Police; Abid
Road Police Station, Hyderabad City, Andhra
Pradesh, (PW-32);

5. Mr. G Girish Rao, Inspector of Police, Narayanaguda
P.3., Hyderabad City, Andhra Pradesh, (PW-33);

6.  Mr V.C. Sajjanar, Deputy Inspector General of Police,
C.L. Cell, Intelligence Department. Andhra Pradesh,
(PW-34);

7. Mr B. Bhaskar, Inspector of Police, C.LD., EO.W.,
Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, (PW-35).

111{a}. PW-29, Mr. M. Nageshwara Rao, DSP, PS Counter
Intelligence Cell, Hyderabad proved his affidavit Ex. PW-
29/1. In his affidavit the witness has deposed in respect of
two FIRs, viz. (i) CR No. 01/2009 under Sections 307, 324,
332 read with Section 34 IPC and Sections 27(i}A) of the
Arms Act and Sections 120B, 121, 121(A), 122, 124(A) IPC
and Sections 13(1 Xa)(b), 16, 18, 20 of Unlawful Activities
(Prevention) Act, 1967; and (ii) CR No. 02/2009 under
Sections 120(B), 302,307, 121, 121(A), 122, 124{A) IPC and
Sections 25 & 27 of the Arms Act, 1959 read with Section 34
IPC and Sections 13(1)(a)b), 16, 18, 20 of Unlawful
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967,

(b) InCR No.01/2009, it is alleged that accused Viquar
Ahmed, while under surveillance. resisted the surveillance
team of intelligence on 3-12-2008 and opened fire on the
police party. He was able to escape with the help of his two
associates after injuring two police personnel, who had 1o
be treated at the hospital. Pursuant to this incident FIR
No. 358/2008 dated 3-12-2008 was registered at PS
Kanchanbagh which was subsequently re-registered as
FIR Neo. 81/2009 at PS Octopus on 16-6-2009. Charge sheet
in this case has been filed on 18-2-2011 and the matier is
pending trial,

(c) Itis claimed in the affidavit that dccused Viquar
Ahmed is a close associate of Moutasin Billa, a SIMI
activist and son of Maulana Abdul Alim Ishali, active
member of jamaat-e-1slami Hind and advisor to SIMI. 1tis
also alleged that accused Viquar Ahmed had earlier also
been actively involved in propagating jehad and further in
May, 2067, he gave a hard disk containing jehadi literature,
training camps and speeches of Mauland ‘Masood Azhar
etc. to jaber, Yaserand Moutasin Billa, which was handed
over to Safdar Nagori, erstwhile acting President and
Secretary General of SIML. It is further alleged that accused
Viguar Ahmed has friends of jehadi mentality and people
who are sympathizers of SIMI and the other front
vrgamizations of SIMI, viz, Darsgah- Sehad-O-Shahadat and
Tahreek Tahaftuz Shahar-e- Islam.

(d)  IECR No. 02/2009 accused Viguar Ahmed along with
his associutes is alleged to have opened fire on two police
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personne] after confirming that they were Hindus. One of
the attacked police personne! died on way to the hospital
and the other was admitted as an in-patient. Pursuant 1o
the incident FIR No. [57/2009 dated 18-5-2009 was
registered which was subsequently re-registered as FiR
No. 02/2009 on 16-6-2009 at PS C.1. Cell, Hyderabad. The
investigation of the said FIR revealed that accused Vigquar
Ahmed and his associates have close connections with
SIMI, including its militant cadres and the Indian
Mujahiddin. H{owever, in view of the ban on SIMI, they
had floated another organization under the name of Tahreek-
CGalbha- e-Islam (TGI). Investigations also revealed that
the aim of TGl is to eliminate the enemies of Islam and to
take revenge on police personnel who killed the Muslims
in the firing alicr the Mecca Mosque blast.

(¢)  PW-29. along with his affidavil, has also annexed the
confessional statement of Viguar Ahmed, recorded while
he was in police custody, This statement was recorded on
14-7-2010 by the Deputy Suptd. of Police, PS Octopus,
Hyderabad in the presence of two panchayatdars: In the
said confesstonal statement, the accused admiticd that after
reading several articles on Gujarat Communal Riots and
coming to know about the alleged atrocities on Muslims
and burning of Muslims alive by Sangh Parivar activists,
he started downloading material from varicus Jebad
websites like Al-Musra, Al-Furkan.com etc, and collected
Iehadi literature, speechies of Maulana Masood Azhar etc.
and stored the same in CIs to molivate youth towards
Iehadi ideology. This literature on CDs was handed over
1o Safdar Nagori through Amjad. Arshad and Javed. which
was later used to train SIMI cadres during their training
camps. He further admitied having indulged in a number of
robberies and murders and procured arms and ammunition
for commission of the crimes. In his other confessional
statement recorded by Mr. 8. Srinivasa Rao, Inspector of
Police. Oclopus. in the presence of two panchayatdars,
Viquar Ahmed has admitted that he along with his cousin
Amjad (@ Suleman, Dr. Haneef and Zakib decided to float
Tahreck-Galbha-e-1slam with the sole aim of eliminating
the enemies of Islam and take revenge on police personnel
who killed the Muslim in firing afler Mecca Mosque blast
at Hyderabad and to implement the Shariat Law in the
country.

(i In his cross-examination, PW-29 has denied the
suggestion that accused Viguar Ahmed is not connected
with the two cases or that the name of SIMI has been
iegally mterpolated to bring about the connection. He
has lurther stated that even though Tahreek Tahatfus
Shahar-g-1skun (1 1S1) is not a banned organization bur a
the time ol the death of Osama Bin Laden. they had
conducied prayers for peace 1o his soul. During his cross-
examination, he alse produced a copy of the print oul
downleaded from internel, marked "X, in respect of the
Daily Sivasal. which shows the prayer meeting being
coniucted for Osama Bin Laden. He has further stated that
the said organization is involved in conducting Jehadi
activities. He also denied the suggestion that the

confessional statement of Viquar Ahmed is concocted or
false. He also denied the sugzestion that there is no material
to show that SIMI continues to exist.

(g) This is one of the most imporiant witness who has
testified regarding the activities of the banned organization
in the State of Andhra Pradesh. It seems from the testimony
of the witness that the temtacles of the banned organization
have deep roots in the State and the unlawful activities of
the banned organization are being carried by highlv
motivated persons owing allegiance to the said
organization,

112a). PW-30, Mr. V.N.V. Satyanarayana, Addl

Superintendent of Police. Eluru, West Godavari Distriel,
Andbra Pradesh, appeared in the withess box and proved
his affidavit Exh. PW-30/1. The witness has stated that he
arrested the accused Viquar Ahmed vide arvest memo dated
15-7-2010(Ex. P-2)and recorded his panchnama/statement
in CR No. 02/2009 of PS C1 Cell, Hyderabad, in the presence
of panchayatdars (Ex.P-1).

(b) In his affidavit the witness has stated that the
accused Viguar Ahmed is a close associate of Moutasim
Billa, brother of late Mujahed Saleecm, SIMI activist and
s/o Moulana Abdul Aleem Ishali, active member of Jamat-
e-Islami [lind & advisor to SIML. He further stated that the
accused was also a close associate of Baleequiddin
Jaber, who is President of TTSI (Tahreck Tahaffiez Shuhar-
e-1slam. which s a front organization of SIMI) and an
accused in Haren Pandya murder case. |le also stated that
Vigquar Ahmed and his associates have close connections
with SIMI (including its militant cadres) and Indian
Mujahiddin. but since there is a ban on SIMI, they have
floated a new organization under the name of TGI so that
the activities of SIMI and Indian Mujahiddin can be
continued un-interruptedly.

(¢} The witness has annexed the scizure memo-cum-
conlessional statement of the accused. Viquar Ahmed,
along with his affidavit (Ex. P-1). In the scizure memo i1 is
mentioned that pistols, magazine containing 8 rounds ol
live cartridges. pen drives containing jehadi literature and
other objectionable items were recovercd from the accused.
In his confessional statemenl. the accused admitted that
he procured air guns and other weapons for committing
robberics. 1le also admitted that in June. 2007, he looted

the e-seva centre, Banjara Hills and robbed the cash of

Rs.2.60.000 and while escaping he opened fire on sceurity
guard who tried to cateh him and injured him. He also
adoitied tha aller reading seversl articles on Gujarat
Commnnal Riots and coming to know about the alleged
atrocitics on Muslims and buming ol Muslims alive by
Sungh Parivar Activists, hie started downloading material
troms sarious ehadh websites like Al-Musra, Al-Furkan.com
cte and coliected fehady herature, speeches 6f Maulana
Masood Azhar cre and stored the same in CDs to medivate
youth tewsrds Jehadi ideology. This literature and the €1y
were handed over to Safdar Magori through Amjad. Arshad
and Javed, which was Lter wsed o 1rain SIM1 cadres during
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thesr training camps. He further admitted having indulged
n i nigmber of robbenies and murders and procured arms
and anmmanition for commission of the crimes.

() I his cross-examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Atlvacate, PW-30 stated that he apprehended accused
Viguar Ahmed aleng with two more accused persons on
V4-7-20 143 a1 7:00 pm after which he conducted their personal
segrch wnd recorded thedr statements and thereafter showed
then Innnal arrest on 13-7-2010 in the moming at pelice
statlon. He further stated that he started the recording of
the ¢ ontessional statement of the accused Viguar Ahmed
at ubgat 19:15 houry and linished it by 21:30 hours. He
wdmitted that the questions werd pul o the acoused in
il#ft&il am! his Rswers were also inthe same language but
:orded i English after translation. He
{mply usked fhe question to (he
: sodd, whersupon the accosed
aventa which is recorded
Rfn it mir:mem He dended the suppestion
ik vty n!‘lhc panch withesses had signed the statement
1 472010 (the portion where the witness has put the
#e ik 18- 722010 is encircled as poriian “X and stated that
~fiy 1000 pm. everybody, including the accused and panch
“Witfivssey, signed the statement. He also denied the
Sggostion that the accused had not made the statement
lurmily and thal the statement was signed by the panch
viticsaos fater and not at the time of recording of the
nént. e further denied the suggestion thal Viquar
Ahinied was coerced to make the statement and because of
& teason, he did not take any steps to record the
emuit under Section 164 Cr.P.C. and that the primary
tpmne of recording this statement was to make out a
gonnoction between SIMLE and these cases.

{&n). PW-31, Mr. K.R. Nagaraju. Assistant Commissioner
f Pulice, Special Investigation Team, Hyderabad. Andhra
Feadesh. uppeared and proved his affidavit exhibit PW-
/1. The witness in his affidavit has depased inrespect of
Wi FIKs, viz. (i) FIR No. 287/2011 registered on
1{1-2011 by Central Crime Station CC5/SIT, Hyderabad
eor Scctions 1208, 12 1A, 123, 126 IPC and Sections 10,
3 & 3 ofUnlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, [967 (Ex. P-
Jithi) FIR No. 380/201 I registered on 22-10-201§ by PS
Huegumpel, 1 yderabad under Sections 420, 468, 1208 [PC:
and (i) FIR No.87/2010 registered on 14-5-2010 by PS/SIT
Hussainialam, Hyderabad under Sections 302, 120-B, 122,
123, 124 A & 34 of IPC, Sections 23( 1)(A) & 27 of Indian
ArmsAct and Sections 16, 18 & 20 of Unlawful Activities
{Prevention) Act, H967.

ilsy InFIR No.287/201 1, it is stated that in ferms of memo
reveved from DCP. East 70ne vide No. 438/DCP/EZ/Camo/
2011 dated 1-9-2011 to register a case under appmpnate
Kovtons of law about the. unlawful activities of the accused
persons in Saidabad, Hyderabad and to thoroughly
investigale the involvement of the accused persons Mr.
Myed Afak [gbal @ Danish Igbal @ Danish Rivazuddin, a
SIMI activist, who was arrested on 21-6-2011 by Gujarat
Palice, this FIR was registered. It is alleged that during the
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interrogation of'the accused by Mayur §, Chavda, Assistant
Commissiener of Police, Crime Branch, Ahmedabad City. it
was revealed that the =aid accused is an active member of
SIMI.

{c)  During the investigation, it was revealed that during
the period when Shahid Badar was the president o' SIML,
Safdar Nageri had formed a new format ol SIMUin the name
of SIM. Afaqg Igbal had joined the said group of Saldar
Nagori and had attended the Choral (M_F) and Waghmon
{Kerala) Trainmg Camps in July 2007 & December. 20067
respectively wherein various kinds ol trainings were
imparted including the making of petrol bombs besides
Jehadi speeches being delivered on Godhva riots and Babri
Masjid demelition. 11 is further alleged that the accused
Afag Igbal in October, 2009 had given shetter to the persons
aceused inthe Ahmedabad serial bomb blasts namely Tuukic
Mujib and Abdulrajik Mansuri. The attested copy of the
statement of Atag lgbal recorded in Gujarau along with its
English translation isalso annexedwith the affidavit (Ex, P-
2).

{(d) In FIR No. 380/2011, it is alleged that the accused
Afaq lgbal ebtained SIM cards from Airtel and Tata Indicom
Cellular Services by furnishing fake and forged documents
under the name Manzor Aslam Sfe Jamil Khan, Réo Road
Ne. 10-C, Gayathri HillsColony. Jubitee Hills and another
ene in the name of V. Mohan Babu, Rino4-15, Jagerpally.
Pedda Aruveedu, Prakasham District AP. During his stav
at Hyderabad, he made efforts to re-grioup SIMI cadres. A
complaint letter dated 22-10-2011 in this regard has been
recewved from the Nodal Officer, Bhani Airte] Lid. addressed
to the Police Inspector, PS Begampet along with various
attested copies of the documents furnished by the accused
to obtain SIM cards (Ex. P-4).

{¢)  InFIR No.87/2010, itisalleged” that on 14-5-2010,
Hyder Baig, AS| of Kamatipura PS, PC 9884 of Hussamialum
PS and HC 627, PCs 811, 649 and 1077 of ARSP 11th BN
were on picket duty at Velga Hetel 1™ Junction,
Himmathpura in view of the Friday Prayers. Alter Friday
prayers, the Civil PC Y884, G Santha Ragp. and APSP PC 649,
U. Ramesh, remained at the picket. Atabout 4.00 pm, two
unknown persons came on a two wheeler and suddenly
fired 3 rounds on them with” weapon. dug 1o which PC 649
of 11th BN, APSP, U. Ramesh, reeeived hullet injuries on
his chest, back side of teft waist and left forearm
Immediately, injured PC 649, U. Ramesh, was shifled o
Osmania General Hospital, Hyderabad for treatmment, where
the duty doctor declared him as brought dead. 1t is further
alleged that Tahreek Galba-e-Islam™ (1'Gil) # terror group
ctaimed the responsibility of killing the constable as a
revenge of Killing of Muslims in the police firing during
Bomb Blast at Mecca Mosque on [8-5-2007.

(N  The accused, Viquar Ahmed, who was arrested on
14-7-2010 by PS Octopus in CR No. 2/2009, was re-arrested
in lhis case by filing P'T. Warrant (I3ody vwarrant) under
Section 267 Cr.P.C. and regularized his arestin the case on
23-7-2010. During the course of investigation, il has been
revealed that the said Viguar Ahmed had killed (he above
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mentioned constable namely U. Ramesh. It was further
revealed that the sccused Vigquar Ahmed along with his
cousin Amjad. Dr. Haneef, Riyaz and Jabir had formed a
militant group in the name of Tahreek-Galba-e-Islam (TG1)
in August, 2008, The aim of TG is to eliminate the police
personnel who are responsible for the killing of Muslims
after the blast at Mecca Masjid on 18-5-2007, targeting
several 1lindu leaders of RSS and Bajrang Dal ete. The
investigation further revealed that the accused prepared
seditious matters and stored them in 2 Hard Disk and gave
it to Mohd. Baleeghuddin which was later handed over to
Sutdin Naguori,

(g)  The witness has also annexed attested copy of report
dated 14-5-2010 by G. Santa Rao, constable which led to
the FIR 87/2010 (Ex. P-6) and certified copy of the
panchanama/ siatement of the accused Viquar Ahmed
dated 18-8-2010 (Lx. P-7). The witness has stated that the
charge sheet dated 11-1-201 1 inrespect of FIR No. 87/2010
was filed by his predecessor beiore the Trial Conrt (Ex. P-8).

{h) In his cross-cxamination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-3 1 admitted that FIR No. 287/2011 has been
registered on the basis of confession made by Afag 1gbal
and that the szid statement has been recorded by the Gujarat
Police. He also admitted that the said FIR was registered at
the instance of DCP, Fast Zone by the SHO of the concerned
police staiion. He further admitted that he did not make
any ¢ffort 1o get the statement of Viguar Ahmed recorded
under Section 164 Cr.P.C. But he denied the suggestion
that he had no other material to show the connection of
these cases with SIMI except the two confessional
statements. lle further denied that SIMID’'s name has been
maliciously interpolated in these cases and that the
statements which he made with regard to SIMI are false to
his knowtedge.

I 14(a). PW-32, Mr. G. Guru Raghavendra, [nspector of
Police, Abid Road Police Station, Hyderabad City, Andhra
Pradesh appeared and proved his affidavit exhibit PW-32/
I The said witness has deposed in respect of Crime No.
274/201 1 registered under Sections 420, 468, 120(B) IPC at
the Abid Road Police Station. Hyderabad City. 11e has
stated that on 2-9-201 |, a written complaint was received
from one Mr M. Srinivasa Reddy of Tala Tele Services
Limnted stating that & mobile connection bearing No.
B1215389868 was obtained on the basis of forged/fake
dovuments submitied by the customer. The complainant
Iether stated that the said connection was obtained by
the applicant Mr. Maijoor Alam whereas it had come to
their notice that he had a differcnt name, 1.e. Saiyed Afag
lgbal. I'be statement of the complainant s stated to have
been recorded under Section 161 Cr.P.C. wherein the
complainant had submitted that Mr. Afaq lgbal, by
submitting lake and florged documents in the name of
My Manjoor Alam. had cheated their company. Copy of
the complaint and the slatement recorded under Section
61 are Exh. P-2 (colly). The documents submitted by
accused Afag labal for abtaining the commection have also

been placed on record along with the affidavit and are
Exh. P3. :

(b) The witness PW-32 has further stated that the
investigations conducted in the case revealed that accuscd
Afaq Igbal is an active member of SIMI1 and that in order to
avoid his arrest in the cases registered against him in
Ahmedabad and Bhopal, he had changed his name and
obtained the SIM card with a fictitious name and also
worked in ESN Technologies, Apex Company and ACS
Company in Hyderabad. It ts further stated that the accused
during his stay at Hyderabad met various SIMI cadres and
made ¢fforts to re-group the SIMI cadres for continting its
activities. The aceused is yet to be wrested in this case as
he is staled 1o be presently lodged in Ahmedabad jail and
is facing trial there.

{¢) During his cross-examination by the leamed counsel
for the applicants/intervenors. the witness has stated that
the confessional statement placed by him on record (Lx. P-
4) was not recorded by him or in his presence but was
recorded in Crime No. 203/2008 registered at PS Mani Nagar.
Ahmedabad. The witness has denicd the sugpestion that
the averments made by him, with regard 1o the connection
of SIM] with the activitics of the accusced person as also
the statement that the FIR in question i5 based solety on
alleged confessional statements are false.

I 15(a). PW-33, Mr. G Girish Rao. Inspector of Police. PS
Narayanaguda, Hyderabad City, Aadhra Pradesh, appeared
and has proved his affidavit exhibit PW-33/1. The wilness
has deposed in respect of Crime No. 245/201 ] registered at
PS Narayanaguda dated §5-7-2011 under Section 177419
IPC. It is stated by the said witness that a Memorandum
dated 13-7-20 1 | was received from the Joint Commissioner
of Police, Special Branch, Hyderabad informing that one
Muneer Deshmukh son of Munnawar Deshmukh. ex-
National Secretary SIMI, was arrested in Crime No, 663:
2000 under Section 153(A) and 153(B) IPC by the Anti
Terrorist Squad, Bhopal on 24-11-2000 and that the said
Muneer Deshmukh later on came to Hyderabad and resided
there and obtained driving license, pan card. ration card,
gas conngciton and opened bank account on fictitious
name as Muneer Ahmed son of litikar Ahmed by producing
fake documents. The accused also got ecmployment in an
1T consulting company at Himayat Nagar. Hyderabad in a
fake name in order 1o hide his real identity and evade s

«arrest by the Bhopal police. Accordingly, FIR No. 245/2011

was registered against the accused. as noted above.

(b)  The witness bas claimed that during the course of
investigation Lhe association of accused with SIMI came
to light. It was revealed that mumber of Muslim youihs and
sympathizers ol SIMI met the accused at his residence
during his stay in Hyderabad asd that he made efforts for
re-grouping the activists of SIME

{r)  In his cross-examination the witmess has stated that
the avermuents made by him are on the basis of sourcc
information even thouph the said source information has
not been filed along with the affidavil. The witness has

S i e s A



:-

e S

AR AN AT R e e s

RUIR Y

denmed thit The organization SIMI has ceased to exist after
SepEber, 2001 or that they do not conduct any activity

[ITARS BRTRIES

! nly  1he conlessional statement of the accused Muneer
[ieshiniekh hiss been examined. Itwas recorded on 23-12-2011
wthe prosence of (wo panch witnesses. The aceused
Mistiest Deslimukl in this conlessional stalement has
piven o detailed account of his inttiation in the SIMI cadres.
B Lot ing the position of Zonal Commitiee Mernber, Office
sectelury/All Indin Secretary in the year 2000.

Litda), PW-T4, Mr V. C_ Sajjannar. IPS, Deputy Inspector
Gieneral of Police, C.1. Cell, Intelligence Department,
Ilyderahml Andhrs Pradesh appeared and proved his

Las bigh, I’W-'Wl lhl‘“llnt..“lslhe Nodal Oﬂlccr

:i{mu has #lso placed before the Tribunal a
‘pontgining confidential intelligence
“the activities of the SIMI cadres. The
g‘a‘élwd envelope have been examined and

.ﬁﬂ -I\rcn a bricf summary of all the
, t the SIMI cadres in the State of

ftion. 1the witness has denied the
auad fa exist after September, 2001
hat no activitics have been
&l S$IMI or on its behalf by
te-affirmed that SIMI

ki, inspeciar of Police, CID.

osh appasred and proved his
We38/1, Thy witness in his affidavit has
0t of Crime Na. 8352002 registered on
Sarcor Nagar under Sections 302, 307 IPC
Jons 3, 4 and 5 of Lxplosive Substances Act and
3 1) of POTA inrespect of a bomb blast in front of
§ ‘18aba ‘lwnple at DSNR. There were 11 accused in the
IR namnely Abdul Bart (@ Abu Hamza: Mohd. Azam;
yetl Avez, Molid. Irfan Ali Khan: Syed Abdul Nayeer;
Mnhd Abdul Razak @ Masoor, Syed Akhil @ tlafecz: Aliaf
‘Mﬁﬁﬂ. Abu Ayub Ansari (0 Anees, Syed Salauddin Ahmad
~ffp Mehd. Mubarizuddin @ Saeed Salahuddin Sheikh @
~Syed Salghuddin Salar @ Ahmed; and Mohd. Shfique
Muzavar i Sadig,

L A )| N ~ MT{{a =13 qr?[q‘j . M‘ﬂ{‘?f _— 1.,-‘

{b) InCR No. 835/2002, it is alleged that a meeting was
organized in Dubai by Abdul Bari between 23-8-2002 to
27-8-2002 along with Mohd. Irfan Ali Khan, Mohd. Abdul
Razak, Syed Akhil, Anees Moinuddin and Syed Salauddin,
who are SIMI activists along with others whose identity
was ot konown, 1t is alleged that in the said meeting it was
decided 1o cause homb blasts near temples in India so as
10 create communal clashes and te disturb the communal
harmony existing in indian society. In pursuance of the
above conspiracy, on 21-11-2002 at about 8.00 pm, Abdul
Bari executed the bomb explosion near Sai Saba Temple at
Dilsukh Nagar, through Mohd. Azecz and Syed Azeem,
both of whom placed explosives along with timer device in
a scooler and kept the scooter near the parking place of the
temple and left the scene, which resulted in killing of 2
persans and injuring 20 others. it is further alleged that for
this operation, Mohd. Irfan Ali Khan provided funds (o
Abdul Nayeem who provided logistical support to Mohd.
Azam and Syed Azeez in Hyderabad. Mohd. Azam was
shat dead on 23-11-2002 under Uppal P. S. limits and Syed
Azeez was shot dead on 24-11-2002 at Rekurty Village of
Karimnagar District in separate exchange of fires with polive
in self-defence while the accused Mohd. Shfique Muzavar
is still absconding.

(c) Investigation of the above case revealed that
accused Syed Salauddin actively participated in and has
been involved in the unlawful activitics of SIMI in India.
tHe organized various SIMI meetings throughout India,
visited Dubai and established contacts with SIMI cadres’
at Dubai and attended their meetings. established contacts
with Lashkar-e-Taiba Cadres and organized meetings with
Muslim youth and incited them with Jihadi ideology with
the help of Abdul Bari and Abdul Razaq. The invéstigation
further revealed that SIMI’s ideology does not believe in
demacracy and SIMI has various cover organizations such
as Tahreek Tataba-e-Arabia/TTA, Students Welfare Trust,
Khaire-e-Ummath, Islah-e-Mashere, Fargree-e-Jamat,
Kidmath-e-Khalg, Islamic Youth Center and islamic
Students Association.

(&) The first charge sheet in respect of the aforesaid FIR
was filed on 5.4.2002 and is pending trinl before the Trial
court. The witness has handed over a centified copy of the
same during the course of recording of his evidence and
the same is exhibit /1. The additional charge shect was
filed aguinst the accused Ances Moinuddin and Mohd,
Shafigue Muzavaron [.11.2011 (Ex. P-1)

(e}  PW-35, along with his affidavit, has also annexed the
attested copy of panchanama/statement. of Syed Salauddin
dated 25.7.2011 and certified copy of his panchanama/
statement dated 31.7.2011 recorded in the presence of
panchayatdars [Ex. P-2 (colly)] and the attested copics of
permission to prosecute Syed Salauddin dated 14.11.2011
issued by the Collector and District Magistrate, Ranga
Reddy District as well as Government of Andhra Pradesh
(Ex.P-3).
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(N In his confessional statement dated 25-7-201 1, the
accused Sycd Salauddin stated that he was elected as All
India SIM1 President during the period from February, 1998
1o February, 2000 and that he visited Babri Masjid site at
I‘aizabad to collect the particulars of Karasevaks, who are
the main persons responsible for the demolition of Babri
Masjid. for taking revenge against them. He further stated
that in 1999, a meeting was organized at Aurangabad which
was attended by about 400-500 persons. During the meeting
Sk. Mahaboob Ali delivered provocative speech on Babri
Masjid dewolition and stated that if Ram Mandir is
construeted at the Babri Masjid site, he would demolish
the same by planting bombs. e further stated that during
his stay at Dubai. he developed contacts with LeT cadre of
Pakistan and thal he along with Abdul Razzaq and Abdul
Bari (@ Abu 1amza with the help of Irfan Ali Khan used to
artend meetings and brain wash the Muslim youth with
Jihadi ideology. who have come to Dubai in search of
employment. In his confessional statement dated 31-7-2011,
he stated thal atter arriving in Dubai, he re-established his
contacts with ex-SIM1 members, who have gone to Dubai
and that one person namely Jilani introduced him to his
associales viz. Iarha, Shareef @ Shadin, Anwar, Riyaz and
Sultan and 1old him that all the above associates were
working for Indian Mujahideen along with Rivaz Bhatkal
and gbal Bhatkal, who are responsible for serial blasts,
which occurred ueross the country.

(g) In his cross-cxamination, PW-35 admitied rhat the
name of SIMI is not mentioned in the first charge sheet.
The witness denied the suggestion that the statements of
Syed Salauddin, Mohd. Irfan and Abdul Nayeem were false
and concocted and thal is why no steps have been taken
1o record their statements under Section 164 Cr.P.C. He
- also denied the suggestion that apart from these statements,
there are no other material to connect SIMI to the activities
of these persoms or organizations $o as to brand it as a
terrorist organization and that there is no connection
hetween SIMI and the aforesaid organizations and the name
niSIMI has been maliciously interpolated.

(X) Atlndorein Madhya Pradesh :

Al Indore, the Central Government examined the
following witnesses :—

I Mr. Navratan Singh. Deputy Superintendent of
Police, CSP | lanumanganj, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh
(PW-36),

2. Mr. Ghanshyam Malviya, City Superintendent of
Police, Misrod. Madhya Pradesh (PW-37);

3 Mr. Anirudha Shyamsunder Nandedkar, Deputy
Supcrintendent of Police, CID (Crime), Aurangabad
Unit, Maharashtra (PW-38}%:

4. Mr Gajendra Singh Vardhaman, City Superintendent
of Palice, Distt. Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh (PW-39):

118¢a) PW-36. Mr. Navratan Singh, Deputy

Superintendent of Police, CSP Hanumanganj, Bhopal,

Madhya Pradesh uppeared and proved his affidavit exhibit

PW- 36/1 1he witness in his affidavit has deposed in

respect of FIR No. 431/2010 registered on 23.8.2010 at PS
llanumangaj, Bhopal under Sections 395, 397 IPC.

(b) InFIR No.431/2810, itis alleged that on 23.8.2010at

10:30 hours at Bhopal Plaza Building at Shop No. 101, 102,

103, 1Hamidia Road, Bhopal, some unknown persons entered
the branch of Manapuram Gold Finance Cempany with
katta (pistol) and knife and robbed gold omaments
(weighing 12 kg) and cash, having total worth
Rs.1,46,41,000. The witness in his affidavit has stated that
on 1.7.2011, information was received from S.P. Bhopal vide
letter No. SP(North)/bpl/reader/383-A/11 that accused
persons in CR No. 04/2011 (Abu Faisal, Tkrar Shaikh,
Azazuddin, Mehaboon) and CR No: 05/2011 (Shaikh Mujib
Ahmed, Mohd. Aslam, Mohd. Habib and Mohd. Sajid) of
ATS, Madhya Pradesh had revealed their involvement in
activities of SIMI and also admitted to have committed
dacoity in Manappuram Gold Finance Company at Bhiopal
Plaza on 23.8.2010. During investigation accused Abu Faisal,
Ikrar Shaikh, Azazuddin were arrested and were taken on
police remand. During interrogation on 13.9.2011, the
accused admitted having committed dacoity in
Manappuram Goid Finance Company on 23.8.2010 along
with other accused persons. The supplementary charge
sheet in respect of the aforesaid FIR was filed on 7,3.2012
(Ex E).

(c) PW-36,along with his affidavit, has also annexcd the
true copy of the statements of accused namely Abu Faisal,
Mohd. fkrar and Mohd. Azazuddin; Shatkh Mujib Ahmad
and Mohd. Aslam; and Jakir Hussain (Ex. B, C & D
respectively).

(d)  Inhis confessional statement the accused Abu Faisal
stated that after arrest of Safdar Nagori and other members,
he became the Head (Aamir) of the SIMI organization. He
further stated that after the arrest of the fund raiser of the
organization, Mohd. Ali, Musa and [rfan, SIMI witressed
money crisis due to sudden set back of some financial
supporters due to increasing fear of police interference
and in reaction to these problems, he called a meeting with
Ikrar, Aslam, Zakir, Mujeeb, Aizazuddin, Mehboob and
Ahmed for fulfillment of the organizational needs and they
all agreed to do robbery in banks to get money. After that
while residing in Dewas, he inquired and did recce of many
banks. He admitted that he along with other accused looted
the pold and cash from Manappuram Gold Finance
Company on 23.8.2010 and also admitted killing of the
constable Sitaram and two other at Khandwa. The accused
also admitted doing other bank robberies. The otheraccused
in their confessional statements have also admitted doing
various bank robberies including the robbery at
Manappuram Gold Finance Company.

(¢) In his cross-examination, PW-36 stated that he has
not attached a copy of the main ¢charge sheet as he had
requested the SHO concemed for discharge of two accused.
A copy of the discharge letter, in Hindi, addressed to SHO
is produced by the witness and is exhibited as EX.DA. He
denied the suggestion that the above-mentioned persons
have been made accused on the basis of the letter dated




Wi | —

he

sal
rs.
He
he
ed
1al
ce
ith
nd

ey
hat

ny
ted
ice
the
sed
sed
ing
vt

has
1ad

HO
He
ans
ited

Fine 'i(n,} [

| wteer 1
£.7.2(tt Leeceived from SP;. Bhopal, and that the statements
of ol the accused persons are concocted and false and
that 15 the reason why he did not get them recorded under
Sextion 164 Cr,i2C. He also denied the suggestion that these
secused persons have no connection with SIMI and their
aames have been deliberately associated with the banned
frganization SIMI.

{l  No question has been put in the cross-examination
el vould discredit the witness so far as his testimony
tegarding looting of financial institutions is concerned.
v lovting has been essentially done for the purpose of
dxing funds for the illegal activities of the SIMI
ieation despite the continuous ban on it.

) PW-37, Mr. Ghanshyam Malviya, City
fitgndent of Police, Misrod, Madhya Pradesh
il dnd proved his aftidavit exhibit PW- 37/1. The
-in his sffidavit has deposcd in respect of FIR No.
010 tegisered on 23.8 2010 at PS Hanumangaj. Bhopal
Reotions 395, 397 11PC,

The withess in his affidavit has stated that he was
jvestigating officer ol the aforesaid FIR and that he
Iy recorded the stutemenis of accused Abo Faizal
ditills about the plans (o comnit bank robberies
wpse of funding the SIMI organization were
¢ svitness hus also personally recorded the
bf Mohd, 1krar, Mohd Aizazuddin, and Zakir
hp provided the detuils about the mannes in
Wﬂmtm ioned bank robberies were committed

eri Of §IMI and how the murder of Jailor Sanjay
#table Sita Ram was planned. The witness
d that (he aloresaid case demonstrates
Ppan, KIM! has been clandestinely
unlawiul zetrvities and that the han on
o Bocuise ol their continued unlawful

fatiby Mr.Ashok Aggarwal, PW-
e $ix sueused persons n.amdy

§ wers inder detention wnd their arrest
v permilssion from the court in
t M0 denied the suggestion
e s wriagly rororded the stateinents of the accused
itdeh wis never made by them and that these
tire totudly fitlse and concocted. He alse denied
Mﬂﬁnllnn that these accused persons have no
pestion with SIMI and their names have been
iserately associated with the banned organization SIMIL
SEMs) PW-38, Mr. Anirudha Shyamsunder Nandedkar,

sty Sispotintendent of Potice, CID(Crime), Aurangabad
Mahvashtra appeared and proved his affidavit exhibit
We B2l The withess m lis affidavit has deposed in respect
FOR No. 282012 registered on 26.3.2012 at PS Begampura,
Aurungabid Ciy, Maharashtra under Sections 307, 333,
T35 136, 30K, 352, 353, 34 IPC read with Sections 3,25, 27 of
At Act & Section 135 of Bombay Police Act.

YA & YA ;AT 37

{b) InCRNo.25/2012, lltsalleged that on 26.3.2012 action
was initiated by Anti Terrorism Squad, Aurangabad, on
credible information being received from their informant
that one person namnely Abrar @ Ismail, who was the
absconding accused in 2008 Ahimedabad case and an active
hardcore member of banned organizations, Indian
Mujahideen and Swudents Islamic Movement of India, was
coming to meet his accomplices at about 12.00 noon at
Aurangabad. On receiving the information, ATS
Aurangabad arranged a trap near Himayatbagh area at
Auranagabad. In the course of action in retaliation firing,
Abrar @ Ismail, Shaker @ Khalil Khilji were taken into
custody and one accused namely Khalil @ Azhar Qureshi
died due to firing by police in self defence. One police
constable who was also injured due 1o firing by the accused
persons.

{c) It is stated by the witness thal panchanama of the
spot was done. Three pistols and other articles of accused
persons were seized from the spot. It is Further stated that
the invesligation of the said crime was handed over to CID
(Crime) Aurangabad on 29.3.2012 and from the said date,
he is investigating the crime,

(d) During interrogation it is revealed that the accused
Abrar @ Ismail was an active member of SIMI since 2006
and that he and other members of SIMI namely Abu Faisal,
Safdar Nagori and Ameen Parvez held a meeting of SIMI
members at Khandwa, MP in the year 2006, whercin‘the
members were urged to carryon jehad to implement 1slamic
law in the country, to take revenge for Gujarat riots and to
further work for expansion of the organization. It is further
revealed that the accused in 2011 had committed dacoitics
in Gujarat and MP to generate funds for jehad and had also
planned to loot trucks of copper serap for the said purpase.

(¢)  The witness has also placed before the Tribunal a
scaled envelope containing copies of the statements of
the accused persons/witnesses and the panchnamas. The
witness stated that the aforementioned case is under
investigation and is at a crucial stage and disclosure of
statements made by the accused persons/witnesses and
details ol the anticles seized under various panchnamas are
likely to hinder/adversely affect the ongoing investigations.
The contents in the sealed envelope have been examined.

()  In his cross-examination, PW-38 stated thal he was
appointed as the investigating officer on 29.3.2012 but
denied the suggestion that he was zppointed as the
investifating officer after serious doubts were expressed
regarding the encounter in which the accused persons arc
purporicd to have been arrested. He stated that the order
regarding transferring of imvestigation from Crime Branch
to CID was passed by his superior officers. He further
stated that he is not aware whether any press conlerence
was held by the Commissioner of Police, Aurangabad on
the date of the alleged encounter orthal the 1 lome Ministry
of the Siate of Maharashtra bad madc a public statcment to
the effect that it will have the case transferred 1o CID of
Maharashtra police in‘order to get it verified as to whether
il was a case of genuine encounter.
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12)(a). PW-39, Mr. Gajendra Singh Vardhaman, City
Superintendent of Pelice, Distt. Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh
appeared and proved his affidavit exhibit PW-39/1. The
witness in his affidavit has deposed in respect of CR No.
22472011 registered on 3-6-2011 under Section 307 IPC,
Sections 25 & 27 of Arms Act and Sections 10, 13 & 15 of
Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967,

(b) The witness in his affidavit has stated that on
3-6-2011 atabout 5.15 pm, SP of Ratlam received a message
from the ATS team that ATS jawans were fired at by SIMI
activists. The SP immediately ordered to cordon off the
city to catch the miscreants. During search operation, one
accused namely Zakir was caught by the police near Hotel
Palash while the other accused namely Mohd. Farhat @
Khalid was taken into custody from a vacant house near
Shah Manzil, where he was hiding.

(c) During investigations it transpired that when the
accused Zakir was residing at Ashok Nagar, Ratlam, the
activities of SIMI organization were being conducted in
the locality and terrorist activities were being planned.
Funds were also collected for undertaking SIMI activities
and meetings were also arranged in order to propagate and
enlarge SIMI activities. During the course of investigation,
a CD and other documents were seized from the custody of
the accused which contained various SIMI related literature
and matters related to extremism, terrorism and
communalism. It is stated that the documents refer to the
attack on the World Trade Centre, calling Muslims to unite
against the world, transformation of Pakistan into
Terroristan, and mention the attacks on Kashmir as well as
Mumbai. Most significantly, the said documents include
SIMI membership form. The investigation of the accused
Mohd. Farhat Khan @ Khalid and Zakir Hussain @ Sadiq
further revealed that they were trying to collect funds for
activities of SIMI and in pursuance to this they indulged in
bank robbery and they were involved in spreading their
uniawful activities among the Muslim youth by inviting
them for Darsh-E-Kuran and then finally by provoking them
for Jehad. The witness has stated that he personally
recorded the statement of Zakir, wherein he gave details
about his connection with SIMI and patticipation in
untawful activities.

(d) In his confessional statement the accused Zakir
Hussaim (@ Sadiq has stated that he was friends with Guddu
@ Mehboob, who works as an active worker of SIMI and
together they distributed SIMI pamphlets, He further stated
that he also made friendship with Hussain and tried to
brainwash him for Islamic extremism by showing him video
clippings related to the atrocities against Muslims in
Afghanistan and also provided him literature related to
SIMI and Islamic Literature and urged him to recruit as
many youths as possible in order to take revenge for all
those atrocities and to strengthen the organization. He
also contacted Chhotu @ Rafiq and Ashik and was
successful in winning them for SIMI activities. He also
stated that Guddu was their leader who was in contact with
the higher leaders of SIMI and conveyed their messages

‘material or any information, which can be said to be]

1. Mr. Ashok Kamath, Assistant Commissioner ot‘;
- Police, Anti Terrorism Squad, Mumbai (PW-40);

(¢) In his cross-examination, PW-39 statzd that he was
the investigating officer of FIR No, 224/201 {, in respect of
which various articles were seized from accused Mohd.
Farhat. He stated that apart from the membership form of
SiMI, CD and documents were seized which showed
connection of the accused persons with SIML. He admitted
that in the CD, the ward ‘SIMLI” is not used but volunteered
that the modus operandi reflected in the CD makes one to &
draw the inference that it pertains to SIMI only. The witness
also admitted that the membership forms seized from Zakir §
as also in other cases were blank and did not bear any
serial number or the address of the organization but denied
the suggestion that all these forms have been printed at ]
the police press. The witness also denied the suggestion |
that the material contained in the CD pertains only to USA,
Israel and Pakistan and volunteered that he had examined
the material and it pertains to India also. The witness also |
denied the suggestion that the CD does not contain any

‘untawful activity’ within the definition given under the §
Act, and also in breach of any provision of law applicable
in India. He also denied the suggestion that CDs have
been planted by the police. He further denied the suggestion
that SIMI has no connection with these cases and it has
been maliciously implicated and that SIMI has not.
conducted any activities since its first ban in September, §
2001. 4

(XD} At Delhi:

At Delhi, the Central Government examined th
following witnesses :—

2. M. Sanjeev Kumar Yadav, DCP Special Cell, New §8
Dethi (PW-41);

3.  Ms. Rashmi Gozl, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Home]
Affairs, New: Delhi (PW-42);

122(a). PW-40, Mr. Ashok Kamath, Assistant Commissioner!
of Police, Anti Terrorism Squad, Mumbai appearcd an
proved his affidavit exhibit PW- 40/1. The witness h
deposed in respect of CR No. 6/2010 registered with ATS
Police Station, Kalachowki, Mumbai.

(b) The witness in his affidavit has stated that on'
13-2-2010 at around 6:50 pm, a powerful bomb blast too
place al German Bakery, North in Road, Koregaon Park,
Pune in which 17 people died and 56 persons were injured
and a case CR No. 83/2010 under Sections 302, 107, 326,
325. 324, 120B IPC, Sections 3. 4, 5 of the Explosive
Substances Act and Sections 16, 18, 21 of the Unlawful
Activitics (Prevention} Act, 1967 was registered at Bund
Garden Police Station, Pune but looking to the gravity and
intensity of the crime perpetrated. the said offence was
transferred for further investigation to the Anti Terrorist § 7 %4201
Squad, Maharashtra and the crime was re-rezistered as CR # ~ d#a |

the Arl
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t€) The invesngation revealed that the explosion was a
garelully fanned attack calculated to terrorize the public
i geneinl by causing intensive damage to life and property.
- Fhe primary objective was to undermine and reduce the
.~ #4lth of the common citizen in its elected Govt. and thereby
deatabllize the system of Govt. established by law. The
tvestigntion (urther revealed that one Mirza Himayat Inayat
; o (@ Abmed Deg Inayat Mirza @ Yusuf was the person
I WHTIESY # bt perpetrated the crime. He was arrested on
nn Zaki 010 and RDX. forged documents, Hard disks etc. were
ear;at ram him, Investigations further revealed that he
straninied the erime with the help ofhis six associates
i i Mﬂhsin Ismail Choudbary, (ii) Ahmed
asin Bhatksl, (iti) Riyaz lsmail

Igbat lumail Shabdari, (v)
: pd mndd (v) Sayyad
Ansairt ¢ Abu Jundal,

3 blust was carried out by
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galed that the aforesaid accused
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r. Ruijeey Kumar Yadav, DCP Special Cell,

d and proved his affidavit exhibit PW-
has deposed in respect ofthree FIRs viz,

. 8378010 registered on 19-9-2010 at PS Jama
Bettions 307/34 1PC read with Section 27 of
Act, 1989 (Ex. A); (ii) FIR No. 66/2010 registered
{6 at P8 Jama Masjid under Sections 3/4/5 of
e Subattnces Act, 1908 (Ex. C); and (iii) FIR Ne,
| registered on 2-1 1201 1 under Sections 471, 489A,
X, Section 25 of the Arms Actand Section 12 of the

bgisport Act (Ex. F).
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(b) InFIR 65/2010itis alleged that on 19-9-2010 at about
1 1:24 hours an information was received regarding *firing
on foreigners by some unknown bikers at gate No. 3 of the
Jama Masjid” and during the enquiry conducted on the
spot, it was revealed that two young boys, riding on a
black coloured motorcycle, had opened fire upon some
foreigners who were descending from a tourist bus. In the
said firing incident, two Taiwanese nationals had sustained
injuries. On 22-9-2010, further investigation of the case
was transferred to the Speciat Cell/NDR. The charge sheet
in the said FIR was filed and is annexed with the affidavit
as Ex. A-1.

{c} InFIR 66/2010itis alleged that on §9-9-2010 at about
14:00 hours an infonmation was received regarding *buming
ol a Maruti Car No, D1, 6CD-1042 and emission ol smoke
from the same " atopposite Gali Guliyan, Dariba Kalan, Main
Road. The car was inspected by the Bomb Disposal Squad
(BDS) and during inspection the car caught fire after amild
blast. During invéstigation, the BDS seized a number of
articles from the spot. The inspection. report of the car
records that “recovery of the abave mentioned article
suggests that a low pressure IED was planted inthe car.
The investigation of the said case revealed that the said
carwas slolena couple of days earlier. On 21-9-2010. further
investigation of the case was transferred to the Special
Cel/NDR. Efforts were made to identify and trace the
accused persons involved in the incident but could not
yield the desired results. However, soon after (he said
lervorist strike, an e-mail was received by various Sections
of the media claiming that it was the Indian Mujahiddin
who had carried out the strike. The-said e-mail was
captioned *As We Bleed, So Will You Suep’, A copy of said
e-mail dated 19-9-2010 is annexed with the alTidavit as Ix.
IL. The charge sheet in the said FIR was [iled and is angexed
with the athidavitas Ex. C-1.

(d) InFIR 5472011, it isalleged thaton21/22-11-2011, on
thebasis of specific information, one Mohd. Quateel Siddigi
{@) Sajan (@ Siraj (@ Vivek Mishra, suspected to be a member
of Indian Mujahideen, was apprehended from near Anand
Vihar Inter State Bus Terminal, Delhi. On his cursory search.
one 9 mm loaded pistol made in Brayil, containing 7 live
cartridges in its magazine was recovered from his
possession. On the search of his bag, besides other articles,
(i) fake Indian Currency notes warth Rs. 2 lacs. (it) One
loaded magazine of 9 mm pistel and (iii) on¢ envelope
addressed in the name of Seraj Ahmed, containing two
Indian Passports in the name of Ahmad Zeauddin and Seraj
Ahmad and one Indian Driving License in the name of
Vivek Mishra, all containing the photos of the accused.
were recovered. Investigation of the said case revealed
that Quateel Siddiqui is a member of the banned terrorist
outfit Indian Mujahideen and has been invotved in several
terrorist activities in India. During the course of
investigation, 15 accused persons (including Quatecl
Siddiqui), all members of Indian Mujahidecn, have héen

-arrested and a huge quantity of explosive material, K,

arms & ammunition have been recovered from their
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possession/at their instance from their hideouts. The
witness in his affidavit has stated that despite the concerted
and strenuous cfforts being-made in the case, 19 accused,
who have indulged in terrorist activities are still wanted in
this case and are E}bsconding.

(e) The investigation of the case has revealed that out
of the 15 arrested accused, 6 accused persons nm’ély (i)
Mohd. Quateel Siddiqi @ Sajan @ Siraj @ Vivek Mishra,
(it) Gauhar A ziz Khomani, (iii) Mohd. Adil @ Ajmal @ Shoeb
@ Guddu (Pakistani national). (iv) Mohd. Aftab Alam @
Faroog @ Sheikh Chilly, (v) Mohd. Irshad Khan and (6)
Gayur Ahmad Jamali were involved in the terrorist attack
on foreign nationals and in the blast in the Maruti car, both
dated 19-9-2010 near Jama Masjid Delhi. The investigation
further revealed the involvement of SIMI and its activists
in the said cases. The charge sheet in the said FIR was filed
and s anncxed with the affidavit as Ex. F-1,

() Tn his cross examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-41 admitted that the averments made by
him 1n paragraphs 8 and 10 of his affidavit to the effect that
SIMI members floated a new outfit by the name of Indian
Mujahideen are based on the confessions purported to
have been made by Tarique Anjum Ahsan and Mohd. Bashir
Hassan Talha. He also admitted that the charge sheet does
not contain any mention about the organization SIMI but
he denied the suggestion that the accused persons were
not undertaking any activity for and on behalf of SIML. He
also denied the suggestion that SIMI has not undertaken
any activily ever since the first ban imposed on it in
September, 2001.

124¢a). PW-42, Ms. Rashmi Goel, Joint Secretary (HR),
Government of India, Ministry of Home Affairs, New Delhi
appeared and proved her affidavit exhibit PW-42/1. Along
with her affidavit she has annexed the copy of notification
dated 3-2-2012 banning SIMI (Ex. A-l1), a copy of the
background note (Ex. A-2). copies of reports of previous
tribunals (x. A-3 to A-6), copy of orders dated 6-8-2008,
£1-9-2008 and 13.10.2008 in SLP (C) Na. 19845/2008 (Ex.
A-7) and copy of objections filed by H.A.Siddiqui and
Misbah- Ul-fslam before the Tribtinal headed by Hon'ble
Mr. Justice Sanjiv Khanna (Ex. A-8). The witness has also
handed over nine sealed envelopes containing the Cabinet
Note and other Intclligence Reports received from various
Intelligence Agencies etc. in respect of the activities of
SIML

(b} 1In her cross-examination by Mr. Ashok Aggarwal,
Advocate, PW-42 stated that her affidavit is drafted on the
basis of knowledge derived from the official records and
that;when she assumed the present posting i.c. Joint
Secretary (1 luman Rights) on 6-2-2012, the notification
banting the organization SIMI had already been issueq.
She admitted that after the constitution of the Tribunal,
notices were issued to the banned organization on all the
addreas:.s f.;rmqht.d to the Tribunal, which were compiled

feiad Bmarasdt s s Ohio Fswilvar

of the banned organization SIMI were furnished to the
previous Tribunals alse. On being asked whether she had
verified the membership of the persons to whom notices
were sought 1o be issued by the Tribunal as members of
the SIMI before the same was furnishied to the: Tribunal,
she replied that no such verification is done in the Ministry
of Home Affairs as these inputs are received from various
State Governments and their intelligence and police
authorities giving therein the names and addresses of the
persons who are purported to be the members ofthe banned
organization. She also stated that she was not aware if any
representation has been written to the Tribunal where the
applicant has claimed that he had never been associated
with the banned organization in the past or even now and
vet notices were being issued to him by the Tribunal.
However, she denied the suggestion that the absence to
compile any list of members was deliberate and was actuated
only with a view to brand any person as a member of the
banned organization. The witness also stated that no formal
communication is sent to the States inviting their opinion
as to whether the ban on a particular organization should
continue or not but the inputs which are received during
the course of monitoring the activities of various
organizations including the banned organization furnish
the requisite information to the Central Govt. to decide as
to whether the ban is to 'be continued or not.

{c) She admitted that only narrative notes are received
from the States by way of inputs bul volunteered that she
has produced before the Tribunal all the other documents
in support of the said narrative notes. She further stated
that she cannot tell as to whether the draft notification
sent to the Cabinet Committee on Security along with
the note was modified by the said Committee or not and
volunteered that it was concurred by the Ministry of
Law.

(d) Onbeing asked whether the drafl Cabinet note which
was sent, contained information that the Mecca-Masjid
case and Malegaon blast case which were earlier attributed
to SIMI activities were subsequently found to be the
handiwork of Hindu extremist organization. The witness
replied that she did not remember about the same. She
denied the suggestion that certain averments made in her
affidavit show a bias against the banned organization. She
also denied the suggestion that the present ban has been
imposed on SIMI on incorrectand false information supplied
to the Cabinel Committee on Security, She also denied the
suggestion that the present ban on SIMI is arbitrary and
unjustitied and that the constitution of SIMI does not
contain anything unlawful nor were its activities unlawful
in any manner whatsoever. She also denied the suggestion
that while secking inputs from the State Governments, the
Home Ministry impliedly asked them to recommend re:
imposition of ban on SIMI and send their inputs accordingly
and that SIMI ceased to exist after the f‘ rst ban imposed
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(NI At h1a'¢5urai:

At Madurai. the Central Guvernmenl exanined the
fellowing witnesses;—
| Sh G Sampathkumar. Ssiperintendent of Police.

Special Division. Special Branch CTIE Chennai (PW-

431
125¢a) PW-43. Sh, G Sampathkumar. Superintendent of
Bulice. Special Division, Special Branch CID. Chennai, Tamii
Nadu. appeared and proved his affidavit exhibin PW-43/].
He filed the said affidavit in the capacity of Nodal Officer
ol Government of Tamil Nadu. Along with hisaftidavit he
has annexed Rl which is a certified copy of Government
Letter No. SS1/200-7/2012, dated 3-4-2012 issued by the
Secretary to the Government of Public (3C) Departinent,
Government of Tamil Nadu. appointing him as the Noda!
Optticer.
(b)Y  PW-43 has also annexed R/Z (colly) which is the
certified copy of Magazine “Seithi Madal® purported to be
published by SIMI in the months of May and June 1999 in
Tamil language with English translation of the relevant
pertiens. The said articles were containing seditious
material. as a consequence of which, a case under the
relevant provisions af law was registered by the Government
ol Tamil Nadu and six aceused persans were put to irjal
because ol the seditious material which resulted in their
conviction, He has also handed over the certified copy of
the judgment passed by the Additional District and
Sessions Judge. Fast Track Count No. 11, Coimbatore dated
29-2-2012 convicting five accused persons in the aforesaid
case (exhibits R/3A and R/3B), which is in Tamil language
and the certitied copy of the Judgment passed by IM-IV
Court, Madurai in CC No. 214/2010 convicting one of the

-accused persons namely O. 8. Mohideen on 28-10-20101n

connection with an offence under Section 12(b) of Passport
Act, 1967 (Ex R4/A), which is also in Tamil language. Along

with the affidavit the witness has also annexed R/S (cally).

which is an Invitation purported to have been issued by an
organization known as Wahadat-e-Istami Hind {Wel) at
Chennai on 26-2-2012 along with its English translation
with regard 1o holding of a conclave at Chennai.

(¢) The cross-examination of the witness is not done
since no one appeared on behalf of Humam Ahmed Siddiqui

and Misbah-UI-1slam even after giving the opportunity.

{26. The Union of India, in all examined 43 witnesses in
suppertofthe Notification dated 3ed February, 2012 banning
SIMI. Al the witnesses (except the witness at Bangalore
PW-i2 who was dropped) were cross-exantined extensively
by the leamed counsel representing Mr. Humam Ahmed
Siddiqui and Mr. Misbah-Ul-[slam. But theirtestimony has
Substantially remained unshaken. No fact, gross
contradiction or falsity has been brought about in their
cross-examination generally which would make the
testimony of any witness as a suspect or unworthy of
reliance: On the: contrary, the Tribunal is persuaded to
acecept their testimony in generality accepting the complicity
of the banned organization, SIMI, its sympathizers. activists,
ex-office bearers and members who have been functioning

under different cover names of newly created groups of
pErsons or associations.

127, The applicants/intervenors were called upon to lead
their evidenee to which the lesrned counsel representing

Mr. Humam Ahmed Siddigui and Mr. Misbah-Ul-Islam,

slated that they did not wish to lead any evidence, Their

conduct of refraining to enter the witness box and not
subjecting Lhemselves to cross-examination by UOL.

gspecially when they have cross-examined all the witnesses
produced by the Central Government, leads the Teibunal
to draw a presumption against them. Reference in this
resard may be made to illustration (2) to Scction 114 of the
Evidence Act, which reads as underi—

*i14. Court may presume existence ofcertain facts.—

{g) That ‘cvidcnc.e which could be and is not
produced would, if produced. be unfavourable to
the person who withholds it.”

128.  inadgtion, Section 106 of the Indian Evidence Act.
1872 lavs gown that the onus of prool of fact, which is
especially within the knowledge of a person, is on him. Thy
exact language of Section reads as under:

*106. Burden of proving fact especially within
knowledge.—When any fact is especially within the
knowledge of any person, the buiden of proving
that fact is upon him."

129. The basic rule of evidence is that *one who asserts
must prove’ and then there are exceptions to this doctrine.
One such exception is contained in Section 106 of the Indian
Evidence Act, 1872. The basis of this exception is that if a
person has the knowledge about a fact which only he could
have, then onus is on him to prove that fact. The simple
illustration of this would be if a person caught travelling
without ticket and claiming that he has the ticke! must
establish that he had purchased the rticket. In such a
contingency, since he is contending that he had purchased
the ticket and yet does not enter into the witness bBox (o
testifly himsel in this regard and subject himseif to ¢ross-
examination nor does he produce any other evidence, the
only option with the Tribunal or the Court is to draw an
adverse inference against him that in case he would have
testified himseif to show that he was in possession of the
tigkst, it would have gone against him.

130. 1 may be pertinent here to mention that in their reply,
the applicants/intervenors have taken the plea that they
are ex-offtce bearers of the banned organization and in that
capacity, they were associated with the said organization.
it is also stated by them that SIMI, having been banned in
the month of September, 2001, has ceased to exist and
accordingly, they have also, because of their age, ceased
to be the members of the said organization. It may be
pertinent here to mention that the contention of
Mr. Aggarwal is that since the name of the organization
was starting with the word *students™, only students could
be the members upto the age of, say 30-35 yeurs, as given
in the constirigion of the Assadiatipn. Qnee a person had
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crossed that age by efflux of time, he ceased to be its
member. It is also the plea of the applicants/intervenors
that after SIMI was banned in September, 2001, ithas ceased
toexist although, it was stated that it never indulged in any
criminal activities.

131.  Further, if one examines the line of cross- examination
which has been conducted on behalf of the applicants/
intervenors, its entire thrust, apart from trying to discredit
the witnesses, has been on the issue that SIM! is not an
organization indulging in illegal activities; ever since the
organization has been banned, it is no more in existence
and merely because some members, office-bearers or ex-
members of the said organization are indulging in illegal
and unlawful activities, does not mean that the organization
is in existence. On the contrary, they say that the
continuation of the ban on the said organization for the
last more than ten years continuously is in fact impairing
their rights to freedom of speech, freedom of association
etc. guaraniced to the applicants/intervenors under the
Constitution of India.

132, 1tis really very strange that despite taking all these
pleas and the stand in the line of cross-examination, both
the applicants/intervenors have neither chosen to enter
inte the witness box themselves in support of their stand
nor have they chosen to examine any wilness. This clearly
invites an adverse inference that the submissions made by
the applicants/intervenors are incorrect. Further, as a matter
of fact, the applicants/intervenors wanted to avoid
unpleasant and unsavory questions which could have
brought on rccord the comrect position that despite the
bam, the organization is indulging in unlawful activities like
Jehad and threatening the national integrity and
sovereignty.

1. accordingly, draw an adverse inference in this
regard agamst both these applicants/intervenors. 1t may
also be pertinent here to refer to the observation of the
Apex Court in Jamaat-e-Islami Hind (supra), where it has
been held that the Tribunal has Lo go by the probabilities
of evidence produced by the respective sides and decide

.the Reference on the basis of the same by appreciating the

evidence produced by the two sides. Here is a case where
the UOI produces as many as 43 witnesses (one witness at
Bangalore is given up), to testify regarding the unlawfu!
activities ol the banned association SIMI in almost 16-17
States ul'the Union of India under the cover of its different
frontal vrganizations and its other members, sympathizers,
activists. yel no evidence is preduced by the applicants to
dislodge the same. Therefore. prima facie the UOI has
satisfied the Reference being answered in aflirmative.

Application No.14/12 —regarding deletion of name of
Khair-E-Ummat Trust & Court witness CW-1"s name.

133, While the Tribunal was holding sitting in Mumbai a
person claiming himself to be the Secretary of the Trust
raised an objection regarding inclusion of the name of
Khair- e-Ummat Trust. This application is filed on behalf of
the above-named Trust objecting to the inclusion of the

[

name of the Trust in the background note submitted by the
Central  Government before this Tribunal as-one of the
front arganizations of SIMI, The application is filed on
behalf of the Trust by Mr. Haroon Ali Mozawala, Géneral
Secretary of the Trust. 1t may be pertinent here to mention
that even the applicants/intervenors namely Humam
Ahmed Siddiqui and Misbah Ul Islam also tock a plea that
the name of this trust has been wrongly mentioned.

134. It is averred in the application that Khair-E-Ummat ~ §.
Trust is a public charitable trust, duly registered with the
Office of the Charity Commissioner, Greater Bombay, Navi
Mumbai under the Bombay Public Trusts Act, 1955, A
photocopy of the certificate of registration is annexed to
the application. 1t is claimed in the application that the
objective of the Trust is te spread social and educational
awareness within the community and 10 impant educatian
to under privileged and needy students. The Trust has
been carrying out remarkable social, charitable and
educational activities amongst the public for the last |4
years in & very peaceful, cordial and cffective manner and
it has never deviated from its objectives. The Trust
comprises several prominent and respectable members of
Muslim community as its Trustees. It is claimed that the
Trust has always maintained high standards ol
transparency and legal accountability and it has never come
to an adverse notice by any authorities whatsoever in the
past. 1t is submitted that the background note submitted
before this Tribunal regarding the Khair-e-Ummat Trust
being a front organization of SIMI is totally false. frivolous,
baseless and devoid of merit. The Trust, it is claimed, is, in
no way, associated with any banned organizations, much
less being its front/cover organization. It is submitted that
the Trustees are law abiding citizens and have always
functioned within the legal framework and have never
indulged in any anti-national or unlawful activities.

135. The applicant Trust has appeared before this |
Tribunal in response to a Public Notice issued in the local
newspapers at Mumbai, inviting the general public
regarding the sittings of the Tribumal. The applicant Trust
claims that the allegations made against them in paragraph
19 of the backgreund note, wherein it has becn averred
that there are three dozen front/pseudonym organizations
of SIMI which are State specific and being used for carrying &
out its activities, including collection of Funds, circulation
of literature, regrouping of cadres ete. are false. The
paragraph names Khair-e-Ummat Trust from the State of
Maharashtra as one such organization, which i1s being §
objecied to by the Trust by way of this application through
its General Secretary, Mr, Mojawala.

136. Mr. Mojawala has examined himsell as CW1 in JE
support of the affidavit filed by him for deletion of the .
name of the trust. He was cross-examined at length by the
tearmed ASG on behalf of the UOL.

137. 1t would be sufficient for the purpose of this Tribunal
1o prima facie establish whether there is any connection j
between SIMI and Khair-e-Ummat Trust. For undertaking
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this esercise, it is necessary to refer to some of the
admissions/statements made by Mr. Mojawala during his
cross-examination. In his cross-examination, he has stated
that the seven Trustees of the Trust had settled this Trust
and that Mr. Abdul Gani Atlaswala is the Chairman of the
Trust, he himself is the Secretary-General and Mr. Ali M.
Shamshi, Dr. Zikraullahk, Mr. Meraj Igbal Siddiqui, Dr. Imtiaz
Ali and Mr. Ibrahim Khalil-Abidi are the other Trustees. All
the seven Trustees contributed Rs.1,000 each initially
towards the corpus of the Trust and that, as on 31-3-12, the
balance in the account of the Trust is approximately
Rs. 1,50,000.

138. During the course of his further cross-examination,
Mr. Mojawala admitted that one of the Trustees, viz.
Dr. Ibrahim, had association with SIMI. The witness has
also stated that another Trustee, viz., Mr. Ali Shamshi, is
an accused in a criminal case registered by the State of
Maharashtra on account of some incidents pertaining to a
public rally, where Mr. Abu Azmi. the President of Samajwadi
Party, Maharashtra Unit purportedly gave some
inflammatory speech, trying lo create hatred amongst the
groups of members of the public and as a result of which
cases against all those persons who were sitting on the
dias, were registered. He further admitted that Mr. Ali
Shamshi was convicted by the competent court in respect
of the said offence and has been sentenced to 2 years of
imprisonment. He has also admitted that the services of
Mr. Ali Shamshi had not been dispensed with on account
of his conviction. He also admitted that the coaviction of
Mr. Shamshij was in respect of an offence under Sections
L53A/153B of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 which prohibits
a person from making inflammatory speeches which will
breed tension and hatred on communal lines.

139. Mr. Mojawala, during the course of cross-
examination, also admitted that a student in need of financial
assistance, was given the financial assistance, subject to
his memorizing the Namj and being able to recite the Darn-
e-Sharif. He further admitted that it was only after atest of
the student was taken that he had memorized Namaj and
recited Daru-c-Sharif that the financial assistance was
released to him. He admitted that if we remember about this
condition [all the applicants having memorized Namaj and
recited Daru-e-Sharif], we may impose it and if we do not
remember il. al times, the financial assistance may be
released without this condition being imposed.
Furthermore, during the cross-examination, a doubt also
gol created with regard to the records of receipt and
expenses being maintained by the Trust. Furthermore, the
witness has also made a statement during his cross-
examination that the Trust has also been receiving
donations from abroad and proper financial accounts have
not been submitted to the authorities. The witness also
admitted that the Foreign Contribation Returns (FCR)
statements for the Financial Year 2006-2009 have been filed,
whereas for the Financial Year 2009-2011, time has been
sought to file the same. The witness also could not deny
that the Muslims, to whom the financial assistance has

been given by the Trust, have been found guilty of indulging
in anti-national activities, On the contrary it has been
brought about in the cross-examination that there have
been occasions when the students who have been given
financial assistance have been found to be involved in the
anti-social activities.

140. 1 may also notice, at this stage, the conduct of the
witness while under cross-examination by the learned ASG
The witness, Mr, Harcon Ali Mohd. Mozawala gives his
educational qualification only upto Sth standard but at the
same time says that he can read and write English. He is
aged about 72 years and he claims to be suffering from
forgetfulness and old age where he finds answer-to be
inconvenient. Therefore, he utilizes these factors to his
benefit and- wherever he wants to give an answer which
may favour him, he gives it readily. He also volunteers very
frequently to furnish information in order to show that the
Trust is not a frontal organization of SIMI for attaining its
objectives. The witness has tried to hide all facts from the
Tribunal but these have been sufficiently extracted in his
cross-examination. He is such an intelligent witness that
when a question is put to him as to what does he understand
by the term ‘jehad’, though he admits that jehad means
struggle but the illustration which he gives will clearly show
how intelligent and crafty he is as he says that the very
fact that he had come to Delhi from Mumbai in itselfis a
jehad and carrying out of any day-to-day activities in itself
is also a jehad but at the same time, he says that he isnot a
scholar in Islam and, therefore, he cannot tell the exact
meaning of the same.

141. The above noted admissions/statements by
Mr. Mojawala, prima facie do not rule out the association
of the Trust with SIMI. It is clearly evident that some of the
trustees are not only former members of SIMI, but their
activities are also akin to the objectives of SIMI. There is
also no clarity brought about the persons who receive
donations from the Trust. Thus, the contention of the
learned Add. Solicitor General that the funds received by
the Trust are channelized to the SIMI Cadres cannot be
out rightly rejected. As a ‘matter of fact he is not a
trustworthy person wha can be relied upon. Accordingly
in view of the discussions above, |A No.14/12 filed on
behalf of Khair-E-Ummat Trust through its Secretary-
General, Mr. Mojawala, seeking deletion of the name of
Khair-E-Ummat trust as one of the front organizations of
SIM], is rejected.

PUBLIC INTERVENTION AT INDORE

142. During the course of the proceedings at Indore,
Madhya Pradesh, one public person Mr. Satpal Singh filed
his affidavit supporting the Notification issued by the
Ceniral Government banning SIMI. le appeared in the
witness box and was examined as CW-2, He proved his
affidavit Ex. CW-2/1 and stated that although the SiMI
erganization is banned, but its activities are being carried
on by 10-15 peopl¢ of a particular community inthe Tehsil
Mehidpur with the help of outsiders. The modus-opgrandi
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of this group is that they would usurp Government land
and take its possession as Wakf land. They also try to
indoctrinate people for the purpose of carrying out illegal
activities of the banned organization. So far as the local
administration is cencerned, it is ineffective as it is not able
to take any action on the illegal activilies carried out by
these persons.

143. He further stated that Tehsil Nagda comes in Distt.
Ujjain only and the banned organization is carrying on its
illegal activities in the said Tehsil also. In Ratlam Distt.
also, the activities of the banned organization are existing.
He further staled that in totality of the circumstances, he,
as a resident of district Ujjain, in response to the public
hearing, filed his affidavit to say that the ban on SIMI
should continue under the Unlawful Activities {Prevention)
Act, 1967 on account of their illegal and anti-national
activities: Ile also stated that the members of banned
organization SIMI are also frequently indulging in activities
uf enticing innocent Hindu girls into contract marriages
with Mushim boys. ['his activity is also prevalent in the
district and this is bemg termed as “Love Jihad'. There is
no-Cross examination of this witness and thus his testimony
goes completely unchallenged and cannot be discarded.

SUBMISSIONS :

144 | have heard Mr. A.S. Chandhiok, the leamed ASG
un behalf of the LJOL as well as Mr. Ashok Aggarwal, the
learned counsel appearing on bebalf of the applicants/
intervenors and have also gone through the records. Both,

the learned Senior Counsel have been unanimous on one -

aspect, that is. with regard to the law laid down by the
Han'ble Supreme Court in Jamaat-E-Islami Hind (supra),
swr far as the question of adjudicating the reference made
1> this Tribunal is concerned. Although there have been
differences in the pereeption of interpretation by both of
them, each one of them has tried to interpret the judgment
in hiy own way and then has canvassed his case for
upholding or rejection of the validity of the Notification
banning the organization,

45, Before appreciating the evidence brought on record,
it will be pertinent to refer to some aspects of the said
reported judgment so far as the facts of the case and the
law faid therein are concerned, with regard to the Unlawful
Activilies (Prevention) Act. 1967 and the Rules framed
thercunder:

" The Crovernment of India issued a notification dated
1012199 1 under Seetion 3 of the Unlawful Activities
{ Preventmiy At declaring that the Jamaat-¢-1slami
Hingk, the appeliant, was an unlawful Association in
view uf the Licts staled therews as well as other facts
and materials it possession which it considered
10 be against the public interest to disclose. A
reference was made by the Ceniral Government fo
the Tribunal for adjudication under Section 4. In the
inguiry before the Tribunal, the only material
produced by the Central Government was a resume
prepared on the basis of some intelligence reports

and the affidavits of the Joint Secretary in the
Ministry of Home Affairs’ and the Joint Director, IB,
both of whom spoke only on the basis of the records
and not from personal knowledge. In rebuttal,
affidavits were filed on behalf of the Association of
persons whose acts, it was alleged, constituted the
grounds for issuc of the notificarion under Section
3(1) of the Act. The deponents of the affidavits were
also cross-examined. This comstituted the entire
material on which the Tribunal rendered ity decision
that there was sufficient cause for decldring the
Association to be unlawful and confirmed the
notification.

On behalf of the appellant-Association it was urged
that none of the grounds on which the notification
was based, even assuming them to be proved,
constituted “unlawful activity as defined in Section
2(f) to render the appellant an unlawful Association
within the meaning of Section 2(g) of the Act: that
the only material produced at the inquiry did not
constitute legal evidence for the purpose inasmuch
as it was, at best, hearsay. and that tco without
disclosing the source from which it emanated to give
an opportunity to the appellant to effectively rebut
the same. In rebuttal by the banned organization,
there was legal evidence in the form of sworn
testimony of the persens to whom the alleged
activities were attributed; and that the inquiny
comemplated by the Tribunal under the Act was
judicial in nature, which must be in the form of
adjudication of a lis giving a reasonable opportunity
to the Association to rebut the correctness of
allegations against il, and negalive the same. Cn
behalfof the respondent Union of India it was on the
other hand, contended that the Act was, in substance,
in the nature of a preventive detention law and the
Tribiinal, constituted under the Act, was, like an
Advisory Board under the prevemive detention Faw
required to examine only the existence of material
sufficient to sustain formation of the opinion of the
kind required for preventive detention; that such
opinion could be formed net only on the basis of
legal evidence but also other materials including
intelligence reports received from undisclosed
sources; and that the requirement of natural justice
in such a situation was satisfied by mere disclosure
of the information without disclosing the source of
the nformation ™

I46  The relerence, which was made (o Lthe Tribunal was

- regarding the 'sufliciency of cause” to decide as to whether

the Notification banning the arganization was valid or not.
The I'ribunal returned a finding in favour of the UOI,
holding that there was ‘sufficient cause’™ for the Central
Government to issue the Notification banning the
_organization. This finding ofthe ['ribunal was set aside by
the Apex Court after examination ot the entire object ol the
faw and the provisions made thereunder. The Apex Court




e

e S

= v

ETE

P AT

A T A A e At

e e T

{ o 1= 3¢i) |

- HEd &l I]G]Eﬁi_ ¢ HEHIYRED] ) 45

laidd down that when the Notification is referred to the
I'tibunal for the purpose of adjudication of the lis between
the parties as to whether there is “sufficiency of cause’ to
ban the organization or not, the Tribunal has to form an
upinion, of its own, on the basis of material available and
on objective assessment after observing a fair procedure,
to prevent any arbitrariness or viglation of the principles
of natural justice, and then arrive at a canclusion as to
whether there is ‘sufficient cause’ for issuance of
notification or nor, While doing so, the Tribunal has to
keep in view not only the material requirements of natural
justice, but also the material produced in such matters as
may not be confined only to ‘legal evidenee' in the strict
sense. as has to be subjected to scrutiny in a criminal trial.
Since in the said case, the Central Government had not
produced any persan who deposed from personal
knowledge whose testimony could be tested by cross-
examination nor did it disclose the identity of those persons,
the Tribural could not arrive at an abjective assessment.
On the contrary, it was observed that the persons to whom
the alleged unlawful acts of the association were attributed,
filed their affidavits denying the allegations and also
deposed as witnesses to rebut the allegations, It was
observed that the Tribunat had no means by which it could
decide objectively, as to which of the two versions was
credible. It was, thus, held that there was no objective
determination of the factual basis for the notification to
amount to adjudication by the Tribunal, as contemplated
by the statute. Accordingly, the validity of the Notification
upheld by the Tribunal was set aside by the Apex Court.
While doing so, the Apex Court observed as under :—

“The definitions of ‘unlawful activity” and ‘unlawful
association” under clauses () and (g) of Section 2 of
the Act make it clear that the detenmination of the
question whether any association is, or has become,
an unlawful association to justify a declaration under
Section 3(1) should be that “any action taken" by
such association constitutes an “‘unlawful activity”
which is the object of the association or the object is
any activity punishable under Section 153-A or
Section 153-B IPC. Section 3 requires an objective
determination of the matter by the Central
Government and Section 4 requires confirmation of
the act of the Central Government by the Tribunal.
The nature of inquiry contemplated by the Tribunal
under Section 4(3) requires it to weigh the material
on which the notification under sub-Section (1) of
Section 3 is issued by the Central Government, the
cause shown by the Association in reply to the notice
issued to it and take into consideration such further
information which it may call for, 1o decide the
existence of ‘sufficient cause' for declaring the
Assogjation 10 be unlawful. The entire procedure
contemplates an objective determination made on
the basis of material placed before the Tribunal by
the two sides; and the inquiry is in the nature of
adjudication ofa lis between two partics, the outcome
ol which depends on the weight of the material

produced by them. Credibility of the material should,
ordinarily, be capable of objective assessment.’ The
decision to be made by the 1ribunal is “whether or
not there is sufficient cause for declaring the
Association unlawful”. Such a determination
requires the Tribunal to reach the conclusion that
the material to support the declaration outweighs
thc material against it and the additional weight to
support the declaration is sufficient to sustain it.
The test of greater probability appears te be the
pragmatic test applicable in the context. (paras 9, 10
and 1 1)
b XK
The scheme of the present Act clearly brings out the
distinction between this statute and the requirement
under the preventive detention laws lo justify the
anticipatory action therein of preventive detention
based on suspicion reached by a process of
subjective satisfaction. The nature of the inguiry
preceding the order made by the Tribunal under
Section 4 of the Act, and its binding effect, give to it
the characteristic of a judicial determination
distinguishing it from the opinion of the Advisery
Board under the preventive detention laws. (para 13)
00 X

The requirement of adjudication by the Tribunal
contemplated under the Act does not permit
abdication ot its function by the Tribunal to the
Central Government providing merely its stamp of
approval to the opinion of the Central Government.
The procedure to be followed by the Tribunal must
therefore, be such which enables the Tribunal to itself
assess the credibility of conflicting material on any
point in controversy and evolve a process by which
it can'decide whether to accept the version of the
Central Government or to reject it in the light of the
other view asserted by the association. (para 21)
X 0

In Section 4, the words ‘adjudicating’ and *decide’
have a legal connotation in the context of the inquiry
made by the Tribunal constituted by a sitting Judge
ofa High Court. The Tribunal is required to *decide’
after “'notice to show cause” by the process of
‘adjudicating’ the points in controversy. The
requirement of specifying the grounds together with
the disclosure of the facts on which they are based
and an adjudication of the existence of sufficient
cause for declaring the association to be untawfu! in
the form of decision after considering the sause, if
any, shown by the association in response to the
show-cause notice issued to it. are all consistent
only with an objective determination of the points in
controversy in a judicial scrutiny conducted by a
Tribunal constituted by a sitting High Court Judge.
The test of factual existence of grounds amendable
to objective deterination by the court for adjudging
the reasonableness of resirictions placed on the right
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conlerred by Article 19(1)(¢c) to form associations, in
the scheme of the Unlawful Activities (Prevention)
Act, is equally applicable in accordance with the
decision in V.G Row, It is, therefore, this test which
must determine the meaning and content of the
adjudication by the Tribunal of the existence of
sufficient cause for declaring the Association to be
unlawful under the Act. (paras 14,20 and 19)

- The scheme under this Act requiring adjudication of
the controversy in this manner makes it implicit that
the minimum requirement of natural justice must be
satisficd, to make the adjudication meaningful. The
requirement of patural justice in a case of this kind

* must be tailored to safeguard public interest which
must always outweigh every lesser interest, Thus,
subject to the non-diclosure of information which
the Ceniral Government considers to be against the
public interest to disclose, all information and
evidence relied on by the Central Government to
support the declaration made by it of an association
to be unlawful, has te be disclosed to the association
to cnable if to show cause against the same. Subject
to the requirement of public interest which must
undoubtedly outweigh the interest of the association
and 11s members, the ordinary rules of evidence and
requirement of natural justice must be followed by
the Tribuna} in making the adjudication under the
Act.” (paras 20)

147. It is, in the light of the aforesaid observations of the
Apex Court that the evidence adduced before the Tribunal
requires to be cxamined to conclude whether or not there is
*sufficiency of cause’ in sustaining the notification issued
by the Central Government under Section 3(1) ofthe Act. It
may also be pertinent to note, at this stage, that it is not
necessary that to determine the ‘sufficiency of cause’ the
Central Government must prove, in entirety, all the grounds
stated by it in the background note. Even if, one ground
stated in the background note establishes the ‘unlawful
nature of activity of the organization’, it would be *sufficient
cause’ to confirm the notification under Section 3(1) of the
Act.

148. | have, in Para 126, observed that the UOL has
produced 43 witnesses in all who have, by preponderance
of probahility, established that SIMI, an association banned
since September, 2001, has still been functioning in a
surreptitious manner under the cover of more than 50
organizations whose names are given in the background
note. The applicants have not denied involvement of any
organization except one which is called as Khair-e-Ummat
Trust. The non-denial of association with these
organizations shows that they are being used as cover
organtzations. Sofar as Khair-e-Ummat Trust is concerned,
the Secrétary of the Trust has come in the witness box but
in cross- examination, he has also fallen flat and has not
been able to discredit the averments made in the
background note of their association with SIMI or SEMI
using the said Trusl as a cover organization.

Incidents which have taken place sfter the last notification
having been issued by the UOI declaring SIMI as’a banned
organization. :

149. It may be pertinent here to state' that the last
notification was issued by the UOI on 4-2-2010. Sufficient
evidence has already been brought on record by way of
statements of witnesses, PW1 to PW43 to show that there
is a cerain amount of continuity in the activities of the
banned organization in carrying out its agenda of illegal
and unlawful activities in accordance with its constitution
with the purpose of carrying out Jehad for the establishment
of an Islamic State. This is against the very basic fabric of
the Constitution of India which has a secular and
democratic structidre, The following are the incidents which
have taken place after the issuance of the last notification
which cdnshow that sufficient material has been brought
on record by the UOI thereby establishing ‘sufficiency of
its cause’ to continue the ban on the organization.

(A) Kiran Lashkarkar, S/o Shankar Rao Lashkarkar, posted
at SDOP Mundi, Distt. Khandwa, Madhya Pradesh, PW26,
has proved his affidavit, Ex.PW26/1 wherein he has stated
that on 13-6-2011, a secret information was received that'
10-15 members/activists of the banned organization SIMI -
have gathered in Gulmohar Colony, Khandwa in the house
of Akhil Khilji, where they were planning/conspiring to
commit untoward and anti national activities/attacks. As a
consequence of this, a police party was constituted and
raid was conducted. From there, 10 accused persons were
arrested on the spot. Their names are given in the affidavit.
Seizure of various contrabands. like one pistol, three
cartridges and literature which was seditious in pature was
effected, Different literatures were seized, apart from fire
anmes.

(B) PW-4|, Sanjeev Kumar Yadav, 8/0 Shri Nand Ji Yadav,
DCP, Special Cell, Delhi has proved his affidavit, Ex,PW41/
1, wherein he has stated that on 19-9-2010 at about 11:24"
hours, an information was received that some unknown
bikers at Gate No,3 of Jama Masjid had fired al some
foreigners. The necessary Police entries were miade. FIR
65/2010 was registered at PS: Jama Masjid and the
investigations were taken up. The following articles were
recovered from the spot:i—

(1) one loaded magazine containing 9 live cartridges.
(2) 11 empty shells/fired cartridges.
(3) Two distorted leads of fired cartridges.

The investigations were transferred to the Special
Cell of New Delhi. On the same date, at about 1420 hours,
another incident had taken place with regard to the burning
of a Maruti car, bearing Registration No. DL 6-CD- 1042,
Opp, Gali Guliyan, Dariba Kalan. This was also recorded
vide FIR No.66/2010 at Jama Masjid. The investigations of
these two FIRs led to the arrest, in December 2010, of one
Tarique Anjum Ahsan who is purported to have admitted
that Ahmad Siddibappa (@ Imran had attacked the foreigners
and exploded a bomb in a car, It has also been admitted by
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Tarique Anjum Ahsan that he was introduced to Ahmad
Siddibappd by one Mohd. Jasim who had admitted that
Mohd. Tarique Anjum Ahsan as well as Ahmad Siddibappa
were the senior members of SIMI. The attempt purported
to have been made by this person is a prima facie material
which shiows that there arc members and sympathizers who
are acting as activists and continuing the illegal and
enlawful activities of the banned organization which
wartant to be curbed,

(C) PW-32. G. Guru Raghavendra, 8/0 G, Yellamanda,
Inspector of Police has proved his affidavit. Ex. PW-32/1 at
Hyvderabad who has stated that on 22-6-2011. Syed Afaq
Igbal @ b.abal @ lgyval @ Danish @ Safi, S/o Saiyed
Nurulahoda Saiyed, aged 29 years admitted that he had
taken a fake SIM Card in the fake name of Manzoor Alam
fer himsell e has also admited 1hat he was In touch with
one Abu Faisal, another actuivist of SIMI whom he had
reccived at Ilyderabad and made arrangement for his
residence ot Gayatri Hills, apart from staying at his
residence on one of the davs. He - has further stated that
he was in touch with Saldar Nagori, former Sccretary as
well as President of SIMI who was intending to carry out
Jehad in India. It was also established that some seditious
material in the form of books was also handed over 10 him.
The testimony of this wimess has remained undemolished
during the cross-examination

(D) PW-9. Sh. Swapan Bancrjee Purnapatra, S/o Late
Kanai Lal Banerjee Pumapatra, Deputy Inspector General
of Police. Iniclligence Branch, West Bengal, 13 Lord Sinha
Road, Kolkata has proved in his affidavit Ex. PW-9/A that
on | 7-11-2010 SIMI Activists collected Zaka (donation)
from Khidirpur, Metiabruz, Park Cireus. Kolkara. Hooghly,
Howrah, Malda and Murshidabad District of West Bengal
which was ostensibly meant for raising funds to meet
expenditure of court cases relating 10 the ban on the outfit,

(F) PW-43. G:Samphat Kumar, $/0 Sh.Thiru K. Guruswamy.
Suptd. of Palice. Special Division. Special Branch. CID.
Chennai, Tamiinady has proved his affidavit, wherein he
has stated that SIMEgétivists are acting under the banner
of Wahdat-F-lslami;, tind (Web and are conducting
meetings/classes,. sympasiums/seminars and interactions
with their Kerala cpypiérparts. cte. They conducted one
such seminar at Chenfidh on 26-02-2012 titled *Lesson to
be learnt Irom the life of Prophet Mohammed™ tn which
Ziavuddin Siddique, Secretary ol Wahdat-C-Islami Hind
also participated. The real object of the meeting was to
promoie the activities of Wahdat-E-1slami Hind, which is a
front organization of SIMI. To substantiate the same, he
has enclosed the certified copy of the invitation in Tamil
and English as Annexure R/S (Colly) 1o his affidavit,

() PW-24, Mr. Sohanpal Singh Chaudhary, has proved
in his affidayitthat on 27-5-201 |, one Bherulal Tank, a local
journalist of the newspaper Swadesh, was fired upen and
suffered bulict injuries in his stomach. chest and back,
consequent to which, FIR no. 112/1 | was registered against
seven accused persons. One of the accused. Abu Faizal, in

his statement under Section 161 CrPC stated that he was
associated with members of SIML. He, along with other
persons had conducted dacoity in Mannapuram Gold
Finance Company, Bhopal in October, 201 |. He also stated
that in May, 2011, they had conspired to assassinate
Bherulal tank and in pursuance to their motive of killing
him. had fired gunshots on him, The other accused persons
have also reiterated the incidents of dacoity and conspiracy
to murder Bherulal Tank in their respective statements.

(G) PW-25, Mr. T.S. Baghel, has proved in his affidavit that
the accused persons had condugted bank robbery which
took place on (01-06-2010 at State Bank of [ndore, Branch
Pipalmandi, consequent to which FIR was registered. In
the chargesheet filed on 14-12-11, m respect 1o the said
FIR, two Cassettes of SIMI closed in a pink plastic cover
were recovered from the accused Mohd Sajid on 29-9-1 1.
In the Panchanama of the accused persons in the said FIR.
the possession of the cassettes of SIMI as well as their
involvement in bank robberies and olther SIMI eperations
was stated

{H) PW-16, Mr. Suresh Digambarrao Deshpande, has
proved in his affidavit that on 22-8-201 1, one Haroon Rashid
was arrested for possession of fake [ndian currency notes
In his statement under 16| Cr PC, he siated his association
with SIMI and the activities carricd out by the banned
organization. He also revealed about other 1wo active
members of SIMI namely Asrar Ahmad and Azhar ul Islam.
consequent to which, they were also arrested. n their
statements also, they revealed about their association with
SIMI and the unlawlul activittes carried by the organization
even after the ban imposed upon 1.

(h  PW-20, Mr. Mahendra Tarnekar, has proved in his
affidavit that certain persons, the names of whom are given
in the affidavit, were active members of SIMI and they had
congpired 1o kill the fudges of Lucknow Bench al the
Allahabad High Court. whb had given the Ram Jjanam
Bhumi- Babri Masjid verdict. They had also orwanized a
training camp In Raipur, Chattisgurh in May. 2011 n
pursuance of the same. They also revealed about their
other activities which included dacoitv, conspiracy to
assassinate the Jailor of the Jail where prominent SIMI
activist, Safdar Nagorn was lodged with other such activists.

150, While the Tribunal has tried to conline its enyuiry to
the cases registered after the report of the last Tribunal,
hawever. the past conduct of the organization will also
need to be locked into, 1o a limited extent, for assessing the
sufficiency of the cause. '

131, The Central Government has placed on record the
reports ol the previous Tribunals. which have been
examined. These reports, based on evidence led in respect
of cases registered since the ban on SIMI in Septamber.
2001, establish consistent and conmtinuous activities by
SIMI cadres. which are intended or support any claim, 10
bring about, on any ground whatsoever, the cession of a
part of the territory of India or the secession of a part of the
territory of India from the Union. ar which incite any
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individual or group of individuals to bring about such
cessien or secession or which disclaim, question, disrupt
or arc miended to disrupt the sovercignty and territorial
integrity of india or which cause or are intended to cause
disaffection against fndia. The said activities have
continucd despite the ban on the organization from
September, 2001 onwards. through the named front
oreanizations. The wide-spread nature of activities spread
across almost the entire country, causing incident of bomb
blasts, extorfion, robberies, murders, ete. through a network
ol aetivity, i pursuit of a fundamentalist agenda, contrary
ta the Constitution and established law of the land. cannot
bue allowed (o existand grow.

152, I'be evidence led before the Tribunal has succinctly
brought on record the commission, nature and aim of the
activities mdulged in by SIMI cadres. which are not only
anti-national, but are capable of causing social unrest.

153 The mcidents brought on record are very serious in
nature and the persons and organizations respansible for
the same, viz. SIMI and its cadres, need to be prevented
hy all possible means. including the invocation of Unlawlul,
Activities (Prevention) Act. 1967, from poaling together
their resources for indulging in activitics, which are
“unlaseful” within the meaning of “unlawful activity' as
duefined i Secthion 2(0) of Unlawful Activities (Prevention)
Act. 1967, It may also be appropriate for the Cenlral
Gowvernmient to have 4 closer serutiny of the affairs of the
front organizations of SIMI so far as it prevents their
involvement and suppert for the activities of S1M1.

CONCLUSION:

I3+ In view of the aforesaid discussion, the following
puintsfconclusions emerge:—

1) SIMI has been banned as an unlawful Association
withm the definition of Section 2(p) ol the Act as the
Association and its former office bearers. members,
sympathizers and activisis are carrying on unlawful
activities withun the definition of Section 2{c) of the
Act in a clandestine manner by using the cover of
differemt names of he associations in different
States purporting to give a false impression to the
public that these cover organizations are working
for social uplifiment ol members of the Muslim
communilty whereas actually il is regrouping:
recrinting new members and radicalizing them by
indoctrnation 1o wage the “Iehad’, 1o establish
Islamie tufe m the country and thereby destroy the
seculin tabie of the coanitry.

() The Supreme Court i Jamaat-E-Islami Hind case
{supra) s authorstatively laid down the scope of
mguiny, methodology and quantum of prool required
to uphnld the validity of the declaration issued by
Central Government. It has been held in the said
judgment as under :

{a}  The inguiry oradjudication is not in the nature
ofa criminal trial” but it is an *inquiry” in which

(iif)

{iv}

(v)

rules of evidence in stricto sensc are not
applicable. The provisions of Evidence Act,
1872 are to be followed as far as practicable.
Further, what 18 admissible in the inquiry by
the Tribunal is not only legal evidence but even
the material which is brought on record by the
Union of India. It is observed that the principles
ol natural justice and fair play have to be
Tollowed

(k) I'he inquiry is in the nature of adjndication of
a lis between two parties, that is, Union of India
and the banned organization SIML The ex-
office hearers of SIMI. 11LA. Siddigqui and
Misbha-Ul-lslam arc decmed 10 be
representing the banned organisation. The
Tribunal has te weigh the material praduced
‘by both the sides and decide its credibility
and arrive at its objective assessment whether
or not there is “sufficient cause” for declaring
the organization as an ‘unlawful association’.
The material preduced to support the
declaration must outweigh the material against
it on the principles of greater probability.

(¢} I'he Tribunal is not (o 4cl as & mere rubber
stamp for certification of the action of thé Limion
of India.

The Union ol India has given 2 number of zrounds
for declaring SIMI as an ‘unlawiul assoctation® which
has been indulging in ‘unlawlul activities” through
its former officer bearcrs, lormer members,
sympathizers and activists.

The Union of India has produced 43 witnesses, in
support of its action of banning the organization
SIM1 vide notification No. $.0.224(E). dated 3rd
February, .2012. Only one witness Mr. Jayant Vasudey
Sheity {PW-12) was examined partially at Bangalore
and thereafter dropped. The testimony of these
witnesses has shown continuity in the unlawful
activities of the baoned organization through its
activists. Prominent among them is regrouping,
recruiting fresh members, widening their network,
indulging in terrorists activitics, manuflaciuring and
planting of bombs, taking innocent lives and
challenging the lawful authority of the Stale

Some salient features of the evidence brought on
record. clearly establish, by preponderance of
prabability ar what is called by the Apex Court as
objcclive assessmment, that STMI was banned for the
first time in September, 2001, which ban was subse-
quent thereto upheld by Tribunal headed by Hon''ble
Mr. Justice S.K. Aggarwal. Since the ban under the
Act is only for two vears, the subsequent bans
imposed by the Union of India were upheld by the
Tribunals headed by Han'ble Mr. Justice R.C.
Chaopra, llon'ble Mr. Justice BN, Chawrvedi and
Hon'ble Mr. Justice Sanjiv Khannag. In berween
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{(vi}

{vii)

(viii)

lHon“bie Ms. Justice Gita Mittal held that the
organization SIMI still exists but the Tribunal held
that the grounds, on which the notification was issued
by the Union of India were deficient. This order of
on'ble Ms. Justice Gita Mittal was stayed in a
Special Leave Petition preferred by the Union of India
hefore the Supreme Court and the matter stands
admitted. The net result of this stay was that the ban
on the organization continued for a period of two
years [rom the date of issue of the nofification till the
{ime the new notification came into existence in 2010,
The said notification banning SIMI was upheld by
the “I'ritsunal headed by Hon ble Mr. lustice Sanjiv
Khanna,

All these notifications are public documents within
the definition of Section 74 and have been proved in
accordance with Section 78(iKa) of the Evidence Act,
1872 and the Tribunal has taken judicial notice of
these noiifications as a formal proof of the document.
Further, as the proceedings before the Tribunal are
judicial proceedings, therefore, the record of the
notification issued by the Union of India pursuant
to the upholding of the earlier ban are presumed to
be correct and duly proved.

The evidence which has been brought before this
Tribunal has proved by preponderance of probability
that though SIMI has been banned in September,
2001 hut despite the ban, the organization has been
tunctioning on the ground, carrying out its activities
avertly or covertly through its ex-office bearers,
myinties, Rympathizers. The prominent among them
are the nsmes of different persons who are very
active Jiy their own states. Most of the witnesses
have brawgght out iu their statements, their agenda of
converting Jndis Into an (stamic State. To illustrate
this, Safdar Nagori's name has surfaced from Madhya
Pradesh who & & vory prominent SIMI activist and
Saquib Naghan's name has surfaced from
Maharashted, 81e: 88 promincnt operatives of SIMI
in that arc. He s also facing trial in some of the
cases pertiining o lerrorist activities.

Simitarly, i1 West Bengal, an activist by the
name of Tayedul Islum, ix active; in Hyderabad,
Maulana Naseerugdin and Abdul Rehman are active
sympathigees warking for SIMI and in Rajasthan,
Sajid Sahara). All these operatives are in touch and
in league with each other and indulging in unlawful
activities within the definition of Section 2(o) of the
Act by recruiting, training. metivating and
indoctrinating young miinds to indulge in terrorist
activities, making and planting bombs, taking
innocent tives, gather firearms and for this purpose,
even conmmit robberics and dacoities.

The very aims and objects of SIMI, according to the
Constitution of the organization, is to establish an
Ishamic State, In fact, the oath (Ahadnama. Bara-e-

()

x)

Ikhwan/akhwat) administered at the ime of enrolment
as an Ansar is in the nature of a promise that he
would work for establishment of Islamic System in
his country. The relevant part of the, oath
administered to an Ansar reads as under :

*| promise that | would work for liberation of
humanity and establishment of Islamic system
in my country. I will spend my time, resources
and capacities in this cause and won’t sparc
my life if need be” CW-I, Haroon Mozawala
also admitted in Court that before a student is
given scholarship he is required to memorize
certain religious prayers and teachings which
only showed that the trust was breeding
fanatics.

The very purpose of establishing an [slamic State is
against the preamble of the Constitution of India,
which declares India as a secular State. On the
contrary, the action of the SIMI and its various
frontal organizations is to show intolerance towards
other religions, breed communal hatred and create
social tension and consider themselves and the
Muslim community in general as the wronged
community on account of Babri Masjid demolition
and to change the same.

It has come on record that there are nearly 57 front
organizations, under whose cover the anti-national
activities are being carried out by SIMI. Even though
52 front organizations are named, only onc
organization/trust came forward o challenge thew
inclusion as a front organization of SIMI in the
background note. The two cx-olfice heavers,
[1.A.Siddiqui and Misbah-Ul-Islam. appearing as
surrogate persons for the banncd organization also
in their reply. have not challenged this except in the
case of onc organisation, i.e.. Khair-E-Ummat. This

"trust was represented by an elderly gentleman named

Haroon Ali Mohd. Mozawala. General Secretary of
the Trust, who was examnined as CW-|. In his cross-
examination, he was established 1o be a person,
whose own son-in-law, settled in Sauadi Arabia, who
is funding the trust which was apparently giving
scholarship 1o the students ol the community for
higher studies and for medical treatiment of paticnts.
but these students wegre found to he highly
indoctrinated and motivated using the facifitics of
[lostel and the cover of being students to actively
indulge in unlawful activities and furthering the
objectives of the banned organization so as to create
Islamic rule by use of force. indoctrination and
misinterpreting the objectives of the pious religion.
Some of the students, who were given scholarships.
were arrested for being involved in terrorist activities.
Even the trustees of this Trust were found 10 be ex-
activists of SIMI and. therefore. all these trustees
and the Trust itself was rightly named as front cover
organization for SIMI to indulge in illegal activities,
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(xi) The appearance of H.A. Siddiqui and Misbah-Ul-
Islam is for the banned organization and not in their
individual capacity as aggrieved persons. This is a
surrogate representation by SIML

155. In view of the evidence brought on record and the
aforesaid discussion, the only conclusion possible is that
SIMI and its cadres have continued to indulge in activities
which arc detrimental and prejudicial to the national interest
and have the potential of posing a threat to the national
integrity and sovereignty of the nation. SIMI cadres have
continued o indulge in such anti-national activities by
forming other front organization, like indian Mujahiddin,
Wahadat-e-1slami, etc. It has continued to recruit and enroll
fresh members in their cadres. The evidence brought on
record and the cases registersd after the report of the last
Tribunal overwhelmingly prove that the organization is
continuing to werk surreptitiously, posing a threat and
challenge o the sovereignty of the Indian nation. This is
also established through the testimony of witnesses
examined in Kerala where it has been brought on record
that the sympathizers/activists of this banned organization
have supported the so called Jehad of Muslims of Kashmir
against the alleged forced occupation of Kashmir where
iwo operatives from Kerala got killed, even when they
fully know that majority of Muslims in Kashmir are peace
loving and have democratically elected their own
representatives to rule them, Further, these persons have
scant respect for innocent women lives and know the fact
that the State of Jammu & Kashmir is an integral part of
India.

I56. The reply filed by H.A. Siddiqui and Misbah-ul-
Islam, thongh as individuals, is taken to be a surrogate
reply filed by and on behalf of the banned organization,
SIMI. The averments made in the said reply that SIMF,
after the first ban, has ceased to exist or that it is not a
criminal organization or that its ex office bearers or ex
members are not indulging in any unlawful activities or
ferrorist activities or committing offences of waging a war,
spreading hatred and creating communal tension, is not
established by even an iota of evidence. However, the fact
that SIMI is not in existence and not indulging in
clandestine and unlawful activities is not established by
any credible evidence as these two applicants/intervenors
have neither chosen to appear in the witness box to support
the averments made in their reply nor adduced any evidence
in this regard. I'herefore, in terms of the judgment of the
I on'ble Supreme Court in jamaat-e-laslmi Hind case (supra),
the evidence, having not been produced by the applicants/
intervenors or the banned organization, leads to the only
irresistible conclusion, on the basis of preponderance of
probabilitics after assessing the material produced by the
LJOI, that there is “sufficient cause” to declare SIMI as an
unlawful association, as it is indulging in unlawful activities.
For arriving at this conclusion, even the Union of India
and as many as 8§ States have furnished confidential
information which has been also perused by the Tribunal
cxcept in the case of Gujarat as it was not accompanied
with English translation,

157. For the foregoing reasons, |, in pursuance to the
statutory reference made to the Tribunal under Saéiion 4
of the Act, hold that the Central Government has been able
1o establish that there is ‘sufficient cause’ for declaring
SIMI as an unlawful association and accordingly, confirm
the declaration made in the Notification No. : §.0.224(E)
dated 3.2.2012 issued by the Central Government under
Section 3(1) of the Act.

SUGGESTTONS :—

158. Although this may not be strictly within the domain
of the reference made to the Tribunal by the Central
Government, however, while dealing with the reference,
the Tribunal feels that it inust unhesitatingly bring to the
notice of the Union of India certain facts for its
consideration, which are detailed as under—

()  So far as the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act,
1967 is conc¢erned, it prescribes that the ban which
may be imposed by the Central Government in terms
of Section 3 of the Act, can be valid for a period of
two years, within which it has also to be approved
by the Tribunal, duly constituted under Section 4 of
the Act by making a reference within thirty days of
the promulgation of the said notification. The said
period of two years, fixed by the statute, is grossly
inadequate and needs to be increased to a minimum
period of five years. This is on account of the fact
that the notification having been issued by the UOI
banning the particular organization and the reference
having been received by the duly constituted
Tribunal, it entails lot of time and expenditure of the
constitutional as well as public functipnaries at
different levels, in different States, for the purpose
of recording of evidence and deciding the validity of
the notification. Since the Tribunal is headed by a
Judge of the High Court, the normal adjudicatory
work assigned to the Judge is also impacted, resulting
in the delay of disposal of normal cases also.
Therefore, the Tribunal is of the view that the validity
of the period of notification so issued under Section
3 of the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967,
subject to its being upheld by the duly constituted
Tribunal, should be for a minimum period of five
years. So far as revocation or cancellation of the ban
is concerned, it can be done even at a shorter period
if the situation so warrants. The Union of India on
representation by the aggrieved party or suo motu
can always do the same in pursuance to Section 6(2)
of the Act.

(i) During the course of recording of the evidence, the
Tribunal has interacted with a number of Muslims
across the board as ex members/office bearers of the
banned organization as well as the persons belonging
to other religious minorities and linguistic groups.
As no religion preaches violence and taking the lives
of innocent people, the pious religion of Islam is also
rnot preaching to the contrary. Further, by and large
all Muslims living in India are nationalists who have
abiding faith in the rule of law and the Constiution.
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except the fringe elements. especially indoctrinated
by the Muslim fundamentalists and extremists who
propagate establishment of a theocratic and Islamic
State. 1t is the abjcct poverty and the lack of
cmployment in the community which is driving some

of the members to carry out these illegal and unlawful

activities in the name of religion by associating

themsclves with the banned organization. To give
“an illustration in this regard, it has come in evidence

that certain accused persons, who were doing the
zari work and eaming their tivelihood and maintaining
their families., on account of poor financial conditions,
were allured by the fundamentalists in the name of
Jehad and then led 1o the path of crime under the
gover of these banned organizations. This
indoctrination is not only conflined to illiterate and
the uneducated. but has cven fascinated highly
qualified dactors, enginecrs as well as technocrats
who are computer savvy. Efforts must be made, by
involving the sane elements, leaders, religious and
atherwise, of the community and all others who can
be of assistance, to isolate these misguided youth
who can be thereafter be brought into the mainstream.
At the same time, the State Authorities need to deal

= -§quarcly and fimmly with the incorrigible elements so

there is a defiite deterrent on the young and
pssionable minds who adopt the path of crime in
amme of religion and take innocent lives.

(i)

Another aspect which has been noticed is that
banned organization is functioning all over

country in the guise of its other frontal organizatic
Maost of the names of such organtzations are ¢
giving an impression that neither they have anyth
to do with the interests of the Muslim commur
nor with the Islam. To tllustrate this, there are frot
groups by the name of Secular Democratic Fron
India. These types of names arc a misnomer i
misleading, in as much as they do not give any pri
facie indication that the organization is an unlaw
association and is indulging in illegal and unlaw
activities. Similarly, the accused persons with crimi
tendencies and such bent of mind are having Mus
names with a number of alias/nicknames wh
ultimately culminates into a Hindu name, like Rz
as has happened in one casc, thereby giving
impression as if an operative is not only a membei
the minarity community, but also is amember of so
other community. This trend needs to be arrestec
an early date and such organization and individu
need to be identified and their affairs looked inta

Justice V. K. SHALL Chairn
Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Tribu

August 1,2012
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